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The TRIAL of Jofeph Dawfon, Edward Forfeith, William
May, William Bithop, James Lewis, @z John Sparkes,
at tie Old Bailey, for Felony azd Piracy, O&ob. 19. 1696.

8 Will. III.

Admir, Angl, {f

The Seffions of Oyer and Terminer, and Goal-De-
livery, held for our Sovereign Lord the King, for
the Furifdittion of the Admtralty of England, ac
Julice-Hall in the Old Bailey, in the Suburbs of
the City of London, on Monday the 19th Day
of October, in the Eighth Year of the Rejpn of
our faid Sovereign Lord King Wilham the Third,
over England, &e. before the Right Hononrable
Edward Ruffel, Efz; Henry Prieftman, Efy;
Si» Robert Rich, Kuight and Baronet 3 Sir
George Rooke, Kuight 5 Sir John Houblon,
Kagght 5 and James Kendal, Efg; Commiffioucrs
for Executing and Exercifing the Office and Place
of Lord High Admiral of England, refpeclively
ajiigned and deputed 5 the Right Worfhipful Sir
Charles Hedges, Kt Doftor of Law, Licute-
acnt 1 the High Conrt of Admiralty of England,
Commiffary-General of onr Sovereign Lord the

gy and Prefident and Judge of the fard Court
the Kight Houourable Sir John Holt, Kt Lord
Chief Fuflice of the Kine’s Bench s Sir George
Lreby, Kt. Lord Chief Fufice of the Common
Pleas 5 §ir Edward W ard, K. Lord Chicf Ba-
70i of fie Exchequer 3 8ir Tho. Rokeby, K,
aid oie of the Fuflices of the King’s Bench 4
Sir Samuel Eyre, Kt another of the Juflices of
the King’s Bench 5 Sir John Turton, Xr. aso-
ther of the Faftices of the King's Bench Y

Iﬂ‘}} nO I;o w;f l, Kt one of the Fuftices of the

Comon Pleass Sir Littleton Powis, A%, one
of the Bavons of the lixchequer 3 Willtam Bridge-
man and Jofias Burchet, Efgrs; Secretaries of the
Admiralty of England ; Thomas Lane, William
King, and John Cooke, refcflively Doflors of

Laws 5 and others bis Majefly's Fufiices named
i the faid Commiffion.

o IS Maelty’s Commilfioners be-
@l ing then and there met, the Com-

(& million was read, and Proclama-
R mli tion made for Attendance: After
AR which, the Gentlemen of the
QEPANE RS Grand Jury were called and
fworn, and received their Charge from Sir Charles
Hedges, Kt, Judge of the High Court of Admiralty,
who fet forth unto them the Narure of the Com-
miffion, the Extent of the Jurifdiction of the Court,
and the {ubjet Matter of their Enquiries,

Then the Wimefies for the King being {ivorn,
the Grand Jury withdrew, and after a lictle Time
returned, finding Bills vera againft Henry Every,
not yet taken, Fofeph Dawfon, Edward Furfesh,
William May, William Bifbop, Fames Lewis, and
Jobn Sparkes, Prifoners, for felonioufly and pi-
ratically taking and carrying away, from Per-
fons unknown, a certain Ship called the Gunfivay,
with her Tackle, Apparel, and Furniture, to the
Value of 1000/, and Goods to the Value of
110/, together with 100000 Pieces of Eight, and

ro0000 Chequins, upon the High Sess, ten
Leagues
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Leagues from the Cape 8¢, Fobu's, near Surat in
the Eaft-Indies., Then Dawfon, Forfeith, May,
Bifbop, Lewis, and Sparkes, were brought to the
Bar, and their Indiétment was read. |
Fofeph Dawfon confeflfed that he was Guilty,
but the rett pleaded Not Guilty, and put them.
felves upon their Trials; and thereupon the Petty
Jury was called, and the Perfons, whofe Names

follow, were {worn,

Fobn Child, Fobu Sherbiooke,
Edward Leeds, | ) Sanmel Fackfou,
Thomas Clarke, 74 Thomas Lmms,
Nathan Green, ‘ Henry Huiter,
Henry Sherbrooke, ) ( Fobn Hall,

William Walker, 7’ [ Benjam:in Dry,

Then the King’s learned Council opened the
Indi@ment, &e. and Dr, Necoton made a Speech 3
which is as follows.

My Lord, and Genlemen of the Jury,

HE Prifouers are indifted for Piracy, in Rob-
bing and Plundering the Ship Gunlway, be-
longing to the Great Mogul and bis Subjedts, in the
Indian Seas, to a very great Value. |
And the End was fuitable 1o their Beginning 5 ey
St practifed thefe Crimes upon their oson Conittry-
men, the Enghth, and then continued them on to
Strangers and Ioreigners : Ior the Ship in awhich this
Piracy was committed, was an Englith Foflel, called
2he Charles the Second, belonging to feveral Mer-
chants of this City, defizned for others Euds, and o
far different Voyage, which by thefe Criminals, with
the dffiftance of one Every, their Captain, in all
thefe Villanies, was feized near the Groyn inSpain,
in May 1694, from which Place, baviug firft, by
Force, fet Captain Gibfon the Commander oit Shove,
they carried off the Ship, and with it committed many
and great Piracies, for feveral Years (as <oill appear

2 the Courfe of the Evidence) in moft of the Parts of

tbe known World, withont Difkinction, upon all Na-
tions, and Perfous of all Religivis.

Thetr laff Piracy was this in the Indies, the great-
gt dn dlfelf, and like to be the moft periicions in its
Confequences, efpecially as to Trade, confidering the
Powyer of the Great Mogul, aid the natural Licli-
nation of the Indhans to Revenge : But they are now
brought bither on their Trial, and, if the Matters they
are charged with, fhall be proved, to receive that
Judgument from you, their Crime deferves 3 and that
is Piracy, which by fo mnch exceeds Theft or Robbery
at Land, as the Interclt and Concerns of Kingdoins
and Nalions, are above thofe of private Families,
or particular Perfons: For fuffer Pirates, and the
Commierce of the IVoild muft ceafe, which 1his Na-
tion has defervedly fo great a Share in, aid reaps
Juch mighty Advantage by : Aud if they fhall go
away unpunifbed, when it is known whofe Subjefls
they ave, the Confequence may be, to invelve 1he Na-
tions concerned in 1War and Blood, to the Deftruion
of the tunocent Enghth in thofe Countrics, the total
Lofs of the Indian Trade, and thereby the Impov:-
rifbment of this Kingdom,

The Witnefles for the King, viz, Yobu Dan,
and Philip Middleton, were then called and fworn,
and in the Opinion of the Court gave a full Evi-
dence againft the Prifoners, which was very
clearly fumm’d up by the Lord Chief Juftice
okt 5 the Tenour whereof is particularly fot

forth in the following Trials: But the Jury,
contrary to the Lxpeftation of the Court,
brought 1n all the Priloners Not Guilty 5 where-
upon the Seffions was adjourned to Saturday the
g 1{t of O&sher following, and the Pritoners were
commuitted upon a new Warrant for {everal other

Piracies.

Die Soblatt, tricefmo primo Olobris, .2n-
gy Reanr Regrs Willidmi Teitir Célors,
Arigyy Dontnr 1090,

Fg L Court being fat (st which were pre-

fent Sir Charles Hedges Judge of the High
Court of Admiralty, the Lord Chief Juttice 727,
the Lord Chief Juftice Treby, the Lord Chicf
Baron /7ard, Mr. Juftice Roskby, Mr, Juftice
Turton, Mr, Jultice Eyre, Mr. Baron Pezis, Dr.
Lane, Dr. King, and Dr, Cosk) the Court pro-
ceeded m this Manner,

Cl. of drr. Cryer, make Proclamation.

Crycr, O yes, O yes, Oyes.  All Manner of
Perfons that have any thing more to do at this
Seflions, draw near and give your Attendance
And you Sheriffs of the City of London, reiurn
the feveral Precepts directed to you, and return-
able here this Day, upon Pain and Peril that
fhall follow thereon,

[ Then the Grand Fury <cre ailed cocr, cnd
the dppearaicss mark’d,]

Cl. of Arr. Make Proclamation.

Cryer. O yes, &e. The Lords the King?’s Juf-
tices charge and command all Perfons to keep
Stlence while the Charge is giving,

The Judge of the Addmiralty’s Charge to the Grand
Jury upoie this Qucajron.

Sir Chailes Hedges, Gentlemei of the Graisd Frry,

AV H I Opimon which this Court had of the
rﬂ, good Intentions, Abilities, and Integruty of
the laft Grand Jury, was {o fully anfwered at oun
late Mecting in this Place, that I am confideat
all good Englifhmen, who were Witnefles of their
Proceedings, will concur in giving them publick
Thanks tor the good Services which they then
performed : I with that all others, who werc
concerned 1n the Difpatch of that Day’s Bufinefs,
had the like Pretence to have the fame ; the pub-
lick Juftice of the Nation would not then have
lain under any Manner of Reproach, neither
would you have had this farther Trouble. Bu:
feeing that it hath fo happen’d, it is become
ablolutely neceflary that a farther and a ftric
Lnquiry fhould be made after thofe Crimes which
threaten, and tend to the Deftrucion of our
Navigation and Trade 5 and therefore I am
affured of your Patience, whillt T fhew you

bricily,

1. What the Crimes are, which you are to
enquire after.
2. How far the JurifdiGion and your Powey
in making thefc Enquiries doth extend.
3. What is the Duty incumbent on you in

this behalf, _

1. Asto the Crimes, I fhall not repeat what
was mention’d touching all the Particulars there-

of, at the Opening of this Seffions ; but confine
oy
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my Difcourfe to thofe, which I ﬁn‘t_:l by the Ca-
lendar will, at this Time, neceflarily fall under
your Examination 3 and thofe are Piracies,

Now Piracy isonly 2 SC&-TEI:ITI for l-{ol_:lbery,
Piracy being a Robbery committed within the
Turifdiction of the Admiralty. 1f any Man be
afwited within that Jurifdi¢tion, and his Ship
or Goods violently taken away withoutalegal Au-
thority, this is Robbery and Piracy. .IF the Ma-
riners of any Ship fhall violently difpoffefs the
Mafter, and afterwards carry away the Ship 1t
{cIf, or any of the Goods, or Tackle, Apparel,
or Furniture, with a felonious Intention, in any
Place where the Lord Admiral hath, or pretends
to have Jurifdicion, this is alfo Robbery and
Piracy. The Intention will,qin thefe Cafes, ap-
pear, by confidering the End for which the
Fact was committed 3 and the End will be
known, if the Evidence fhall thew you what hath
been done.

2. Now the Jurildiftion of the Admiralty is
declared, and deferibed in the Statute, and Com-
miliion, by Virtue of which we here meet, and
is exrended throughout all Seas, and the Ports,
Ilavens, Creeks, and Rivers bencath the firlt
Dridoes next the Sea, even unto the higher
Water-mark,

The King of Lngland hath not only an Empire
and Sovercignty over the Brivifh Seas, but alfo an
undoubted Jurildi&ion, and Power, 1 Concur-
reacy with other Princes and States, for the
Pumfhment of all Piracies and Robberies at Sea,
in the moit remote Parts of the World 3 {o that
if any Perfon whatfoever, Native or Foreigner,
Chriitian or Infidel, Turk or Pagan, wich whofe
Country we have no War, with whom we hold
Trade and Correfpondence, and are in Amity,
fhall be robbed or fpotled, in the Narrow Seas,
the Mediterranean, Atlantck, Southern, or any
other Seas, or the Branches thereof, either on
this or the other Side of the Line, 1t i1s Piracy
within the Limits of your Enquiry, and the Cog-
nizance ot this Court.

2. Concerning the Duty incumbent upon you
“in making your Iinquirics, and Prefentments,
you may conlrder that there 1s 2 great Truft and
Authority committed to you; and therefore 1t
will be expecred that a fuitable Care fhould
be had, and your Power executed according to
a well-regulated Difcretion: As you are, on the
onc hand, to take Care that the Court be not
troubled, nor any Man put 1n Hazard of his
Life, threugh any frivolous, or malicious Pro-
fecution 3 fo, on the other Side, and more efpe-
cially i the Cafes of grear and publick Oftences,
vou arc to ufe your utmoft Endeavours, that Ju-
ftice, the Support of Govermmnent, be not abftru-
cted by any Partial Proceedings.

You arc not obliged m all Cales to require a
clear and full Evidence, but only to examine till
vou find, and are fatished 1n your Coniciences,
that there 15 fuflicient and jult Caule to put the
Party acculed upon his Trial.  You cannot con-
vict, but may in Effect acquit the greateft Cri-
mnals; and therefore, it you do but find Proofs
cneugh to create a Prefumption againtt the Party
acculed, when the Cale feems odious, and is of
great Conlequence and Imporiance, your {afeft
Way is to put it in a proper Method for the
Petty Jury, who are to receive full Satistaction
from the Iividence that fhall be given in the Pre-

fence of the Party; and according to that Evi-
"“GLII ‘\Tn

for E elonjf and Piracy.

3 .
dence, have Power to determine whether guilty,
or not guilty, condemn, as well as acquit.

And upon this Occafion, {eeing many who are
upon that Service are prefent, it feems fit that
they thould alfo know that they have no Power to
do more or lefs than what is agreeable to the Evi-
dence : They are not to interpofe in Points of
Law, or to be fwayed by any Confideration what-
foever, but what thall arife from the Proofs judi-
cially made ; they are indeed Judges of the Faé,
but they are notarbitrary 5 they are as much re-
ftraincd by the Dictates of Confcience, informed

‘and convinced by reafonable Proofs, as the Judges

on the Bench are by the Rules of Law,

No Man can believe jult as he litts; and there-
fore a Determination, or Judgment ac Will and
Pleafure, will never be thought to deferve the
Name of a Verdict: For whatever may be pre-
tended, the World will not be perfwaded that
a Jury hath purfued the Dictates of Conicience,
unlefs fome reafonable Grounds for its Proceedings
thall appear; and therefore, whenever 1t {hall
happen that notorious Malefictors efcape unpu-
nifhed, notwithitanding that in the Opinion of
moft good Men there was a full and f{ufficient
Evidence for their Convidtion, it 1s to be wifh-
ed, and Indeed it fecems to me to be neceffary,
in Cafes that relate to the Laws of Nations, that
the Reafons which mduced fuch a Determination,
fhould be given for the publick Satistaction
otherwife, fince Foretgners look upon the Decrees
of our Courts ot Juttice as the Senfe and Judg-
ment of the whole Nation, our Enemies will be
glad to find an Occafton to fay, that fuch Mifcre-
ants as are out of the Protection of all Laws, and
Civil Government, are abetted by thole who
contend for the Sovercignty of the Seas, The
barbarous Nations will reproach us as bemng a
Harbour, Recepiacle, and a Neft of Pirates;
and our Iriends will wonder to hear that the ne-
mics of Merchants and of Mankind, fhould finda
Sanctuary in this ancient Pluace of Trade. Nay,
we our felves cannot but confefs, that all King-
doms and Countries who have fulfered by Englifh
Pirates, may, for Want of Redrefs in the ordi-
nary Courfe, have the Pretence of Jultice, and
the Colour of the Laws of Nations to juftity their
making Reprizals upon our Merchants, wherclo-
ever they fhall meet them upon the Seas. If
Jury happens in thefe Cafes to be too fevere,
there is room for Mercy, and 1 am confident,
that upon a jult Reprefentation, the Innocent
never failed of obtaining ity but for a Faul,
Neglect, or Error on the other hand, there 18 no
Relief for injured Foreigners, but by their car-
ving out, as we may be fure they will, for them-
felves, fuch a Satisfaction, upon our Merchants, as
they fhall think fit, whenever they fhall have an
Opportunity 3 and fo our whole Nation muft un-
avoidably fuffer both in Reputation and Interelt,
and all as it were through our own Defaulr.

I hope what hath been faid upon this unexpect-
ed Occalion, will not be looked upon as intend-
ed to influence any Jury 5 [ am fure it is far from

‘being {o defigned: Religion, Confcience, Io-

nour, common Honeflly, Humanity, and all
Laws, forbid fuch Methods: There is no Doube
but the Judge as well as the Juryman then beft
difcharges his Duty, when he proceeds without
Favour or Affe®ion, Hatred or lll-will, or any
partial Refpect whatfoever.

B 2 Every
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Every Man ought to be extremely tender of
{fuch a Perfon as he has Reafon to believe is 1n-
nocent 3 but it fhould be confidered likewife on
the other Side, that he who brings a notorious Pi-
rate, or common Malefator, to Juftice, contri-
butes to the Safety and Prefervation of the Lives
of many, both bad and good; of the Good, by
Means of the Affurance of Protettion, and of
the Bad too, by the Terror of Juftice, It was
upon this Confideration that the Roman Emperors
in their Ediéts made this Piece of Service for the
publick Good, as meritorious as any A& of Piety,
or religious Worfhip.

Our own Lawsdemonftrate how much our Le-
giflators, and particuiarly how highly that great
Prince King Henry the sth, and his Parliament,
thought this Nation concerned in providing for
the Security of Traders, and {couring the Seas
ol Rovers and Free-booters.  Certainly there ne-
ver was any Age wherein our Anceftors were not
extraordinary zealous in that Affar, looking
upon it, as it is, and ever will be, the chief Sup-
port of the Navigation, Trade, Wealth, Strength,
Reputation and Glory of this Nation.

Gentlemen, our Concern, as our Trade is,
oucht in Reafon to be rather greater than that
of our Iore-fathersy we want no manner of In-
ducements, no Motives to ftir us up, whether
we confider our Intereflt or Honour 3 we have not
only the facred Word, but alfo the glorious Acts
of the beft of Kings, which fufficiently manifeft
to us, that the Good and Safety of this Nation is
the preateft Care of his Life,  Let every Man
thercfore, who pretends to any thing of a true
Fouglifh Spirit, readily, chearfully follow o goad,
fo great, {o excellent an Example, by afliling
and contributing to the utmoft of his Power and
Capacity at all Times towards the carrying on his
noble and generous Deligns for the common
Good, and particularly at this Time, by doing;
all that he can, to the Lnd that by the Admi-
niftration of equal Juftice, the Difcipline of the
Seas, on which the Good and Safety of this Na-
tion cntirely depends, may be fupported and
maintained,

Theu the Witnelfes being fwornin Court, the Grand
Fury withdrew to bear their Evidence 5 and in
the mean Tume T, Vaughan, J. Murphey,
and Tim. Brenain, were arrafgued, whom
the Keeper of Newgare, by Order, brought to
the Bar,

Cl. of Arr. T. Vaughan, Hold up thy Hand s
which bz bid,) Thou ftandeft indicted, &3¢,

Art thou Guilty of this High Treafon where-
of thou flandeft indifted, or Not uilty ?

T. Vaughan. Not guilty,

CL of Arr. Gulprit, How wilt thou be tried ?

T. Vanghan. By God and this Country,

Cl. of Arr. God fend thee a good Deliverance,

Cl. of drr. f. Murphey, Hold up thy Hand s
(which be did.)  Thou ftandeft indicted, &5,

How fayclt thou, 7. Murphey, Art thou
Guilty of the High Treafon whereof thou
ftandeft indiCted, or Not guilty 2

F. Murpbey, Not guilry,

Cl, of Arr. How wilt thou be tried ?

. Murphey, By God and the King,

Officer. You mult fay, by God and my Coun-
try.
Cl, of Arr. God fend thee a good Deliverance,

Cl. of Air. Bring Tim, Benain vo the Bar, (who
was brought accordingly.)

CL. of Arr. Tim. Brenain, Have youany Copy
of your Indiftment ?

Tim, Brenain, Yes,

Cl. of Arr. When had you it ?

Tim. Breaain, "This Day Se’ennighe,

Cl. of Arr. Tim. Brenain, Flold up thy Hand,
(which bz did.) Thou ftandelt indicted, &,

How fayelt thou, Arc thou Guilty of the
High Treafon whereof thou ftandeit indicted, or
Not gutlty ?

Tim, Brenain, Not guilty.

Cl. of Arr. How wilt thou be tied?

T. Brenain. By God and my Country,

Cl. of Arr. God fend thee a good Deliverance.

Mr. Mompeffun. Wil your Lordfhips pleafe
that he may be tried now ?

L. C. J. Tr¢by. Docs he defire to be tried now 2

My, Mompeflon. Yes, my Lord, there is no I'-
vidence againtt him, and he 15 fick,

Mr. Sel, Gen. We are not now preparea {or
the Tral.

L. C. J. Treby. If the King’s Council and tha
Prifoner be agreed, with all my Heart,

L. C. J, Hoft, He may be trica wich the reft,

Then T. Vaughan, J. Murphey, and T. Pre-
natn bad Netice to prepare for Lot Trials
on Fviday aext, at Two of the Cluck fin fhe
ftericoi,

Thei: the Grand Juis came iinto Ceurt.

Cl. of Air. Gentlemen of the Grand Jury, aie

you agreed 1n your Bills? :

Grand fury. Ycs.

Cl. of Arr. Bitla wera aganll 7eleph Dozl
Ed. Ferfeith, I, My, 177, Bifhon, fames Lewis,
and . Sparkes, for Piracy and Robbery.

Cl, of Ari. Keeper of Newgate, let Jofeph Diro-

for, T, Farfiith, 1750 Moy, Wil Bifiip, 177,

Lewis, and f. Sparkes vo the Bar.  (W70ich s
done accordingly.)

Cl. of Ar. Jofeph Dazcfon, hold up thy Hand,
(Which be did. )

Ed. Forfeith, hold up thy Hand.
did. )

IV. May, holdup thy Hand. (/7bich be did.)

7V, Bifhop, hold up thy Hand. (JFhihbe Jdid.)

Fames Lewis, hold up thy Hand,  (77ich Lz
did.)

Fo. Sparkes, hold up thy Hand, (7770ich b did. )

(TFhich e

Then the Indi€tment was read, and fet forth,

That Henry Every, alias Brideman, Jofeph Dav-
fon, Edward Forfeith, William May, William
Bithop, James Lewis, aizd John Spaikes, /aie
of London, Marincis, oit ihe goth of Nay, i
the 010 Year of the Reigir of wur Sovereigin Lord
King Withaw, and the late Qureenny did, againf!
the Peace of God, and onr foid Sovereign Lerd
the King that wow is, and the late Quees, by
Force of Arme, uron the Ligh and oen Scas, in
a cerlaiin Place, about three Leagues from the
Groyne, and within the Furifiliction of the dAdumi-
raity of Lngland, piratically and feloionfly fir
tpon one Charles Gibfon, a Sulje? of o faid
Sovereign Lord the King that now is, and of the
Inte Ruecn, being then and there Commander of a
certain Verchant-Ship, called the Charles the Se-
cond, cariying 40 Pleces of Crdnaice, belonging

i



i 696. 0. Ba
to certain Subjects of the faid King, and the late
Ducen, (1o the Furor's as yet :mlf;:m{: )s and then
and there put the faid Charles Giblon in fo-
dily Fear of bis Life ; aind then and there, within
the Furifdiclion aforcfaid, felonionfly and piratically
did fteal, take and corry away from the faid
Charles Gibfon, the faid Ship, called the Charles
the Second, ber Tackle, Apparel, and Furniture,
of the Value of Oiie Thoufand Pounds 5 Forly Pieces
of Ordnauce, of the Value of Five Huidred Poynds s
One Huidred Fufees, of the Value of One Hundyed
Poiids s ifteen Ton of Bread, of the Value of Que
Hundred and Fifty Pounds 5 and Two Hundred
Pair of IWoollen Stockings, of the Value of Ten
Pounds, in the Poffeffion of the faid Charles Gib-
{fon thei being s the Ship, Goods, and Chattels of
the Sulbgecls of our faid Sovercign Lovd the King, asd
the late Queeir, (10 the Fuiors unknown) agaisft the
Peace of our faid Sovereign Lord the King, and the
late Quecn, their Crown, and Dignitics, &c.

How {ay’lt thou, Fofeph Dawfon, art thou
Guilty of this Piracy and Robbery, or Not
ouilty ?

Jof-Dawjan. I am ignorant of the Proceedings,

Ojficer. He pleads Ignorance,

Cl. of Arr. You mult plead Guilty, or Not
aullty.

Yof. Dawsfon. Guilty.

Cl. of Arr. Flow fay’lt thou, Ed, Forferth, are
thou Guilty, or Not guity?

Ed. Forfeith, Not guilty ?

Cl. of Arr. How wilt thou be try’d ?

Ed. Ft??_‘ﬁ’ftf.}. By God and my Cmm{ry,

Cl. of Arr, How fay’lt thou, 77/, NMay, art
thou Guilty, or Not guilty? )

IV, May, Not guilty.

Cl of Arr. How fay’lt thou, IV Bifbop, art
thou Gutlty, or Not guilty ?

II°. Biflop. 1 delire to hear the whole Indié-
ment read again,

L. C. J. Helt. You have heard it juft now, and

may hear 1t agamn 1f you defire i,

177, Bifbop. The former Indi&tment.

L. C. [. Holt. No, there is no Occafion for
that, this 15 an IndiCtment for a Fu& diftind:
from that,

Cl. of Arr. This 1s a new Indi®ment, not the
old one.  Art thou Guilty of this Piracy and
Robbery, or Not guilty ?

IV, Biflip. Not guilty.

Clof drr. How fay’lt thou, FYames Lewis,
art thou Guilty, or Not guilty ?

J- Lewis. Not guilty.

Gl of dri. How fay’ft thou, F. Sparkes, art
thou Guilty, or Not guilty ?

J. Sparies, Not guilty.

Cl.of Adrr, How wilt thou be try’d? (s of
the vt )

J- Sparkes, By God and my Country,

Cl. of Arr. God fend thee a good Deliver-
ance.

Cryeir, O Yes, &, You good Men of the
City of Londen fummoned to appear here this
Day, to try between our Sovereign Lord the
King, and Prifoners at the Bar, anfwer to your
Names ds you are called, and fave your Ifues,

Cloof dri. Jo. Degrave, Bewjamin Hatley,
Jo. dyres, &,

L. C. J. Helr. Have you any of the former
Jury 1n this-Pannel ?

Cl.of drr. Yes, my Lord,

~ for Felony and Piracy.

5

Counfellor Conyers, We fhall except againtt
them for the King,

L. C. J. Hoft. 1f you have returned any of the
former Jury, you have not donc well 3 for that
Verdict was a Difhonour to the Juftice of the
Natton,

Cler. of Arr. You, the Prifoners at the Bar,
thefe Men you hear called, are to pafs between
our Sovereign Lord the King, and you 3 if there-
fore you will challenge any of them, you are to
challenge them as they come to the Book to be
{worn, and beforc they are fworn.

Then they were called over, and fome beting challenged
foi the King, and foe by the Prifoners, the Per-
Jons fworn in this Fury were thefe :

1 (Alex. Pollinton,

| | %. Glover,

{ <‘ Nath, Carpenter,
£ Fo. Bickley,

| Natn, Tiroughlon,
HHum. Soutd.

7. Degrave,
7. dyres,
G. Broom,
T. Hicks,
R. Meakiis,
T Shelfwell,

Cler. of Arr. Make Proclamation.

Cryer. O yes, If any one can inform my
Lords, the King’s Juftices, the King's Serjeant,
the King’s Attorney General, or is Majelly’s
Advocate in his High Court of Admiralty, bes
lore this Inquelt be taken, of the Piracy and
Robbery whereof the Prifoners at the Bar {land
indicted, let them come forth and they fhall be
heard, for the Prifoners fltand at the Bar up-
on thewr Deliverance ; and all others may de-
part,

Then the Grand Jury came into Court again,
having found two othier Biils againit the Pri-
foners at the Bar, one for piratically rtaking
away a Moorif Ship, and another for comnutting
Piracy on two Ships belonging to Denmark.

And then the Grand Jury was adjourned to Iri-
day next, at two a Clock in the Afternoon.

Cler. of Arr. Ld. Forfeith, hold up thy Hand,
(and {o of the reft) : You that are {worn, look
upon the Prifoners, and hearken to their Caule s
they ftand indicted, €.

Mr. Whitaker., May it pleafe your Lordfhips,
and you Gentlemen of the Jury, the Pnfoncrs
at the Bar ftand indicted for Felony and Piracy,
for that they, about the goth of Aay, in the Oth
Year of the Reign of his prefent Majefty King
Witliam, did make an Affanit on Captain Givfou,
Commander of the Ship Chailes the Second, and
put him 1n fear of his Life, aund piratically fiole
away the Ship and all the lurniture; and
this 1s laid to be againft their Duiy and Alle-
giance, and againft the Peace of our Sovereign
Lord the King, his Crown and Dignity ; to
which Indi¢tment they have pleaded Not guilty.
We fhall go on to call our Witnefles, and prove
the Charge agamnft the Prifoners at the Bar, and
doubt not but you will do your Duty.

Then Dr. Littletoin, Advocat: -General to his
Majefty, in his High Courc of Admiralty, fpake
as follows,

Gentlemen of the Jury,

QU bave beard the Indifiment opened, and <we
fhall now call our Witineffis, <who will relate to

yoit what enormons and horrid Crimes the Prifoners at

the Bar bave committed in the Profecution of the Fact
laid
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Inid in the Indiciment : Crimes, that the bare Inten-
tioity had they wot taken Effect, would bave merited
the hizheft Puniflmment : But this is not their Cafe,
for they were not difappoinied of their <vicked Lufts
and Defires s for as their Crimes are great, fo bave
they beer confummalte as well as voluntary and ma-
licions, T anay well fay, toat their Wickednefs bas
been as boundlefs and as mevcilefs as the Element
spoir which their Crimes have been commilted 5 noy
is theve any Part of the World ihat bath not becn
fenfible of their Rage and Barbarity.

Ticrefore, Gentlemen, as you are Lovers of Chii-
Siauity, as you are Lovers of Hongfly, nay, as you
are Lovers of your felvesy <wbo bear the Charalier
of bonet Meny if wwe prove this Charge azainft the
Prifoncrs, yor muft and onght 1o find them Guilty,
rememvriing that the doing Fullice upon wicked and
proflizate Meir, 15 the greateft Mercy and ProteStion
to the Good and Hongft. e fhall therefore proceed
to call oni [Viticllesy wot denbting but that you will

ot like hongft Men, for the Honour and 1Welfare of

vouir Country, awilhout baving any Refpet to the
difeigirable Proceedings of he former fury.

Mr. [Phitaker, Call Yo, Gravet.  (He appeared
and awas fworn.)  Let him ftand up,

* Mr. Sol. Gen. Mr, Gravet, pray
will you give my Lords and the Jury
an Account of what you know of the
Prifoners running away with the Ship Charles the
Second.

J. Gravel, T was Second Mate in the Ship at
that Time.  There was violent Hands laid on
me, I was feized, and a Piftol clipp’d to my
Breaft, and carry’d away.,

Mr. Sol. Gen, Who did it ? Begin before,

=S Jﬂilﬂ
1I:ltx"lt: o

£ Gravet, §was feiz'd by the Carpenter of

the Ship 3 he took me by the Tlivoar, and clapy’d
a [iftol to my Brealt,

L. C. J. Treby, Begin where the Ship was
lying,

L. C. ] Holt. You wasa Mate in this Ship :
Now pray give an Account of the whole Mat-
ter.

J. Graver, 1 was upon my Watch upon the
Deck.

Prifeners. Tray fpeak up.

/. Graver. And there was a Boat came fromt
the Fames Galley, with People in her: And as
foon as the Boat came, the Carpenter feiz’d me,
and 10ox me by the Throat, and clapp’d a
Pritol o me, and Gid, iF T relifted T was 2
dead Man. They took me, one by one Arm,
and another by the other, and led me to my
Cabbin, and one with a Piflol ftood at my
Cabbin-door, till they were got two Leagues
without the Graywe,  Then Every came to fpeak
to Captain Gibfon, who was then fick, and was
muarded on both Sides 5 and when he had done
tpeaking with him, and was return’d from Capt.
Gibfair, he came to me again, and faid, T luppole
you do notintend o go with us: T faid, I would
ot Then I and the reft that would not go
with them, had Liberty to go afhore 3 and I
would have gone to my Cofler, and taken my
Cioties, bue they would not et mes and told
me I thould cany no more than the Clothes on
my Back.

Mr. §o. Gewr. Did any of the Prifoners at the
i {ay fo?

7. Grovet. That T cannot tel].

Mr. Conyers. "Then go on,

7. Gravet. Then I went to Every, and T had
fome of my Clothes, he was fo kind to give ma
them ;3 he gave me a Coat and Wallcoar, and
his Commiffion that he left bebind him s and
V. May took mre by the Hand and withed me well
home, and bid me remember him to his Wife.

Mr. Conyers. Was there Liberty for any of them
that would, to go athore?

7. Graves. Captain Gibfou told me fo, and ther
were about feventeen went ofl.

Mr. Conyers. No Matter vhat Contain G
told you, you fay you went offs Mizhr anv oo
that would, go?

F. Gravet, That I cannot tell.

Mr. Coiveis, You fay there vas about foven-
teen went oft ;3 would the Boat hold mopz?

7. Gravzl, Yes, S,

Mr. Cewper. Did you fee any hindered thas
would have gone ofi’? Were any ol the Prifuners
at the Bar there?

f. Grawel, No.

Mr. Sof. Gear. 1o you know Ed, Fuifeith, &c,?

7. Gravel, 1 know fome of them.

Mr. Coizyers, Name the Men that you fay you
know.,

S Gravet, Jofeph Dacefour, 17, 30v, 7. Sravkes.

Mr, Sel. Gen, "T'hey belonged to whar Ship ?

T Gravet, "To the Coarles,

Mr. Ceiyeis, Was there net a Boat came from
the Ship Fames, before you wvent avway 2 W
there any of the Prifoners at the Bar that came
in that Bout ?

f. Gravet, There were about vwenty-fix that
we had Account of. -

Mr. Conyers. From what Ship did they come?
?. Giaval, Irom the :?ifﬂffi.

My, Conyers. Weie any of the Prifoners ar the
Bar any of them?

/. Gravet, Indeed, Sir, T cannot tell,

Cler, of Arir. Call T Diadt, (1702 appzaied,) aicd
was feoori,)

Mr, 8al. Gen. Mr, Dty was you aboard the
Ship called the Charles the Secoird, when fhe was
carried away?

7. Druit, No, Sir,

My, Sol. Gein, Do you know any thing of the
carrying of that Ship away?

T, Druit, T was not in that Ship s [was Mate
of the-Fames 3 and about Nine came one from
aboard ‘the Charles the Secoud, and afl’d me for
the drunken Boatfwain 2 And 1 reply’d fhore,
and e went away again, and faid the Skip was
going to be run away withal,  Whereupon I went
with ten Men to recover the Ship; and afier I
had advifed with the Commander, I ordered the
Pinnace to be mann’d y and when I came, the laft
that went into the Boat was one Piey and I bid
them put back, and they would not, bur went
away to the Ship Chayles,

Mr, Conyers. How many werg there that went
away 1 that Boar?

T. Druit. About F ive and Twenty.

Mr., Conyers. Did you know all the Men ? Were
any of the Prifoners at the Bar there? ook on
them,

T, Druit. Yes, my Lord, there was Ed. Foi
Jetthy W, Bifbop, and Fa. Lewis,

L. C. J. Holt, What Boat did they oo awav
with, the Fames Boar © T '

Z. Druit. Yes, my Lord.

L.C. j. Hsit. Then they came from the Famesto
the Charles the Second, Name their Names agai,

g‘_‘
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T Druit. Ed. Forfeithy Fa. Lewis, and
IV, Bifbop. |

Mr./bel. Gen. You faw them go off, did you
not ¢

T Druit. Tt was fo dark that we could not fee
them.

Mr. Cowper. Were thefe three Men fent 2

7. Druit. They were {ent. |

Mr. Cowper. Ordid they go of their own Head?

T Druit. No, I do not fay fo; but I went to
command them back again, and they refus’d.,

Mr. Cowper. Did they make any Anfwer ?

¢’ Dryit. No, they only went away damnmng
and [inking.

Mr. Conyers. Were there any Guns fent after
them ¢

T. Diuit. Yes.

Mr. Conyers. What was 1t for?

T Druil, It was to bring them back again,

Mr. Cowper. And they would not come back?

T. Druit. They did not come.

Mr. Cowper. Then they would not come,

Cler, of srr. Call David Creagh.  (Wha was
feori.) | |

Prifimer. This Man is a Prifoner for Prracy,
my Lord,

L. C. J. Holt. What if he be?

Prifoner. 1 do not underftand Law ; I hope
your Lordfhip will advife us.

L. C. . Helt. T will do you all Right. If hebe
fo, that is no Objetion againft him; he may be
a wood Witnefs for all that.

Cier. of Arr, He is not a Prifoner for Piracy,
but for Treafon.

L. C. J. Ho:t. Tho® he be a Prifoner for Trea-
fon, he is not attainted.  What 1s his Name?

Cler. of Arr. David Creagh. -

Mr. Sel. Gein. What do you know about th
Prifoners running away with the Slip Charles ¢

D. Creash, Upon the yth of May, 1694, 1
came to the Groyire, In Company with the Boat-
{wain and feveral others, on board the Charies
and when I was going in to the Captam of the
Charles, Captain Gibfeir, 1 found Mr, Every, the
Caipenter, and fome others, ¢rinking a Bowl of
Punch : And after T was come from the Cap-
rain, I came and fate down ‘with them, and
Mr, May drank a Health to the Captain, and
Profperity to their Voyage: And we not know-
ing their Defign then, thought 1t was to our Jaw-
ful Captain, and Profperity to thc Voyage he
was defign’d for.

L. C. J. Holt. What was your Voyage ?

D. Creagh. It was to the Spanifp Indies,  And
afterwards the Company broke up, and retired,
and went to their Cabins,  And when we were in
our Cabins, we heard a great Noife above Beck 3
and Captain Humphreys, that commanded the
Gally, called to us, to tell us his Men were run
away with the Boat, and were gone to Captain
Gibfoir. To which Zvery anfwered, that he knew
that well cnough: So the Men came aboeard 3
and as I was coming out of my Cabmn to {ce
what the Matter was, I was met by Every, the
Carpenter, and two Datchiren 5 and they obliged
me to retire again to my Cabin. And Caprain
Huanpbieys fired two Guns at us.  But we pre-
fently got out of Reach of the Guns, and pro-
ceeded on the Defign.  And I came out of my
Cabin, and went on the Quarter-deck, where I
met Lvery and the Carpenter togethers Lwery
was conning the Ship,

for Felony and Piracy. 7

L.C. J. Holt. What is the Meaning of that ?

D. Creagh. That 1s, to direlt in the fteering
of her. So Ewery took me by the Hand, and
afk’d me if I would go with him? And I an-
{wer'd, I did pot know his Defign, He faid,
there were but few that knew it ~ Says I, Tell
me who do know it, that if you will not tcll
me your {elf, I may afk them that can tell me.
But he faid, we fhould all know by To-merrow
Morning Eight a Clock, I told him, that would
be too late to repent of the Delign? The Car-
penter ftood by him, and faid, Do you not fee
this Cock ? Yes, fays I, I do. Says he, This
Man, and old May, and Kuight, 1 can truft with
any thing 3 they are true Cocks of the Game,
and old Sportfmen. Then, faid I, 1 fuppofe
they iknow your Delign,  Yecs, fays he, they do 3
and if it werc a Thing of ten times the Confe-
quence, they fhould know it. Upon this, the
Carpenter came to mie, and faid, If you do not
go down, I will knock you on the Head., And
as I was going down, I met with /7, May, the
Prifoner at the Bar., What do you do here?
{ays he. I made him no Anfwer, but went down
to my Cabin ; and he faid, God damn you, you
deferve to be fhot through the Head, and he then
held a Piltol to my Head.  Then I went to my
Cabin, and prefently came Orders from Every,
that thofe that would go athore, fhould prepare
to be gone. And when the Captain was got out
of Bed, who was then very ill of a Fever, Every
came and faid, I am a Man of Fortune, and mult
{eck my Fortune.  Says Capt., Gibforr, I am forry
this happens at this T'ime.  Says he, If you will
go in the Ship, you fhall ftill command her.
No, fays Captain Gibfon, 1 never thought you
would have {erved me o, who have been kind to
all of you; and to go on a Defign againft my
Owners Orders, I will not do 1. Then, fays
Ewvery, prepare to go athore.  Upon which, the
Caprain, and feveral others of us, went into the
Boat.  'When we were by the Ship’s Side, I heard
them order the Doftor to be fecured s but if
there was any more would go into the Boat, they
might: And we came into the Boat, to the
Number of Sixteen 3 and they gave us four Oars
in the Pinnace, and f{et us adrift.

L. C. |J. Holt, Where did he fet you?

D, Creagh, He fec us aboard the Fames, my
Lord.

L. C. J. Holt. That 15, you were turned off
from this Expedition,

D. Creagh. Yes, my Lord.

Mr. Conyers. Was there any Room for more
in the Boat?

D. Creagh. Yes there was.

L. C. J. Holt. Was therc Liberty for any more
to o0 !

D. Creagh. Yes, my Lord.

Mr. Sel. Gen, What do you know of the Pri-
foners at the Bar?

D. Creazh. | know only 177, May.

Mr. Cowper. What Time paft from the coming
of the Boat, to the Time of your going off ¢

D. Creagh. About two Hours, Sir.

Mr, Cowper. Was there any Guns fired in that
Time ?

D. Creagh. Yes, Sir, one or two from the .
Fames, by Capt, Humpbreys. _

Mr. Cowper. Was this done 1n the Ship with
Silence? Or was therc any Uproar, or Oppoli-
tion ¢ n
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D. CGreagh. No: There could be no Oppo-
fition 3 for the Men came from the whole Squa-
dron, and came upon us, and furprized us, being
affifted by thofe that belonged to the Charles,

M. Cotzper. But did No-body make Oppofi-
tion to their going ? Did not Captain Gibfen ?

D. Creagh, No, Captain Gibfon could not, be-
mg fick.

L. C. J. Holt. But he went afhore?

D. Creagh. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. ]. Holt. Was any Body ftopp’d that would
go *

D. Creagh. No, my Lord, none but the Doc-
tor.

Mr. Sol. Genr. Now call Fo, Dan, (IFho appeaied
aund was [wori.)

Mr, Conpers. 'What Ship were you aboard of
at the Groyne ?

. Dan. The Charles the Second ?

Mr. Coiyers. Now, pray give my Lord and
the Jury an Account what you know of the ta-
king away of the Ship Chailes the Second, and
what pafs’d there?

¥. Don. Yes, Sir: We came to the Groyie,
and had been there about three or four Months,
and we had been about eight Months out of Eig-
land, and we lay for our Wages, and there was
no Wages to be got.  But mafmuch as we want-
ed Wages, Fvery, and feveral others, contrivid
to carry this Ship away. So that Nighe, which
was Suiiday, they went afhore; and when they
came aboard again, made fome Men privy to
it, whom I know not, And the Adoaday follow-
ing, I think, the Packet went out in the Morn-
ing, and the Night being fair, was ordered to
aive Notice; and they came to the Doze, and
about Nine or Ten her Boat broke off, and fhe
haled us; for they told Captain Humphieys they
were coming to run away with our Ship,  So he
hales the Zames 3 and prefently fome of the Of-
ficers came and order’d their Pinnace to be
mann’d, and it was {fo, And when they gave
this Order, there was Zvery and twenty-five or
tweaty-fix Men,  And as they came aboard, our
Cables were cur, and ready to go.  And coming
under the Caftle, we cut all the Boats but two,
and {lood out to Seaabout two or three Leagues;
and there Zvery went to Captain Gibfoir, and,
as they fard, to afk him if he would go with
them, or not. He faid, No. Then he fuid,
He muft prepare to go afhore s and he did fo,
and feveral others with him, And the Word was
aiven about, that they that would go afhore
might go; but whether thefe Men heard it or
no, [ cannot tell ;3 and no Man’s Name was men-
tion’d to be flopp’d, but the Doftor., And when
they went away, they cry’d, There was Water in
the Boat, and they delired a Bucket of us, to
heave 1t over, and we gave them one s and away
they went, I think, about fifteen ol them, and
no more did offer to go as I faw, nor did I fee
any hinder any that would go: And afterwards,
they that went off went about their Bufinefs, and
we about our Bulinefs.  And we came to the Jf
of May, and victual’d our {elves there s and there
we met with three Englifh Ships, out of which we
took fome Necellaries for our felves, and among
the relt {everal Men 3 nine Men we took out of

them.
My, Sol, Gen. Were the Prifoners at the Bar

in the Ship, when they went away ¢

Fo Dan, Yes,

Mr, 8ol. Gen. Name them.

7. Dan. Ed. Forfeith, IV, May, J. Lewis, Jo,
Sparkes, W, Bifbop.

Mr, Conyers. Which of them was aboard the
Charles, that belong’d to her?

7. Dan, IV, May and 7. Sparkesy and Ed. For-

feith, Fa. Lewis, and /., Bifbop, came from the

Fames,

Mr. Cowper, Was it not generally underftood,
that they were going to run away with the Ship,
when they came to Capt. Gibfon ¢

¥, Dan. Ycs, Sir, they knew to be fure.

Mr. Sol. Gen, Did you know that they atlented
to 1t ?

¥, Dain. No, Sir, I did not hear them fay fo.

Mr. J. Eyie. Did they defire to go afhore with
the reft?

F. Dair, 1 faw none hindered.,

L. C. 1. Ilels, Was Ed. Foirfeith n the Ship
then ?

¥. Dan. Ed. Foifeith was in the Ship then,

L.C. J. 1olt. Was heat the Jfie of May, taking
in Neceffaries with you ?

¥. Daun, Yes, Sir,

L. C. J. Helt. What did he do in the Com-

pany ?
¥. Dan. Fe was in the Ship, and came from

the Fames.

L. C. J. Hddt. And fo did Difoop, and fo did
Lewis?

7. Dan, Yes, my Loird, thefe three; and the
other two belong’d to the Chailes,

Mr. IPhitaker. Did any of the Ship’s Crew go
athore atthe [fe of Nuy?

. Dan. Yes, Sir, [ think fo.

Mr, S¢l. Gen, But Ithink, you fay, that the
Word was given about, that any might go that
would,

Mer, Conyers. Go on with the Proceedines after
you were at the Iffe of May.

¥. Dan. After we had victual'd, we took in
fome Men,

Prifoners, We have been try’d for thatalready,
my Lord.

L. C. J. It Go on.

¥, Dan. Afer we had been there, and took 1n
what we had Occafion for, our Quarter-matter
faid, he would give them Bills for wiat he took
of them, Then we went w the Coaft of Guineg,
and took feveral Negroes, and carried them away
with us.  And alterward we went to the Jland of
Piinces, where lay two Danes, and we foughe
them, and took them and after we had talen
them, fome of the Men went athore at the Jaid
of Princes, and others went along with us 3 and
we brought the Ships to Paudeps, and burnt one,
and carried one with us.  Then we came to Cape
Lopes.

L. C. J. Holt. Where 1s that?

F. Dan. Under the Zquino&ial-Iinc; and
there we fired a Shot through the little one
fink her, for the Men could not agrec, and o we
could not carry her with us,  'We went aboyt the
Cape, and touch’d at Madagafar,

Dr. Littleton. Had not thele Men their Pare
and Share of the Plunder ?

L. C J. Helt. You go toc faft, Sir,

Mr, Conyers. What was the next Ship you mee
with, after you had rounded the Cape?

7+ Dan. The next was a fmall Veffel, about
30 or 40 Ton, and we put her afhore, and rook
a fmall Matter out of her, and let her lie; and

there
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there we put this Gentleman, Mr. May afhore.
And we fecing three Euglifh Ships a coming, we
lefi him there, and went to the Equinochal Line :
And afterwards, for want of Bread and Water,
we came again, and took another {mall Veffel,
and fome Rice and Pody outof her, and {unk her,

and then went to the Cape again, and took in 77, .

May again, and met another Veflel, and took
Rice and Meal out of her, and funk her too.
And then we went to the Red Sea to a Town called
Mzat 3 and the People would not trade with us,
and we burnt it.  And thence we went up to the
Red Sea, as far as wecould : And going up to the
Cape Adin, we met with two Eiglifh Privateers
more, and they came and joined with us,

L.C. J. Holt. You call them Privateerss but
were they fuch Privateers as you were 2

%. Dain. Yes, my Lord. 1 fuppofe they had
Commiticns at firft, but I {fuppofe they did not
run fo far as thar.

Mr. Coiyers. Did you go all on the fame De-

fign * . .

¥, Dan. Yes, they failed on with us, and we
made the belt of our Way, and came up into
the Red Sca in a hitile Time, and came to an An-
chor at Bebs Key, and had lain there but a Night
and a Day, and there came up three Eaglifbmei
more from America, and they likewile conforted
with usy and we lay there about five Weeks;
znd in that Time we expelted the Fleet to come
down.

vir, C.."H.:}‘r.’i'_f. What Fleet?

%, Daz The Moorifh Fleet, that came from
XMedba,  They pals’d us on Saturday Night un-
feen, and wetook a Veflel, which zave us an Ac-
count that they were gone. And then we follow-
ed them = and about three Days after we made
Land, we cune up with one of them of about
o or g07 Tozss, and we fired a Broadfide at her,
and Sl Siet, and took hery, which, after we
h:at tinei her, we plundered, and took out fome
Gnll and Silver,

Mr, Cozyers. And what did you do with it ?

7. Dau. We brought it aboard our Ship.,

Mr. Coryeis, Did you fhare 16?2

7. Dai. INot then, but after we took the other
Ship.

Mr. Conyers. What was that other Ship ?

7. Dan, After we had taken her, we put fome
Men aboard to keep her with us 3 and about two
Days afier we were lying at Anchor at §t. Fobir's,
and there was a great Ship called the Guifivay 4
and we weich’d Anchor, and fougnt her abouc
two Hows, and took her, and put fome Men
aboard her, and plunder’d her.  And after we
had done as much as we thought conventent, we
fent her to Swrat with the People in her,  And
then we {lcod farther to the Zudian Coaft, and
thared our Money about 2 Week after.

L. C. J. {5l. That was a brave Prize, was it
not, the beft you had all the Voyage 2

J. Dair. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. J. Ibit. Did you all fhare ?

7. Dan. Yes, all that were in the Ship.

L. C. J. Helt. You have given a good Account
of this Muatter.  Was Ed. Forfeith there ?

7. Dar. Yes, my Lord.

L.C. J. Hdt, What did he do? Was he
aflive ?

7. Daun. 1 did not fee him act.

L. C J. Holt, Had he a Share ?

Yor, V,
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7« Dan. Yes, my Lord, he had.

L. C. J. Holt, Was IV, May there ?
7. Dan. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. J. Holt. What did he do there ?

.}‘. Dan. He could do but little then 5 he had
his Share,

L. C.J. Holt. And when youtook him in again,
what did he do? Did he do his Bufincfs as a Sea-
man ¢

S+ Dan. Yes, ray Lord, till he was fick.

L. C. J. Holt. Was 17, Bifhop there ?

S Dan. Yes, my Lord, he wasamong the reft.

L. C. J. Holt. What did he do? Did he confent
and agrec to what was done?

/'« Dan. He had Share of the Moncy.

L. C. J. Holt. Did Ya. Lewis thare too ?

J+ Dan. He had a Share, as far as was allowed
by the Company.,

T_P.. C. J. tolt. Did F. Sparkes fhare with you
too |

J. Dan. Yes, my Lord, as far as the Company
thought fit to give him.

Mr. Cowper. When you fay as the Company
thought jit, what do you mean ? How did they
fhare 1t?

J- Dan. Some had 1000/, fome 500, others
300.

M. Cowper. Had all the Prifoners fome Share ?

. Dan. Yes, Stry all had fome Share.

Mr. Wbitaker. What did you do with the
Charles the Second, after the Voyage ?

J. Dan. We left her at Providence.

L. C. J. Helt. 1t any of you Prifoners at the
Bar will atk him any Queftions, you may,

Mr. Juftice Tuston. What Provifions were 3.
board the Charles when fhe was taken away ?

7. Dan. Icannot tell,

Mr. Juftice Tarton, What Quantity of Bread
was there?

. Dan. A pretty deal, Icannot tell the Quan-
tity.

Mr. Jultice Tuiton. And were there any Guns
aboard her and fmall Arms ?

J. Dai. Yes, my Lord, there were,

IV, May. My Lord, may 1 fpeak for my felf?

L. C. J. Holt. If you will afk him any Quef-
tions you may 3 you fhall be heard again to fpeak
for your felf by and by.

W, May. 1 defire he may be afk’d where I was
taken fick ?

: lLP C. J. Hoit. He afks you, where he was taken
ick :

7. Dan. I cannot juftly tell that, I thinls it was
at Allibore, at the Coalt of Guisen,

. May, 1did not lie down wizh ¢ ?

7. Dan. No you did not; but your firft being
taken fick was at, Alibore,

1. May. My Lord, I defire you will afk him,
whether he thinks I had any Knowledge of the
going away of the Ship? |

L. C. J. Holt, You hear what he fays; what do
you fay?

7. Dan. 1 know nothing of that,

L. C. J. Holt, You were there, and you had a
Share of the Prize 5 you drank an Health to the
Succefs of your Voyage?

H. May. 1 hope, my Lord, you will not be
angty for afking Queftions.

L.C. J. Holt. No, no.body 1s angry, you may
aflc what Queftions you will.

C Thex
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Then Philip Middleton was called aud fuvori.

M. Conyers. Pray tell what you knov of taking
aivay the Ship Charles the Second 2 |

P Middleton. 1 cannot fay any thing of running
away with the Ship, for I was aflecp then 5 bue
afterwards, in the Morning, they called up ali
1ands 5 and the Caprain faid, Livery Man
thould fhare alike, only he would have two

Shares.
1. C. . Holt, Who faid fo?

P. Middleton. Capt. Every. Irom thence they
went to Boayvis, and ook in fome Salt 3 and from
Bonyuis they went to the Iz of May, and there
they took three Eiglifb Ships, and plundered
them 3 and they took the Governor aboard thetr
own Ship till they had done, (for thea they could
demand what Victuals they had a mind to) and
then they fent him away again : And from the Jffe
of May they went to the Coaft of Guiiea, where
they put out Eaglifh Colours, to make the Na-
tives come aboard to trade 5 and when they came
aboard, they furprized them, and took their
Gold from them, and tied them with Chains, and
put them into the Hold 5 and when they came to
1 Piace called the Jlaud of Princes, they gaveleven
of them away for Slaves: And then they went
to Vandepoc, where they clean’d tiicir Ship; and
from Vaidepoe they went to Cape Lapes, and from
Cape Lopes wo Anitiba, and from Ainibe about t'hc
Cavc 3 and at Madagafear they watered their Ship,
and got Provifions, and Cows to faltup s and from
thence they went to Joainia, and from Feauna they
went to take 2 Junk, and took Rice out of her,
and funk her: and from thence they went to the
Lquino&ial Line, and becaufe they were fhort of
Water and Rice, they went back again to Foanias
and the Wind bemng contrary, they went to Cons-
meroe s and there they met a fmall Zoench Vellel,
and they took her, and funk hers and then wene
t0 Yoaima again, and there took in Mr, Mayagain:
And then went to Meat 5 and becaufe the Natives
would not trade with them, they burnt their
Town: And then they went to Bobs Key, by the
Mouth of the Red Sca: But before that, they
met with an Englifp Veflel, that was on the fame
Account that we were 3 and we rode there a Night
or two; and they faw there another Saifa coming,
which proved to be another Znglifh Vellel: And
in the Morning they faw two more; Aay, Lariel,
and [Fake, were the Captains : And on §aturday
Nieht all the Moche Fleet paficd by: And on
Swiday Morning they took another Veflel, that
told them the fauid Fleet was gone by 5 and fo
they confulted whether they fhould follow them,
or ftay there. And then they went after themand
overtook them, and took one that was about three
or four hundred Ton, and took Gold and Stlver
out of hers and fent Men aboard her to plunder
and keep her.  And next Day they {pied another
Sail, and got up their Anchor, and ftood to her,
and took her; the was called the Guafivay: they
killed feveral Men aboard, and when they had
taken and plundered the Ship, they left the Men
aboard to go to Swratagain,  And then they went
to Rachipool in the Eaft- Indies, and got Water and
Necefaries 5 and from thence to Degorees, and
watered again; and then to Dafearai, where they
fet about twenty-Gve Lrenchmen athore, and four-
teen Danes, and fome Luglifh 5 for they were
afraid, if they came to England, and were caught,

they fhould bz hang'd and they thought them-
felves there fecure.  From that Place they went
to ., tenfimn, and then to the Miand Providence in
the . Vefl-Tudies: And then they wrote a Letter
to the Governor, to know if he would iet them
come in, and faid they would prefent the Gover-
nor with twenty Pieces of Eight, and two Pieces
of Gold, if he would let them come in 5 and the
Captain, becaufe hie had a double Share, he of-
fered forty Pieces of Eight, and four of Gold;
and with that they fent fome Men down, Adams
and others, with the Letter : And they came
again, with a Letter, from the Ifand, toae they
fhould be welcome, and come and go again when
they pleafed.

Mr. Coiyers. Look on the Prifoners at the Bar,
were they all there?

L.C. ], Helt. Do vouknow Ed. Forfiith? Wis
he there? Did he belong to the Chailes the Se-
cand 4

P. Middlcton. He came from the Faimes.

L. C.J. Lot Was TV, May there ?

P. Middl:ton, He was aboard the Chailes.

1L.C.J [l Was IV, Bifbop there?

P. Middleton, TV, Bifbop came from the Fames.

L. C.]. Holt. Was 7. Lewis there?

P, Middleton, Yes, he came from the Faimes,

L.C. 1. Holt. Was . Sparkes there?

P. Middletenn, Yes, he was aboard the Charles,

L. C. §. Helt. Had all the Men thetr Shares?

P. Middleton, Yes, fuch as the Company thought
fit to allow them, all of them.

L.C. J. Helt. Had thefcMen their Sharzs of
the feveral Prizes they took ?

P. Middleton, Yes, they had,

L. C. ]. lelt. Were they aétive in the taking
of the Prize?

P. Middletsir, They were, as faras T faw,

L. C. J. Ilelt. Were not divers otheis fet athore
befides Capt, Gibjon ¢

P. Adiddfeton. 1 never heard any repine, or wiiit
they had been afhore, or that they had never come
along with the Ship.

L.C. J. Helr. But do you know of any others
that were {et alhore ?

P Atiddlcton. Yes, a great many, M,
and feveral others,

My, Cewper, T think, you faid, fome LFivico
and Eugslify were fet athore in the Jadis,

P. Aliddleton, Yes, Sir.

Mr. Cowper, Werethey fet athore willingly ¢

P, Middlcton. They defired to be fer afhore.

Fuiy-man, Hefays, in the Morning Capt, Eveiy
called them above Deck, and gave Leave to any
to go athore, that were not willing to go with
thepy; we defire to know whether any of the
Prifoners were there at that Time ?

P. Middleton, 1 know not thats all Hands were
called up.

Mr. Jultice Tuiton. What Number of Perfons
were aboard when the Dividend was made 2

P. Mideleton, About a hundred and fixty.

Mi. Jultice Turton, What might the Shares be ?

P. Middlzton, Some a thoufand Pounds, fome
fix hundred, and fome five hundred, and foine

lefs, according as the Company thought they de-
{ferved.

Mr. Jultice Turtz, Had not youa Share 2
P. Miadletor, Yes, what the Company thought
fit, and they told me that would ferve to put me

out an APPrenticc, and that 1 fhould never go
near my Lriends,

a Fa A
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Mr. Jultice Turtorr, How much was that you

had ?

tﬂb. Middleton. Above an Hundred Pound.

Mr. Conyers. What became of it ?

Ph. Middieton. Fo. Sparkes robb’d me of 1t.
1. C. J. Holt. The King’s Counfel have done

with the Evidence, and therefore now 1s your
Time for to fpeak, if you have any thing to lay
fot your fclves,  Ed. Forfeith, what have you to
fay ?
Ed, Forfeith. My Lord, I defire you would call
Mr. Druit, and afk him whether I was one of the
P’innace’s Crew ¢

L. C. J. Helt. You hear what he fays.

T Druit. Yes, you were, and I commanded you
to come back, and you refufed.

Ed. Foirfeith, Did not you command me togo?

7. Druit. Yes, and [ afterwards commanded

ou to come back, and you refufed.

Fd. Forfeith. You did not command me back.

T. Druit. Yes, I did, and fired at you, and

fhot throuuh the Boat, ‘
Ed. Forjeith. 1 held Water wita my Oar, that

was all T could do.
L. C.J. It What did you command him to

do? |
7. Diruit. To refcue the Ship,

L.C. . Holt. Inftead of refeuing the Ship, you
run away with her, e commanded you back,
and you rctufed o come back,

Ed. Ferizith. 1 could not bring her back nyy
felf, nor come back, unlels 1 fhould leap over-
board. , o
L. C J. fivit. Have you any more to fay ?

Ed. Forfeith. My Lord, when [ was in the Boat,
I knew not who was in it, nor how many. When
I came aboard the Charles, the Sails were loofe,
and [ was in a very forry Condition ; they cut the
Boat off, and put her adrift; I could nor get into
her, fhe was gonein a Minute’s Time, 1 did not
know which Way, or what Men there were in
her, nor heard nothing ’till Twe o’ Clock the next
Day. And I hope, my Lord, as we are but poor
Sea-faring Men, and do not underftand the Law,
you will take it tnro Confideration,

L. C. J. Helt. But ail you Scamen underftand
thar Law, that 1t is not Jawiul to commit Piracy s
and he that doth, deferves to be hang’d,

Ed. Forfeith. My Lord, I never did.

L. C. J. Hdt. Did you think 1t no Piracy to
rob ?

Ed. Forfeith, 1 was forc’d to do what I did,

Mr, J. Eyre. You all compell’d one another.

&d, Forfeith, My Lord, 1 was {ent of an Ee-
rand, I hope as we are poor Men 1n this Con-
dition, you will take into Confideration.

L.C.J. folr. We fhall, Have you any more
to fay 7

£, Ferjeith. No, my Lord.

LG YL Hele, 17, May, vihat do you fay ?

iT°. May. [Here isoncof the king’s Evidence,

that teftities that [ knew nothing oi the Ship’s-

colng away 3 and I believe very few knew ity I
beiteve not above Nine or Ten,

V.. C. J. Ilt. Nene of them fay you were at
e Confuley but one {ays that you iud, Ged
i yoit, vou deferve to be fEs! thrcagh the Head
=il held a Piltol to him.

17, May. 1 never was any Iigher than the
Under-deck 5 I was coming up the Hawch-way,
and Captain Every was {tanding, an:l command.
ing the Ship., |

VoL, V.,

' ﬁr Felony and Piracy.

I1
L.C. J. Holt. Every was no Officef, he had

nothing to do to command : he was under Captain
Gibfon, and took the Ship from Gbfon.

W. May. My Lord, 1 know nothing of the
Ship’s going away.

L. C. J. Holt. You fhould have. ftuck to Cap-
tain Gibfon, and endeavoured to fupprefs the In-
folence of Ewery, Captain Gibfosr was the Com-
mander, you ought to have obeyed him j and if
any had refifted him, or gone to put a Forcé up-
on him, you fhould have ftood by him.

HW. May, 1 was furprized.

L.C. J. Holt. How ?

FI?VL May. By Captain Every, and knew nothing
of I, "

L. C. J. Helt. You were zealous from the Be-
ginning, and faid to one, Damn yot, you deferve

to be fhot through the Head.

Mr. 7. Turton, And one fays you drank a
Health to your good Voyage.

1. May. Prefeatly afeer T heard this Rumour,
I came up the Hatch-way, and Capt, Every fays;

ou, May, I believe you do not love this Way, pray
get down o your Caboin,  So I went to my Cab-
bin, which one that is now at Vrrginia could tefli-
fy s which I hope will be confidered, that I can-
not have my Witnefles for me,

L. C. J. Helt, Whar have you more to fay ?
Have you any Witnefies to call ?

W. May. 1 ftay’d in the Cabbin a confiderable
Time. I wasthinking I muft leave my old Cap-
tain without feeing him 3 and I bege’d them to
give me Leave to come to him 3 and there was
two Men ftood with naked Cutlaces, and would
not let me come to him, We had {fome Confa-
bulatton together, and I begg’d the Favour to
come 11, and at laft they permitted me 5 and the
Doctor was anomting the Commander’s T'emples,
And asI was coming along, I had my Hand cut;
and I went to the Do&or, to defire himi to bind
up my Hand. When I came out again, they be-
gan to hurry the Men away, Here was Mr, Gra-
wvet, the fecond Mate, who 1s now one of the
King’s Evidence; and I told him he fhould re-
member me to my Wife, I am not like o fee
her; for none could go, but who they pleafed :
FFor when thofe Men were in the Boat, they cry’d
to have a Buckets or elfe they thould fink, they
having three Leagues togo : And I do not know
how they could go fo far with more, when their
Boat was like to {ink with thofe that were in her,
as fome.of the King’'s Evidence have teftified.:

1..C. J. Holt. Who will youcall?

W. May. Mr, Dan.  (I7ho appear’d.)

L. C. J. Holt. Mr. Dan, anfwer the Queltion,
Whether there was calling for a Bucket feveral
Times by toe Men that were in the Boat?

7+« Dan. They did call, and a Bucket was given
them to pump with,

L.C. J. Holt. You were willing to be rid of
them.

IV, May. 1 have more to fay. Afterwards, if
I fhould have deniced to go with them, I might
have been kill’d by them 5 and I knew: not whe-
ther 1t be better to be acceffary to my own Death,
or to fuffer by the Law of the Nation.

Sit Ch. Hedges. You feem to fay that you were
under a.Conftraint and Terror. Did you make
any Complaint or Difcovery fo {oon as you had
Liberty, or at your fift coming into the King’s
Dominions ?

C 2 1. May.
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V. May, Yes, at Vargiita, o

Sir Ch. Hedges. Where clid you firft arnve 1n
England ? :

W, May, At Briflol, _

Sir Ch. Tledges. When you came to Briffol, did
you difcover 1t to any Magiflrate ?

W, May. When 1 came to Briffel, T had a
Defien to difcover it to the Lords of the Ad-
miralty. |

L. C. J. Helt. Did you go to a Magiftrate?

1V, May. [ was feveral Days in the King’s Col-
Jedor’s Houfe, and did difcover the whole to
him 5 and at Pirevidence.

L. C. J. Helt. You fpeak now of Providences
but in England who did you difcover 1t to?

V. May. 1 was taken fick, and could not go
abroad.

1..C. ]. Folt. You might have fent to the
Mayor of Briftdl, |

JV. iay. 1 kncw nothing of it, I intended to
declare it to none but the Lords of the Admi-
raty, I knew no Man there, bue two Men
that were Fellow-Tradefmen in Virgiiia, 1 came
from Virginia by the firft Ship 5 and if that Ship
had come away before the Fleer, T had been at
home long before. 1 lay fick at Briffol tour or
five Days, ond-the fifth Day I got Paflage for
Fondon in the Coach 3 and was taken three Miles
off Dath by the King’s Meffenger, by one who
betrayed me, and [ was carried back to Bath
again.  And there was the Duze of Dr:‘t?ﬂhﬂ)‘fi‘t: :
and there they examined the whole Matter, 1n
every Particular, as I have now declared to the
Court. And my Lord defired the Meflenger
thould take me away again, and fec me fake to
London 3 which was all he faid tome, 1have more
to fay, as to my being put athore at Foanna, 1
had no Place to go to, but lay in a Jamentable
Condition, I could not put Water to my Mouth
without Help, and remained ufelefs of FHands or
Tect, defpairing of my Life. I defired to go
afhore, to fee it the Air would do me any good 3
and I went afhore at Foanna, with another Man,
Guuning, and others, for Refrefhment.  So the
{econd Day we weat in, chere appears thiee Ships,
vriuch were Kafi- fidia Vien,  Caprain Lvery be-
g furpriz’d by thefe Ships, haftened his Men
and Water aboard to get outr to Sea, that he
might not be {urprized in the Road withoue his
Men on Doard, who were come athore for the
Sick.  And I told them, I will not go with you,
[ will rather truft to the Mercy of my Country-
men, or the Mercy of the Negroes: I fhould
cndanger my Life, if I go aboards if I ftay,
no queftion my Countrymen will have Compalf-
flon on me 3 and if 1 have commirted any thing
worthy of Death, they have Authority to put me
to Death according to the Law of the Nation,
And I applied myfelf to Mr, Edgcomb, when he
came alhore, and he gave me feurrilous Lan.
guage.  But I replied, $am a weak Man, for me
to itay behind 1s Death 3 1 had rather fuffer Death
by the Laws of my Country, than to be left to
the Merey of thefe Negroes. Mr, Edgcomb fays,

I will take you down with me, and will hang you
there too.,

L. C. J. Helt, Where?

IV, May. At Bombay, where he Lid I thould
be tried,  His Mate, and {everal other Englifh-
meify came to {ee me, and brought me one thing
or other to relrefh me, And at lfl, ac Nighe, he
(ent his Doftor and Purler to me, who faid, the

Captain is juft now fending his Boat for you, I
replicd, I am ready, here is all I have m the
World ; and he goes away about Twoa Clock.in
the Morning. And I remained feven or eight
Weeks at the Mercy of thofe Negroes, and had
perifhed, but that a Negroe hearing an Euglifs-
man was there, came to me 3 hc hved at Bedual-
Green, and fpoke Englifb very well,  He went
from Eugland in the Ship Rochefier, takenat Guinca
fome Time before, The Captain commandcd this
Negroe to go for the Long-boat, and turn her
adrift 3 which he does, but goes away with her
himfelf ; and in the Fight, fays, the Ship blew
up by an accidental Fire, and feveral werc loft.
This Negroe I gor to look after me, and he did
really feed me, and got me all Neceffaries be-
longing to me: And by that Means I faved my
Life. Now when Captain Every came in again, [
could not go nor ftir. _ |

L.C.J. Holt. Do not call him Captains he
was a Prrate, .

IV, May. He commanded me, I was forced to
obey him, -
L. C. J. Ilst, For that Matter, call Grovet a-
gain, becaufe you and he were very kind to-
gether 3 you fhook Hands with him, atd bid him
farewel, and remember you to your Wile, M,
Gravet, do you remember when you went into the
Boat? Did /¥, May take his leave of you, or

was he anwilling to be left behind ¢

¥. Graver, When we had Liberty to go out of
this Ship, this Man, /7. Ay, took me by the
Hand, and wilhed me well home, and bid me re-
member him to his Wife, and was very merry
and jocund, and knew whither they were go-
Ing.
Mr. J. Turtoz. Did he exprefs any Inclination
to co with you ?

¥. Giavet, No, my Lord, not at all.

1. C.J. Holt. Have you any more to fay?

117, Mav. Ycs, my Lord, I remained in tlus
Condition nill I came to Providence 5 and the
King’s lividence can teftily what I fay. 1 only
bea Mercy of this honourable Bench, to coi-
fider my weak State and Condition that I have
been 1n.

L. C. J. Helt. Have you done?

. May. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. J. Helt. Then the next. . Bijlep,
what have you to fay ?

V. Bifbop. 1belonged to the Shup Fames; and
at the Groyne the Men began to complain about
Wages, and that was the firlt Beginning of the
Difturbance abour this Plotting. We were
fhipp’d out of Eugland in Sir Fames Houblon’s Ser-
vice, to the Spanifh IVeft-Indies.  Upon this Mu-
tiny among the Men for their Wages, feveral
Ven went aboard the King’s Ships, and defired
to be entertained on Board any of them to go for
Eiglandy and we all went away agam to the Ship,
becante we could not be entertained.  But this
Defign of Ewery’s I did not know of.  On the

7th Day Captain Fiumpbreys calls, and fays, my
Men are gone aboard the Charles, 1 think.
And he calls out, fays he, Mr, Drait, man the
Pimnace. I being then on the Deck, at Night,
the Men all quict, as I thought, T went into
the Pinnace, and T was no fooner m, but in
comes fifteen or fixteen more that knew of the
Delign ; bur 1 was then fent, and knew it not.
And they put off the Boar, and overpower'd
us; and feveral of us would have gone abeard

11%r
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aoain, and they would not {uffer us.  And when.

we came aboard the Ship Charles, they had cut
the Cables, and the Sails were loofe, and feveral
Mcn went {rom the Charles to the Fames in a
Boat ; and they commanded the Innocent to do
what they pleafed, vith Piftols and Cutlaces ; and
they commanded me to go into the Hold to
do what they pleafed, And I not knowing of
this Matter, the Men that were in the Boat
called, Hand the Buckets, or we fhall fink.
And I heard afterwards, that none went afhore,
but whom they pleafed, that is, Every and his
Crew.  And 1 not knowing of 1t, could not go;
and if I had known it, I had not been admitted to
oo, Then we were carried two Leagues without
the Groyie,

L. C, J. Holt. Have you any Wimeffes to
cail ¢

IV, Bifzop, The King’s Lvidence 1s my Wit-
nefs ; he commanded me to go into the Boar.

L C. J. Hdt. Will you afk him any Que-
ftions ?

I7. Bifhop. No, my Lord.

L.C. J. Hit. fames Lewss, what have you to
fay?

¥. Lewis, T had been in Fraiice, a little before
the Ship came to the Groyue, a Prifoner there s
but I knew nothing of Ewery’s Defign. By the
Command of our Officer I went aboard the Boat,
and as foon as we were in her, we were over-
power'd, and carried away 3 they took the Qars
out of our Hands, and carried us to the Ship
Charles.  And when we came aboard, they put
the Boat a-drift, and then they commanded me
nto the Forecaftle 5 they had Arms, but we had
none, and fo were forced to obey them. When
the Boat was going off, I heard 2 Noife of crying
out for a Bucket. And when we were gone from
the Groyiie, we were forced to do what they would
have us; 1t was-againft my Confent, and againft
my Will,

L. C. J. Holt. }. Sparkes, what fay you ?

J- Sparkes. When Captain Humpbreys called to
them that were conce Into the Boat, I was afleep 3
but with the Noife of Graver’s crying out, He is
coming, I awaked ; and all put the Candles out,
for fear I thould fee them.  And when the Men
were come aboard, I went on the Deck, and

they trow’d the Hammacks, and knock’d me
down

L.C. J. Holt. Who did it ?

J . Spaikes. The Hammocks they brought from
the other Ships. I durft not do any otherwife
than they bid me ; 1 was innocent of the Thing,
1 afl’d what they were going to do, and they faid
they vere going for Euglaid,

L. C. J. Holt. Who told you fo?

I Searkes, Fobu Da.

L.C. J. Holt. ¥, Dan, did you tell 7. Sparies
the Ship was going for Englaid ?

£+ Dan, I do not remember I faw him all the
Night.

L. C. J. ILlt. 1 would afk you if you had no
Share of the Plunder,

J. Sparkes. 1 was forced to take it

L.C.J. Holt, Phil. Middleton, you had {ome
Share, had you not?

Phil, Middleton, Tes, my Lord.

L. C. J. Holt. What became of it?

Phil, Middleten, They tock it away from
me,

L.C. J. Holt. Who took it from you?

for Felony wnd Piracy.

13
P. Middleton, ¥, Sparkes robb'd ‘me of it ‘by
Night, L -

L. C. J. Holt. Did he take all away?

Phil, Middleton, Yes, all that I had there, Two
hundred feventy odd Pieces of Gold 3 it was
In a Belt. |

7. Sparkes. He took out his Money and thewed
it to the Troopers, and they madé kim drunk and
got.it from him ; and the next Morning he faid
they took it from him.

Phil. Middleton. 1 was forc’d to fay fo, becaufe
if I had faid he had it, he would have made no
more but to cut my Throat,

L. C. J. Holt. Have you any more to fay ?

J. Sparkes. No, my Lord.

Mr. Sol, Gen. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, I am of Counfel in
this Cafe for the King againft the Prifoners at the
Bar, ‘Theyare arraign’d for a very high Crime,
a Robbery vpon the Seas. It was not a lefs
Crime becavfe committed on the Sea, but rather
the more. Thefe Men had a Truft repofed if
them to affift their Captain in kis Voyage ; but
inftead of that, they refift their Capiain, turli
him out, and run away with the Ship. They
could not find Shelter in any other Part of the
World, and I hope you will make it appear fuch
Crimes fhall not find Shelter here, more than in
other Parts of the World Thefe are Crimes
againft the Laws of Nations, and worfe than
Robbery on the Land: For in Cafe of a Rob-
bery on the Land, we know who is to pay it ;
but in a Robbery by Sea, it often happens that
innocent Perfons bear the Lofs of what thefe
Men do, It has been very plainly proved againtt
the Prifoners, T hat the Ship Charles was run dway
with {romn the Greyue.  And it is as plain by two
Witnefles, That all the Prifoners at the Bar were
in this Ship 5 by three, That 77, May in parti-
cular was one of them ; and by one, That 27, May
was fo far concerned, that becaufe 7. Graver
fcem’d to diflike 1t, he faid he deferved to be
fhot through the Head : So that he that would
make himfelf the moft innocent of the five, is
moft guilty,

Now they have only this to fay fot themfelves,
that they were forced to do what they did. But
it has been proved to you that they were not
forced 5 it was faid, All might go that would.
And it 1s not proved on their Side, that any one
of the Prifoners did feem to diffent from their
going away. It is proved, that they all made
ufe of this Ship to very bad Purpofes ; that they
took and plundered feveral Ships, and fhared the
Booty., We do not produce this t6 prove them
guilty, but to fhew that they mede ufe of this
Ship to this very Purpofe. Now if you allow
what they fay, that they were foréed to go a-
way ; then you muft never conviét, at any tine,
one or two Highwaymen that rob in the Com-
pany of four or five; for they may fay too, that
they were overpower’d, and forcéd by theéir Com-
pany. It 1s fo, net only in Cafe of Robbery,.
but in all other Crimes alfo. They have faid a
great deal indeed, but without any mannet of
Probability of Truth, They have produced no
Witneffes for themfelves, to prove any thing
they have faid.  And the Witneflés for the King;
have given Teltimony without any Exception.
And, I hope, you will vindicate the Credit of
the Nation, and find them Guilty, as the Evi-
dence has proved them,

L., C. J.
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L. C. J. Hdlt. Gentlemen of the Jury, Thefe
Five Prifoners, E. Forfeith, W, May, V. Bifbop,
Fa. Lewis, and 7. Sparkes, are indicted for a Pi-
racy and Robbery committed on the High Seas,
fome Diltance from the Groyue, in taking and
carrying away a Ship, and feveral Goods there-
in contained. She was called the Charles the Se-
cond. This was done in May lalt was two Years,
1694. You have have heard what Lvidence has
been given on this Indictment againft the Pri-
foners, .

It has appear’d that this Ship was bound in a
Voyage to the Wefl-/ndies.  Two of the Prifon-
ers, ., May, and ¥, Sparkes, were Seamen then
on board this Ship, and engaged in the Voyage ;
the other three were not Mariners in that, butin
another Ship, called the Fumes, that lay, at that
‘Time, near the Groyire 5 but they came aboard
the Ship Charles before, and continued on board
her when the was carried away.

That there was a Piracy committed on the
Ship Charles, is moft apparent by the Evidence
that hath been given; that is, a Force was put
on the Mafter, and fome others of the Scamen on
board her, who becaufe they would not agree to
o on a piratical Expedition, had Liberty to de-
part, and be fet athore, But the Ship was taken
from the Captain, who was poflefied of her for
the Ufe of the Qwners, and was carried away by
Fvery, and others of his Crew that remained on
board her 3 and others came from the Fames :
‘W hich Taking was a Piracy that 1s manfefted by
the Ufle they did put her to ; for they did after-
wards commit feveral other Piracies, with her,
and took feveral Znglifb and Danifh Ships, and
then went to feveral Iflands, Countries and Pla-
ces, as to the Ifles of May and Princes, to Mada-
gaftar, and then to Foawia, and afterwards to
Meat, and then to the Red Sea; and at the En-
trance of the Red Sea committed more Piracies,
in the manner as you have heard, and has been
very particularly deferibed to you,  So that 1
muft tell you, beyond all Contradiétion, the Force
put on the Captain, and taking away this Ship,
called the Charles the Secoud, was a Piracy 5 and
for that particular Fact thele Prifoners are now
charged,

‘The Matter you arc now to enquire after, s,
Whether all the Prifoners were guilty of this Pi-
racy, or which of them,

As for Ed. Forfeith, Bifbap, and Lezwis, it hath
appeared to you, that they, with others, were
aboard the Ship Fames ; and that there was a Re-
port fpread about of a Plot agaimft the Captain
of the Charles the Second, and a Defign to carry
that Ship away, To prevent which, there were
lome of thefe Men fent out in a Boat, by the
Captain of the Yames, to this Ship, to aflift Cap-
tun Gilfony but inftead of preventing this Pi-
racy, they ftayed behind, and went along with
thele Men that carried away the Ship.

As to ]V, May and 7. Sparkes, that were of this
Ship's Crew, they continuced on Board, and were

Zartics 1n all thofe Piracies,

There was a Confult, it féems, by fome par-
ticular Perfons, of which Euery was the Ring.
leader, how to effect this Defign Capt. Every,
as they call him, though he was no Captain, but
was under the Command of Capt, Gigfon, that
had the Condudt of this Ship.

It’s true, it is not proved to you that thefe
Mcen were at thar Confult 5 for, it feems, they

were too many, for they were about 160 that
remained on board when the Ship was carried
off.

Now for IV, May, Fo. Gravet, Sccond Mate,
that was aboard, though he had a Pitto! clanp’d
to him to prevent any Reliftance, “yer had
Liberty to departs and upon his poing ofi, dif-
courfed with 3ay, who {hook Hands with nim
and bid him farewel, and remember him o his
Wife,  And therefore it is evident thar /77 Jdoy
was under no Torce to ftay s he ftay’d wich fus
good Will, and did confent to the Pirucy.,  And
then another Witnelsis . Creagh, who fays, thae
AMay was fo zealous in the Matter, that he faid to
im, Ged damn biny be deferves 10 be filot # reupl;
the [{cad.

Sparses was on Board the Ship, and liad a de-
fign’d Fnd, and no Compulfion was uled towards
him, {incc he had Liberty to depart 3 but the
flaying behind by the reft, 1s a greatTeidence o
Induce you to believe they were Parties in the De-
fign; for why elfe fhould not they go athore as
well as others, (ince there doth not appear any
Reftraint upon them to ftay, efpecially when a
general Word was given, that thofe who would
go on Shore fhould go on the Deck, and a Boat
was ready to carry them off 2

They fay, they wanted & Bucket in the Boat,
and they gave them onc to lave out the Water .
that 1s a plain Evidence they were willing to be
rid of thofe that were not willing to engace witl
them ; and if they had not approved of the
Defign, they were net hindered from going in
the Boat. As for thofe that came from the
fames, there was no manncr of Force on them,
but they were fent from the Captain to affitt the
Captain of the Charles; for thofe two Ships
having lain near together at the Groyne, there
was fome Intelligence of fuch a Defign in A-
gitation, and thefe three forfook their own
Ship s Foeiy declared his Defign to fome: And
he told dhiem what Shares they fhould have
and becaufe he was their Captain and Com-
mander, he thought himfelf entitlzd to a doubls
Soare,

And then you have heard what was done in
the whole Progrefs of this wicked Defion; cvery
one of thefe Men had their Share s even this
V. Myy, though he was fick for fome Tine, 2nd
was {et afhore at Foamna, and at the Ship’s Re-
turn tuken in again, yet he had his Share of ol
the Prizes. . Bifhop had his Share, Yame; Lezis
had his Share, and Fobn Sparkes had his Share -
and, fays this young Man, Philip Middleton, 1
had my Share, which was above an hundred
Pound, which was thought by them to be goodd
Sharc for a Boy; and Sparkes took: him ar 2 Dif-
advantage, and having an Opporiunity, took it
from him,

Mow 1f there be a Piracy committed, though
contrived but by one Man, yet if others do ccys-
cur In 1t, they are equally ouilty.

Now, though thefe Prifoners tell you, there was
a Force upon them, it isa meer Sugeeition, with-
out any manner of Kvidences but there is Fyi-
dence of their confenting and confederatine iy this
wicked Kanterprize, ”

Indeed there hath been a Trial before, whick
you hm‘fe all heard of 3 for the Cizy and Naoon
have difcourfed of it 3 confider therefore the
Evidence.  You have 2 great Truft repofed in
you, for you are not to adt arbitrartly, bar you

are
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are accountable to God Almighty, to whom you
are fworn, and to the Government for the Ver-
dict you give. If you arc not fatished in your
Confciences that the Evidence 1s fufficient to
find thefz Men guilty, in God’s Name, acquit
them.

But if you are fatsfied in the Sufficiency of
the Evidence to convitt them, you mult find
them guilty,

Cl. of Ari. Cryer, fwear an Officer to keep the
Tury s which was done, and the Jury went out
to confider of their Verdict. And in the mean
time, the fix Prifoners were again arraigned
upon two feveral Indi¢tments, the one for pira-
vically taking away a Aeeiifp Ship, and the other
for committing Piracy upoin two Danifh Ships.
Lo both whaich Indictwents Fofenh Dacwfoun plead-
cd Guilty 5 the other five pleaded Not guiley,
and puc them upon their Trials,

Then the Jury baving been withdrawn a lictle
while, returned mto Court,

Ioreman, If there be any Evidence to prove
that Fobit Sparkes conlented to cthe running away
of the Ship, we defire it may be heard again,

L. C. J. Fl2lr, He was with them at the car-
rying off the Ship, and at the aking of the fc-
veral Prizes, and had his Share afterwards, W hat
1s Confent? Can Man otherwile demonftrate their
Confent, than by therr Actions?

Furvman, But we underfland, my Lord, that
he was tricd upon his confenting to carry away
the Ship.

L.C. J. Helt. What do you mean by confent-
ing? If a Ship be carried away with Force from
the Caprain, divers Piracies are committed with

her, one continues aboard and recetves a Share of

the Profit of the {everal Piracies; 1s not that an
Evidence of Confent to the piratical Defign ?
Was it not proved that many went out of the
Ship that were not willing to go on that De-
fign? And that was with the Leave of the reft
that remain’a.

Mr. J. Eyie. And one ftood on the Deck, and
faid with a loud Voice, that they that will not

20, may have Liberty to go athore.

Mr. Conyers. No Man was hindred but the Do-
Ctor, being a ufeful Man,

L.C, J. Helt. When a Ship 1s run away with,
and People are aboard that Ship fo runaway with,
that proves their Confent, unlefs they can produce
Lividence to the contrary.

Mr. J. 9urton. The Captain was in his Bed fick
of a Fever at that Time, and was not willing to
go with them, and they fent him away from
them,

Mr. J. Eyre. And every Man had his Share,

Their the Jurv confilting together a very little Time,
agiced on theii Verdidl,

Cl.of Arr. Gentlemen of the Jury, anfwer to
your Names, 7o, Degrave.

J- Degrave, Here.  (dad fo of the reft.)

CL of Arr. Gentlemen, are you all agreed of
your Verdiét ?

Fury, Yes.

ClLof drr, Who fhall fay for you?

Jitry. Our Foreman.

Cl. of drr. Sct Ed. Forfeith to the Bar. Ed. For-

-~ jor Felony and Piracy.

IS
the Piracy and Robbery whereof he ftands in-
ditted, or Not guiley ?

Foreman. Guilty,

Cl. of Arr. Look to him, Keeper, What Goods
and Chattels, &,

Foreman, None that we know of, =~ -

Cl. of dArr. W. May, hold up thy Hand.
(IWhich be did.) Is . May Guilty, &, or Not
guilty ?

Foreman. Guilty.

Cl. of Arr. Look to him, Keeper, &5, 7. Bi-
Sop, hold up thy Hand, (#bich he did.) Is 7.
Bifbop Guilty, &¢c. or Not guilty ?

Foreman. Guilty.

Cl. of Arr. Look to him Keeper, &¢. 7.
Lewis, hold up thy Hand., (#bich be did,) Is
7. Lewis Gulty, &¢. or Not guilty ?

Foreman. Guilty.

Cl of Arr. Look to him, Keeper, &¢c. Fo
Sparkes, hold up thy Hand (Which be did, ) Is
Jo. Sparkes Guilty, &, or Not guilty?

Foreman, Guilty.

Cl. of Arr. Look to him, Keeper, .

L. C. J. Holt. Gentlemen, you have donc ex-
tremely well, and you have done very much to
regain the Honour of the Nation, and the
City,

Then the Court adjourned to Friday nest the 5th of
November, Twe of the Clock in the Afteruson,
On which Day Ed. Forfeith, &e. <vere tried up-
oi twoo other Indiciments for feveral Piracies.

A Abflralt of the Trial of Edward For-
feith, James Lewis, William  May,
William Bithop, John Sparkes, (Jo-
feph Dawfon beving pleaded  Gruilty
upon bis Ariaighent) at the Seflions
Houfe 722 the Old Builey, Friday, No-
vember #he 62h, 1090, where awery
prefent St Charles Hedges, Fudge of
the High Court of dmiralty, the Lord
Chiof Fuftice Holt, the Lord Chief Fu-
flice Treby, with feveral others of bis
Majeiy's fudges and Commiffroners,

After feveral Challenges made by the Prifoners, of
the Perfons returned upon the Fury, thefe Twelve

Gentlemen were fworn, VIZ.

Roger Mbtt, N ( Fobn Watfon,
Fobn Fames, l Berjamin Hooper,
Richard Rider, 9, Fobn Hibbert,
William Hunt, [ Richard Chifwell,
“obn Hammond, | | Daniel Ray,

Abrabam Hickman, § \ William Hatch.

VHE N the Clerk read the two Indi€tments
] upon which they were tried, iz, one for
feifing, robbing, and carrying away two Ships
belonging to Denmark, on the zoth of Auguft,
1694. 'I'he other for that they, on the 28th of

Jeito, hold up thy Hand. (Which be did.) Look September, 1695, in a Place 40 Leagues diftant

upon the Prifoner; Is Ed:ard Forfeith Guilty of

from Surat, did forcibly and piratically fet upon
' &
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a Moorifp Ship and take away her Tackle and
Goods, to a great Valuc.

Then Dr. Newton, one of bis Majefty's Advocates,
Jfpoke to the Jury, as follosseth.

My Lord, and Geatlemen of the juiy,

The Crime the Prifoners at the Bar ftand
charged with, and which has been opened to you,
apon the Indi@ments, 1s Piracys which 1s the
worlt Sort of Robbery, both in its Nature and
its ToFc@s, fince it diftorbs the Commerce and
Friendthip betwixt different Nations 5 and 1 feft
unpunifhed, involves them In War and Blood :
For fovereign Powers and Nations have no
Coutts of Juftice afterwards to refort to, as the
Subjeéis of Princes have, in their own Countries,
for Redrefs or Punifhment 3 but they can only
have recourfe to Armsand War, which how ex-
penfive, and how dangerous they are, and what
Calamities and Ruin they carry along with them,
no Perfon can be a Stranger to, So that thofe
who bring not fuch Criminals to Judgment,
when jts lies in their Power, and Is their Duty
to do fo, arc anfwerable, in a great Meafure, be-
fore God and Mau, for all the fatal Confequences
of fuch Acquittzls, which bring a Scandal on the
publick Juftice, and are otten attended with pub-

lick Calamities.
It is not therefore, Gentlemen, to be fuppofed,

that wife or honeft Men, (and there arc none who
would be thought to be otherwile) who love their
Country,and wifh its Peace and Profpenty, would
be guilty in that Kind. |
Gentlemen, This Pivacy was begun in Lurope,
catried on through Afiica, and ended n the re-
motelt Tudies 5 fo thar, in a manner, all the
World is concerned in this Trial, and cxpeéls
and demands Juftice of them, if they are guilty,

At your Hlands,

Then the Witnefles were produced to prove the
“ads charged upon the Prifoners, viz, jo. Dean,
David Creagh, Phil. Middleton, and others; who
fully proved, againtt them, That the Prifoncrs,
with {everal other wicked Perfons, not yet taken,
Jidd forcibly take away the Ship Charles the Second
bom the lawful Commander, Captain Gibjon,
with a piratical Defign 5 and in the faid Ship did
atierwards commit feveral Piracies. At the Jfle
o+ Al they took three Lnglifh Ships.  From
thence they went to the Coalt of Guinea 5 and
when fome of the Natives came on board with
thetr Gold, to trade with them, they took away
their Gold, and carried them away for Slaves,
And then went to the Ifle of Princes and took
wo Daiifh Ships,and took ont what was in them,
iz, 40 Pound Weight of Gold Duft, and other
Merchandize s and they offered to reftore one of
the Ships to the Mafter after they had robbed
her, but the Mafter faid fhe was infured, and
he would not take her again,  And afterwards
they burnt one of the Ships, and carried away
the other. Then they went to Bobs Key, at the
Mouth of the Red Sea, waiting for the Mocha
I*{eet, which one Night pafs’d by them unfcen;
but were informed the next Day that they were
pone,  And then calling a Council, they agreed:

to follow them; and accordingly went after
them, and camc up with one of them which
was about 250 Ton, and with {mall Refiftance
took her, and put fome Men on board her, and
took Gold and Silver out of her to the Value of
20 or 40000/ withother Merchandize : And af-
terwards met with the Ship called the Guifioay,
and robbed her likewife of all her Furniture, 1o
a very grear Value, And about a Week afier,
they fhared all the Prizes they had taken; and
fome had athoufand Pound, fome had eight hun-
dred, fome feven hundred, fome five hundred,
every Man in the Ship Ins Share, as they thoughs
they deferved.  And it was particularly proved
by the Evidence agamnit the Prifoners, that they
had their Shares. The moie particular Relatior
c;[ 'EU?E;:L: is already printed at large in the fercgoing
rial,

When the King’s Evidence had done, the Pri-
foncrs were permitted to fay what they could in
their Defence; but the fame appearing to be ve-
ry weak, the Lord Chief Juftice o/t fumm’d up
the Evidences; and the Jury coing our to con-
fider their Verdidt, atter a fhore Stay, brougic
them in all Guilty.

T—r{?fﬂ fl?f? th'f."f r.’ffgjﬂff:’*ﬂ,:i i fr{?.:? IO:‘r:J ﬁf’ .]:\T{}?{_‘n‘i{][:r
j"bffﬁi‘.ﬁfﬂfg.
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After the Trial of Johin Murphey ccas coor, 10
Piiates weie brought 1o the Bar,

Cl.of Ave. Joforh Dafli, you by vour own
Confeflion are convicted of Piracy and Roboery
What have you to fay why Sentence of Death
thall not be paffed upon you according to
Law?

Jof Dazwfon, 1 {ubmit my felf to the King and
the honourable Bench.

CL. of Arr. Edward Forfeith, what have you to
fay, e, 2

Forfeith, I am an nnocent Man; aid <weirt on
to juftify himfelf, &e.

Fudge of the ddmiralty. You and the reft of the
Prifoners at the Bar have had a very fair Trial,
and been fully heard upon your Defence 5 but the
Jury your Countrymen, upon whom you put
your {clves to be tried, have found you Guilty :
30 that the infifting upon your juftification can-
not now avail you any thing, the Vardict being
given 3 but 1f you have any thing to ofter in Ar-
reft of Judgment, or can fhew any Caufe why the
Court fhould not procecd to give Judgment ac-
cording as the Law direéts, againt Perfons con-
vitted of Piracy, you fhall have Liberty to fpeak,
and will be heard.

Forfeith, T defirc to be fent into Indiz to fuffer
there,

Cl. of dre. William May, what have “rou to
fay, &, '

IVilizam May, My Lord, I being a very fickly
Man, never adted inall the Voyage. 1 have fer
ved my King and Country this thirty Yeass, and
am very willing to ferve the Eqff-Iudia Company
where they pleafe to command me 5 and defire
the honourable Bench to confider my Cafe, and if

I muft fuffer, T defice to be fent into udia to
fuffer there.

Cl.
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 Cl, of Arr. Williain Bijbgp, What have you to
fay, (. S | .
IWilliam Bifbop, 1 was forced away 3 and when
I went, was but 18 Years old, and am now but
21, and defire Mercy of the King and the
Court, . - -
Fames Lecors, 1 am an ignorant Perfon, and
Jeave my felf to the King’s Mercy.
Fobn Sparkes. I leave my felfto the King’s Mer-
cy, and to the honourable Court. |
Fudge of the Admiralty. Fofeph Dawfon, You
ftand convicted upon four Inditments, by your
own Confeflion, for Piracy and Robbery., And
you Edward. Forfeith, William May, William Bi-
fhop, Fames Lewis and Fobn Sparkes, having put
your {elves upon your Trials according to the Cu-
ftoms and Laws of your own Country, have been
found guilty upon three feveral Indiétments, for

.
al
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the fame deteftable Crimes committed upon the
Ships and Goods of Tudians, of Danes, and your
own Fellow-Subjets. The Law for the Heinouf-
nefs of your Crime hach appointed a fevere Pu-
nifbment, by an ignominious Death; and the
Judgment which the Law awards, is this 3

That you and every one of you be Laken from bence to
the Place from whence you came, and from thence
to the Place of Execution.andthat there you, and
every one of you,be banged by the Necks, until

you, and cvery one of you, be dead : And the
Lord have Mercy upon you

- According to this Sentence, Edward Forfeith
and the relt were executed on Weduefday, No-
vember the 25th, 1090, at Execntion-Dock, the
ufual Place for the Execution of Pir:tes.

F
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CLXII. The TRIAL of Captain Thomas Vaughan az the
Old-Baily, for High-"Treafon; o the High-Seas, November

6, 1606. $ Will. III.

The Court being fate, at swhich weie prefent, Si

Charles Hedges, Fudge of the Hipgh Court of

Admiralty, the Lord Chief fuflice Flolt, the Lord
Chief Fuflice Treby, the Lord Chief Baron Ward,
Mr. Fuftice Turton, and others of bis Magefty’s
Commifjioners s the Court proceeded on  this
Manner.

Cl. of drr. 3 A K E Proclamation.
Cryer., EXEA®eRE O yes, Oyes, O yes.
o) Al Manner of Perfons

NIL_ {7 that bave any thing more

Lh:gﬁr,} VAW todo, &c. aid were ad-

'@)"ﬁ' XXQ{ SR journed 1o this Hour,

draw near, and give your Aliendance: God fave

the King*

Thei the Grand-Jury were called overy and the Ap-
pearaices marked. And Witneffes being frworn in
Court to give Evidence 1o them, againft Thomas
Vaughan, they withdrew to bear the fame.

Then the Keeper of Newgate was order’d to bring
415 Prijnery, 'Thomas Vaughan, fo the Bar.
(Which he did.)

CL. of drr. Tho. Vaughan, Hold up thy Hand.
(Which be did.) Thou ftandeft indicted, &9,

How fay’ft thou, Tho, Vaughan, Ast thou Guilty
of the High-Treafon whercof thou ftandeft in-
dicted, or Not gully.

1. Vaughan, Not guilty.

CL of Arr, Culprit, How wilt thou be tiy'd?

7. Vaughan, By God and this County,

CL. of drr. God fend thee a good Deliverance,

And then the Court procecded to the Trial of the Pi-

rates, and gave Notice t2 My, Vanghan to prepare
VoL. V.

for bis Trial an Friday next, the 6t of Novem-
ber, 169u.

Die Fercres, fexto Novembrisy  Amzque
Regnt Regrs Wilthelmi Oftuvo,  Annogue
Donmini, 16g6.

Cl.of Arr. R ¥E R, make Proclamation,

Cryer. O yes, O yes, O yes, Al Manier
of Perfouns that have any Thing more to do at this
Seffions of Qyer aud Terminer, adjourned over tothis
Day, draw icar and give your Attendance.  sind
you Shertffs of the City of London, return the Pre-
cepts to you dircled, upon Pain and Peril which will
fall thereupon, -

Theit the Under-Sheriff retuvied the Precepts,

Cl. of Arr. Make Proclamation,

Cryer. O yes, You good Men of the City of Lon-
don, fummoned to appear this Day, to try between our
Sovereign Lovd the King, and the Prifoner at the
Bar, aufwer to your Names, as you flall be called,
every oie at the firft Cally and fave your Iffues.

The whole Panne! was called over, and the Appear-
ances of thafe that anfweied, recorded, and the De-
fandters were again called over.

Mr. Phipps. Will your Lordfhip pleafe to or-
der, that two Men may be brought from the
Marfhalfea, in the Behalf of the Prifoner ¢

L. C. 1. Holt. You fhall have an Order.

Then the Corrt went on the Trialof the Six Pirates,
and after the Trial wasover, Thomas Vaughan

was called to the Bar.
D T.
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T. Vaghai, My Lord, my Irons are very un-
eafy to me, I defire they may be taken oft.

L.C. J. Holt. Ay, ay, take them off,

Mr. Phipps. If your Lordfhip pleafe, we have
fome Doubtsas to the Inditment.

L. C. J. Holt. If you have any Exceptions, you
ought to have made them before the Prifoner

pleaded to it. |
Mr. Phipps. I thought you had allow’d it, my

Lord, in former Cales, |

L. C. J. No, we did not allow it as of Right
due to the Prifoner 3 the Exceptions thould have
been made before the Plea.  You were indulg’d
in being heard at firlt in the Cafes of Rookwaod,
Crauburne, and Lowick; but it was not the Intent
of the A&, to alter the Method of the Proceed-
ing 5 and fo upon Confideration hath it been de-
termined.  The Prifoner hath Time given by the
A& to make any Exception to the Indictment
before he pleaded 5 but you may move what you
will afterwards in Arreft of Judgment, if 1t be
material.

Cl. of Arr. Thomas Vaughan, Thofe Men that
you fhall hear called, and perfonally appear, are
to pafs between our Sovercign Lord the King,
and you, upon Trial of Life and Death 3 if there-
fore you will challenge them, or any of them,
your Time is to fpeak unto them as they come
to the Book to be fworn, before they be {worn.

Mr. Phipps. There was one Man here that de-
fired to be excufed, becaufe he was on the Grand-
Jury s therefore it feems there are fome returned
upon this Jury that were on the Grand- Jury,
which I think ought not to be.

L. C. ]. Challenge them then,

Mr. Phipps. We do not know the Men,

Then the Paiiel was called over, and a great many
Challenges made, and the Twelve Men that weie

Sworn, were thefe s

Fdward Leeds Y ( Caleh Hook
Nath, Green | Foceline Robeits
Hen, Sherbrook ¢} The. Parker
/0. Sherbzook ‘ < Peter Gray
Th. Eaims [ ] Rogerr Pofloi
Peter Parker J L 1V 00 !L:y

Clof Ari. Cryer, Make Proclamation,

Ciyer. Q yes, If eiry oie can inform my Lords the
Ng’s fuftices, and the King’sSerjeant, the King’s -
torney-General, the King’s Advecate in bis High
Ceurt of Admiralty, before this Inqueft be taken of the
[firh-Treafon, woheresf Thomas Vaughan, the Pri-
Janci at the Bar, fands indiged, let them come forth,
and iy fhall be beard s for now the Prifoner at the
Bai flands upon bis Deltverancey and afl others that
dic bonid by Recognizance to give Evidence againft
sde Prifoner at the Bar, let them come forth and give
Hheir Edideice, or elfe they forfeit their Recopni-
TanCe.

CL of Arr. Thomas Faughas, Hold up thy Fand,
(/Fbich be did.) You thatare fvorn, look upon the
Prifoncr, and hearken to his Caufe. He ftands
indicted by the Name of Thomas Vaughan,

Wherens, That before andwittil the 8th Day of Ju-
ly, i the 7th Year of the Reign of our Sovereigss Lord
King Wilhaw 1. there cvas open War between our
Jaid Lord the Kig, aiid Lewis the French Kiyp -
nd that the faid [Var continued on the faid $th Da 1y
of July, in the 7th Year ufirvefaid, and doth fiill con-

fimte.  Aud that for all the Tinie aforclaid, the faid
Lewis the French King and bis Subjes, were, and
at prefent are Enenties of onr faid Lord the Kinz that
now 15 : And that at the Tims of the faid War, and
before the faid 8th Dayof July, inthe 7o 2ear aforea
faidy the faid Lewis the French King, for out,
mongft others, a certain fuiall Ship of War, calicd the
Loyal Clencarty, of which Thomas Vauehan,
Subject of our faid Lord the King that it i5, was
Commander, with feveral French Subjests, Enemies
of our faid Lord the King, to the Number of fiftcen
Perfous, in a Warlike Maiuer, to take and deflroy the
Skips, Gaods, and Monies of our faid Loid the King,
and bis Subjests, and againft our faid Lord the King,
towage Far upon the High-Seas within the Furifd;-
Etion of the Admiralty of England.  Aud that at the
Time of the faid IVar betweeir oui faid Leid the King,
and the aforefaid Lewis 1le French King, Tho.
Vaughan, late of Galloway, in the Kizgdom of Tre-
land, Mariner, being a Subeit of our faid 5oz Lovd
the King, as a falfe Revel againft the faid Kiiz bis Su-
preme Lord, andiot baving the Fear of God bofore bis
Liyesy nor confidering the Duty of bis illeziasce, but
being moved and fedneed by the liftigation of the Devil,
and altogether wwithdraieing the cordial Love,and trug
and due Obedicice whichcvery tine aud faithfit] Sub-
jeit of onr faid Lord the Kine,ought by Lasy, to-bave
towaids the faid Kinz s aud the faid I ar, as much
as sz Lim lay, againft onv fuid Lavd ile King, defign-
rug aid inlending to profeciete aind aljijt 5 the fuid ‘Tho,
Vaughan, on the faid 8¢h Day of July, in the faid
740 Jear of the King, being a Soldizr absard the Ship
of War called the LoyalClencarty, i1 the Service of
the faid Lewis the Urench King, and being then o
the High-Seas, wwilhin toe furifdiftion of the Aimi-
ralty of England, about fourtzen Leqgues from Deal,
did their and there by Fovee and s, fallly, malici-
onfly, wickedly, and tiaiteronfly, aid, belp, and af-
Jy the Encaies of our faid Lord the Ning, i the Ship
of War, calledthe Loyal Clencarty. Aid afterseards
the faid Thomas Vaughan, 7 the Fyecation and
Performance of bis faid aiding, belpiug, and qfifiing,
malicionfly, faifly, aid traiterenfly fuiled a Cruifing to
Jeveral maritime Places within the Farifdiclion afore-
Jatdy by Force and Arins to take the Ships, Goods, and
Manzy of our faid Lord the King, cid bis Subjests s
agaunft the Duty of bis Allegiance, the Peace of our
Jaid Lord the King, aid alfo againft a Statute in that
Cafe made and provided,
And the faid Frrors for our faid Lord the King upon
their faid Oaths, farther reprefent, that the aforsfaid
Thomas Vaughan, as a falfe Traytor againflonr faid
Lerd the King, further defigning, practifing, and with
bis whole Strength, intending the common Peace and
Tranguillity of this Kingdom of Yongland to diffurh |
aird 3 air and Rebellion againft the faid Kiiig upon the
High-Seas within the Furifdiion of the Aditralty of
England, 10 move, flir up, and procure 3 and the
Jaid Lord the King, from tie Title, Honour, Royal
Name,and Imterinl Croon ofbis Kingdom of Fngland,
aid Dominions upon the High-Seas, to depofe aid de-
prives and miferable Staughter of the Subjells of the
Jaid Lord the King, of this Kingdom of England, #p-
oit the IHigh-Seas, and wziihin the Jurifdiction aforefaid,
to caufe aind procure 5 on the fuaid $th Day of July, ii
the faid 7th¥ear of the King, upon the High-Seas, about
Jourteen Leagues from Deal, and withun the Domini-
on of the Crown of England, and within iie Farif
dictioi of the Admiralty of YXngland aforefuid, fallly,
malicionf] v, deviliflly, ard treacheronfiy, by Force and
Arms, with divers ater faife Reels and Traytors (1o
the Jurorsunkiown \ig; agasift our fatd novy Lord the
' ’ Kivg,
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King, prepared, prompled, levyed, and waged.  2nd
that the faid Thomas Vaughan ix Performance of his
[aid IVar aind Rebellion, then and there, by Force and
s, malicionfly, wickedly, and openly affembled and
soined bimfelf with feveral other falfe Traytors and Re-
Bels (to the Furors unknown) to the Number of fiftecs
Perfons, being armed, and provided in awaritke Man-
e wwith Guus and other Arms, as well Offenfive as
Defenfive.  And the faid Thomas Vaughan, then
aid there, being aboard the faid Ship of FWar, called the
Loyal Clencarty, affembled<with the other [ﬂgﬂ’ Rebels
and Traitors as aforefaid, malicioufly, wickedly and
traiteronfly faited a Cruifing to feveral masitime Places,
cvith the aforcfaid Ship of 1Var, called the Loyal Clen-
carty, cwith an Inteit to take, fpoil, and carry away
the Ships, Goads, and Money, of onr fard Lord the
King, and bis Subjells, by Force and dvins, upois the
bigh and open Seas, <within the Jurifdiction aforefaid ;
apatift the Duty of bis Allegiaince, the Peace of our
faid Lovd the King, bis Crowir and Digities 5 and
fitewife againf? the Form of aStatutein this Cafe mace
aiid provided,

Thomas Noden, 2o,
Samul Oldlmm}ﬁ-“ﬁ 5

Upon this Indidtment he hath been arraigned,
and upon this Arraignment he hath Rleadeii not
auilty ; and for his T'rial he hath pur hunfelfupon
God and his Country, which Couniry you are,
Your Charee is to enquire whether he be guilty of
the High-"Ureafon whereof he ftands indicted, or
not cuilty. If you find him guilty, you are to en-
quirc what Goods or Chatiels, Lands or Tene-
ments he had at the Time of the High-Treafon
committed, or at any Time fince. 1f you find
him guilty, you are to enquire whether he fled for
it. I you find that he fled for 1t, you are to en-
quire of hisGoods and Chattels, asif you had found
him gutlty. If you find him not guilty, nor that
he did fly for 1, yoo are to {ay {fo and no more;
and hear your Evidence.

Mr, Witcker. May it pleafe you, my Lord, and
the Gentlemen of the Jury, the Prifoner at the
Bar, Toomas Vaughan, {tands mdicted for I'ligh
Treafon 3 That whereas on the gth of Fuly, there
wasa War berween his Majelty the King of Eig-
land, and Lzwis the Freich King 5 amongft other
Warlike Preparations that the French King did
nake, he did fer forth a Ship called the Loyal
Clencartyy That the Prifoner at the Bar, as a falfe
Traitor, did hit himfelf aboard this Ship 5 and on
the High-Seas, about eleven Leagues from Deal,
cd tratteroufly aid tiie King’s Enemies, to take
the King’s Ships.  Thisis faid to be againit the
Duty of s Allegiance, and the Peace of our So-
vereien Lord the King, his Crown and Digniry.
He ftands further indiéted, for that he, the faid
Thoinas Vaughan, with feveral other falfe Traitors,
did levy War, and arm themfelves with Arms,
Offenfive and Defenfive, and was cruifing on the
High-Seas, off of Dzal, with an Intent to take
the King’s Ships, and to kilt and deftroy the King’s
Subjects, againft the Duty of his Allegiance, and
the Peace of our Sovereign Lord the King, his
Crown and Digaity.  To this Inditment he has
pleaded not guilty,  We (hall call our Witneffes,
and prove the Fact, and doubt not but you will
do your Duty, .

Dr, Littleton,. Gentlemen of the Jury, you have
heard the Indi&ment opened, as alfo what Sort

of Crime the Prifoner at ihe Bar ftands charged

Vo1, V.
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with, viz. That he being a Subje& of the Crown
of Eugland, has, together with his Accomplices,
armed himfelf in a military Way, to murder and
deftroy his Fellow-Subjeéts, and as much as in him
lay, to ruin his native Country, by ruining the
Trade and Tralfick, which is the great Support
and Reches of the Nation,  And that this Crime
might be confummate, he, with his Accomplices,
has done what in him lay, to dethroneand difpof-
fefs his facred Mayetty 3 as well knowing it was in
vain to expect to make the Nation unhappy, as
long as we enjoy {o great and good a Prince.  So
that you are to look on the Prifoner as an Enemy
and Traitor to his own Country ; and notonly fo,
but as one of the worft and moft dangerous Ene-
mies 3 fince he being a Subject of thefe [ilands,
was the better able to {py cut our Weaknefles
and Defects, and thereby to do us the greater Mif-
chief. It is not to be exprefs’d what Ruin and De-
folation it would have caufed to this Nation, had
this Man and his Accomplices brought their wick-
ed Intentions to efiect.  And all this was done to
aid and affilt the grand Enemy of Chriftendsm, and
of our own Country in particular, the Iyench
King, ‘Therefore as you are Lovers of your King
and Country, and your Fellow-Subjects, whom
the Prifoner and his Accomplices would have de-
{troy’d 3 I am fure you will take Care to do the
Nation Juftice, and that he be brought to con-
dign Punithment, Gentlemen, Thereisone Thing
further that I muft not omit, wiz. That the Pri-
foner at the Bar being in Cuftody for thefe very
Crimes about @ Twelve-month fince, did not
think fit to truft to his Innocency, nor to his pre-.
tended French Extrattion, but the Day before he
was to be tried, he thought fit to break Prifon,

withdraw from Juftice, and run his Country
Which though not a Confeflion and full Proof,

yet is a great Evidence of his Guil,

* Mr. Sol. Gen. May it pleafe your
Lordthip, and you Gentlemen of the
Jury, the Prifoner at the Bar, Thomas
Vaughan, {tands indicted tor two Sorts of Trea-
fon : Theones for levying War againft the King,
the other is for aiding and abetung the King’s
Enemies. And to prove the firft, the levying of
War, we thall prove that he was a Caprain of a
Freneh Ship, call’d the Granado, of St. Malses 4
and that with that Ship he took and carried away
many of his Miyefty’s Subjets, and took feveral
Merchant Ships, and carried them to France, We
fhall likewife prove that he was Captain of ano-
ther French Ship, called the Loyal Clencarty, with
which he was cruifing off of Deal, where we had
{everal Ships lying at the fame Time: And there
he being on board the faid Ship Clencarty, was
taken Prifoner, with a Commiflion, by which he
was conftituted Captamn of the Loyal Cleucarty,
under the Hand of Lewis the French King.,

And to provc him aiding and abetting to the
King’s Enemies, we fhall prove againft him this
particular Fact 3 That he and his Accompiices did
in tlic Year 1692, come to Loudon, and went to
Tosver-W barf, to enquire what Veflels were ready
to go down the River; and there was one Jaden
with Piece-Goods, and he put himfelf, and feve-
ral other of his Accomplices into this Veflel, to
go down the River; but they had contrived the
Matter, and brought it fo to pafs, that they fell
on thofe Men who had the Government of the
Ship,and carried away thisVeflel to France, Now if
this be true, the Prifoner is certainly guilty of aid-

D2 ng
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ing the King’s Enemies: And to prove he was
gutlty of this, we will prove to you, that even
in France, where he was at perfect Laberty, he
owned he was the Contriver of all this, and that
he had a thoufand Pound for his Share of what
was taken from our Merchants, If we prove
thefe two Faflts againft him, I doubt not but
you will find him Guilty, We will call our
Witneffes.

Cloof Arr. T, Egliugton, Rich. Crouch, Samuc!
Oldbam, Fobu Bub, Noden,  (IWho appeared,
and were fworn. )

. Vaughan, With Submiffion to your Lord-
fhips, and the honourable Bench, I beg thar
they may be put afunder, out of hearing of one
another.

L.C. J. Letit be {o, the’ you cannor infift
upon it as your Right, but oely a Favour that
we may grant.

Mr. Cowper. Set wp Richard Crouch, s your
Name Richard Crouch?

R. Cronch, Yes, Sir,

Mr. Cowper. Give my Lord and the Jury an
Account of what you know of the Ship Covenntry
taking of the Clencarty, and what you know
concerning the Prifoner at the Bar in taking of
her,

R, Cronch, Weweighed our Anchor about Four
a Clock.

Mr. Cowper. Where were you ?

R, Crouch, At the Nore.

Mr. Cowoper, In what Ship?

R. Crouch. The Coventry,  After we had been
under Sail a mateer of an Hour, we came to an
Anchor with a lile Wind 3 fo, Sir, this Thomas
Vaughan met witha Couple of Pinks, they were
fmall Veflels, that he defigned o take 3 bue he
faw us, and fo lay by all Night.

Mr. Cowper, Who lay by ?

R, Crouch. Thomas Vaughan, the Prifoner at the
Bar,

Mr, Cowper. In what Veflel was he?

R. Crouch, In a Two-and-twenty-Oar Barge s
he lay by at the Gunfleet : The next Morning we
weighed Anchor at Day-licht 5 we faw him, and
chafed after him; and we made them, and he
made us; and we made whar hafte we could, and
coming up, we fired a Gun at him, and then we
fird another, and then we went afhore.

Mr. Cowper. What, do you mean that he run
his Veflel on the Sands ?

R. Crouch, Yes, and then we fired another Gun
at him, and then he got off again; and then we
fired another Gun, and could not bring him to,
and then he got off the Sands again 3 and when
we came up to him, we manned our Long-boat,
and Pinnace, and Barge, and had him at haft,
When he came onBoar? = faid, I cannot deny
but I aman frifbman, and thar my Defign was to
burn the Ships at the Nore.

Mr. Cowper. Did he himfelf confefs it?

R. Crouch, Yes, he did; that is the Man, I
Lknow him well enough,

L. C. J. When you rook him, in what Ship
was you !

R. Crouch, In the Coventry. -

L. C. J. Out of what Ship was he taken?

R. Cronch. The Two-and-twenty-Oar Barge,

L.C. J. What Ship did he belong to?

R. Crouch, 1 reckon it was my Lord Barclay'’s
Barge.

L.C. J. Whodid it belong to then 2

L

R. Crouch. To the King of Fraunce.

L.C. J. What Company was there in her »
How many Men had (he aboard ?

R. Crouch, Aboug fiveand twenty Hands,

Mr. Cowper, Did you ever hear him fay any
thing of a Commiffion he had ?

R. Cronch. U heard he had a French Commifiion,
but I did not fee it

Mr, Cowper. Ihd you hear lum fay any thing
of it?

R. Crouch. No.

Mr. Cozepers Buthe told you his Defizn was to
burn the Ships at the Noie?

R, Crouch. Yes.

Mr, Cowoper. What Ships?

R. Crouch, The Enelifb Ships 4
veral Ships there then,

L. C. }. Were there no Lreichmen aboard the
Barge?

R. Cronch, No, thar I can tell,

Mr. Lechmere, From whencedid hecome, fronm
Eneland, or France?

R. Cionch, From Caliisin France,

L. C. |. Prithee hear me, This Two-and-
tweney-Oar Barge, did it belong to any other
Ship?

R, Crouch. No, not that I can tell,

.. C. J. Did he call thac Vefiel the Loyal
Clencarty?

R. Crouch. Yes, my Lord.

there were -

Their Edmund Courtney wwas called.

Mr. Sol. Geir, Mr. Conrtaney, pray tell my Losd
and the Jury what you know of the going away
of 2 Cuftom-Houfe Boat?

Ed. Courtuey. 1 will tell you, if you pleale.

Mr. Phipps. My Lord, I think they ought rot
to examine to that, becaufe it is not laid 1 the
Indi@tment.  The carrying away of the Cuilom-
Houfe Barge is not mentioned in the Indiciments
and by the new Aé forregulating Trials in Cafes
of Treafon, no Evidenceis to beadmitred or given
of any Overt-Act, that is not exprelly laid in the
Indi¢tment.

L., C. J. Nothing elfe? Suppefe a Man be in-
dicted for Jevying War againtt the Kina, or ad-
hering to the King’s Iinemies, can’t they prove
any Act that makes out a levying of War, oran
Adherence to the King’s Enemy ?

Mr. Phipps. Wich Submiflion, not by that A&,
my Lord, unlefs it be laid in the Indiétment.

L. C. J. Levymg of Waristhe Treafon; may
they not prove that levying of War, without be-
ing confined to any {pecial or particular Act?

Mr. Phipps. With Submiflion, by the 2 5th of
Edward I, levying of War, as well as ima-
gining the Death of the King, mutt have the
Overt-Adts, that are to prove it, exprefs'd inthe
[ndt&tment,

L. C.]J. Levying of War isar Overt-Art.

Mr. Sof. Gen. The Bufinefs of Overt-Acis is.
where the compalling and imagining the King®
Deathis 2 Crime in Queftion 3 and this muit be
difcovered by Overt-Aéts.  But if Treafon be fal-
(fying of the King’s Money, this is Treafon ; but
there can be no Overt-At of thar, for chat is an
Overe- A€ 1t felf 5 bue there mult be an Overt-
Al to prove the compafling and .imagining the

Death of the King, and in no other Sortc of
T'reafon,

L.CJ.
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L. C. J. Levying of War, that is an Overt-
A& 5 fo is adhering to the King’s Enemies.
Now compafling and imagining the Death of the
King is notan Overt-Act in 1t ﬁ:lfz but 1s a fecret
Imagnation in the Mind, and a Purpolc in the
Heart ; but there muft be external Ats to difco-
ver that Imagination and Purpofe.

M. Phipps. What 15 the Meaning of the new
A& then, that there fhall be no Evidence of any
Overt-Aét, but what 1s laid in the Indiétment ?

L. C. J What Overt-Adts are there in Clip-
ping and Coining? |

Mr. Phipps. "That 1s not within the new A& of
Parliament,

L.C. J. That 1s molt true; the onc is cx-
cepted, the other is not comprehended: But the
Queftion is upon the Sutute of 25 Zd. Il to
which the Jate A& doth refer, Now proving an
Adherence to the King’s Iinemy, is proving an
Overt-Act.  Suppofe 1t be the killing of the
Chancellor, or Treafurer, or Judge in the Execu-
tion of lus Ofitce, what Overt-Aéts will you have
then? Adhering to the King’s Enemies, is a
T'reafon that conhifts i1 domg an Overt-A&.

Nr Poirps, Yes, my Lord, I take it that it
153 for the new Aclt, by laying, that wo Evideice
b3l be admitted of any Overt-AZ, that is not ex-
preft laid i the Dndeiment, mult be intended of
fuch Treafons, of which by Law Owvert-Aés
ought to be lud.  Now the killing of the Chan-
celior, or Treafurer, or Judge in the Execution
of lus Office, are not fuch Trealons of which it
was neceflary to lay any Overt- A&s in the Indiét-
ment, and fo not within the Meanisg of this new
Law. But levying War, and adhering o the
King’s Enemics, which are the Treafons in this
Indictment, mult by the exprefs Purview of o
Ed. I1L. be proved by Overt-Ads,
be alledaed in the Inditment.

Mr. 8¢t Geir. The new A& does not alter the
Law in this Particular 3 what was Law before, is
Law now 1t leaves the Overt-Ads as they were
before; and 1t fays not thar an Overt-A¢t need
to be exprels'd, where it was not needful before.
Now 1f 2 Man be indifted for compafling the
Death of a private Perfon, there ought to be

\ 5
which are o

fome Overe-A&t to prove his Defign; but if

there be an Indictment for Murder, there needs
no other Overt-A& to prove it, but the Mur-
der 1t {elf.

L. C. J. But the Force of the Objeion lics in
this, viz. Tofay a Man levied War, or adhered
to the Kmg’s Enemies, is no zood Inditment s
but 1t 1s neceflary to alledge in what manner he
levied War, or adhered to the King’s Enemies 5
as that he appeared in fuch a warlike manner, or
didl adhere to and affitt the King’s Enemics, by
joming Forces with them, or otherwife aflifline
theny, or confederating with them; that mult be
fpecified,  Bue if yoa mdict a Man aenerally for
adhering to the King’s Enemies, and not 1y how
and in what manner he did adhere to them, that
15 not a good Indittment 5 therefore, if you par-
tcukuize what Fremies, and how and'in whar
manrer he adher’d to them, no Lvidence can be
given of any other kind of Adherence, bur thae
which is fo foecified in the IndiCtment.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Then we mult put all our Evi-
dence into the Indictment. ,

\% Phipes. So you muit, as to the Overt- A&s.
Nr, S6l. Genr. That will be the fame thing as to
put in all our Evidence, if we muft give Evidence
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of no Overt-Act but what is exprefs’d in the In-
di¢tment. But I do not take i, chat the A&
requires all Overt- Aéls to be put in the Indiét-
ment,

Mr. Phipps. The A& fays fo. Suppofe you had
left out the Overt-Aé&, would the Indictment
have been good ?

Mr. Sol. Gen. We did not intend to put in all
the Over-Ads, but only what related to that
Part of the T'reafon.

Mr, Phipps. The Treafon muft be proved by
Overt- Adls, and the Overt-Adts that prove the
T'reafon mult be mentioned in the IndiGtment.

Mr. Sol. Gen. What! the Overt-A&s of the
Treafons before mentioned, as counterfeiting the
King’s Money, and the like, are all to be mien-
tioned ?

L. C. J. Conlider, if you can make that agood
Indi¢tment, to fay, that the Prifoner adhered to
the King’s Encmies, without mentioning any
Overt-Acéts to manifelt fuch an Adherence, then
your Anfwer to Mr. Phipps is full ; buc if it be
not a good Indi€tment, without alledging partis
cular Adts of Adherence, then it neceffarily fol-
Jows, thatif Particulars are alledged, and you do
not prove them as 1s alledged, you have failed in
the Indictment, and fo his Objection will lic hard
upon you.

Mr. Sol. Gen. My Lord, we framed our Indiét-
ment according to the Letter of the Statute;

L. C. J. In compafling the Death of the King,
you mult thew how that 1s manifefted by the
Overt-Ads,

Mr. Sof. Gen. Dut compafling and imagining
muft be difcovered by fome Overt-Aéts.

1. C. J. Treby. This is a Doubt I have often
thought of 5 I thought it moft natural that the
Word Overt-Act fhould relate to the firft Article,
viz. compalfiiiy and imagining of the King's Death :
For Overt-Act feens to be oppoled to fomething
of a contrary Nature: Act 1s oppofed properly
to ‘T'hought, Overr is properly oppofed to fecret.
And that Sort of Treafon confitting in {ecrec
Thought and internal Purpofe, cannot be known,
tried, ard judged of, without being difclofed and
manifefted by fome external open Aét. 'Where-
fore it is pertinent and reafonable, in order to at-
taint a Man of fucly Treafon, that the IndiGtment
fhoull charge and fet forth the A&, as well as the
Thought. And fo it hath been ufed to be done.

But fuch Order or Manner doth not feem {o na-
tural or neceflary, in framing Indi¢tments for other
Treatons, wherce the 1reafon confifts in vifible or
difcernible Fadts s as, levying War, &9,

Neverthelefs, I think an Overt-Aé& ought to
be alledged in an Indi@ment of Treafon for ad-
hering to the King’s Enemies, giving them Aid
and Comfort,  And the Overt-A&, or A&s, in
this Cafe, ought to be the particular A&ions,
Means, or Manner by which the Aid and Comfort
was given,

My Lord Coke declares his Opinion to this Pur-
pole. His Words (which I read out of his Book
here) are thefe: The Compofition and CoinicSFion of
the Words are to be obferved, viz. |thereof be at-
tainted by Overt- Deed.] This, fays he, relates to
the feverat and diflinél Treafons, before exprefs'd,
and ¢fpecially to the compaffing and imagining of the
Death of the King, &c. for that it is fecret tn the
Heart, &c. Now the Articles of Treafon, before
exprefs’d in the Statute of 25 Ed. lII, are four.
1, Compafling, &, 2. Violating the Queen, &,
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3. Levying War, and 4. This of Adhering, &.
(And yet it is hardly poffible to fet forth any
Overt-A& concerning the fecond, otherwife than
the Words of the Statute, that Article exprefling
{o particular a Fact.)

I do obferve alfo, that thefeWords { Betng there-
of attainted by Overt Fait) do, in this Statute, 1m-
mediately follow this Article of Adhering, &,
And it would be a great Violence to conftrue them
to refer to the frlt Article only, and not to this
lalt, to which they arc thus connected, If they
are to be reltrained to a fingle Article, 1t were
more agreeable to the ftrict Rules of Conftruing,
to refer them to this of Adhering only.

L. C. J. That which 1infit on is this, whe-
ther the Indi€tment would be good, withour ex-
prefling the fpecial Overt-Ack,  If it be, then this
is a Surplufage, and we are not confin’d to its
but if it be not a good Indi¢tment without ex-
prefling ir, then we are confin’d to it.

Mx, Phipps. 1 believe Mr. Sollicicor never faw
an Indi@ment of this kind, without an Overt-
A& laid 1n 1t

L. C. J. Can you prove the Fatts laid in the
Indi@ment? For certainly the Indi&ment, with-
out mentioning particular Acts of Adherence,
would not be good.

Mr., Cowper. Yes, my Lord 5 and as to the
Evidence before you, we would only offer this ;
whether in this Cafe, if the Indi¢tment were laid
cenerally, for adhering to the King's Enemics
in one Place, and in another Place levying of
War, and nothing more particular, it would be
caod : I doubt it would not, But when there 1s
faid a particular At of Adhering, we may give
in Evidence Matter to ftrengthen the direct Proof
of that particular At of Adhering to the King’s
TEnemies, though that Matter be not fpecially Iaid
in the IndiGment : For the At gocs only to this,
that the Prifoner fhall not be conviéted, unlefs
you prove againft him the Overt- Acts fpecially
laid in the Indiétmenty but whether it fhall not
be heard, to make the other Overt- A& which is
laid, the more probable? Now we have laid a
fpecial Overt- A¢t in the Indiétment 3 and we have
produced Evidence of 1t, and we would produce
likewile collateral Evidence, to induce 2 firmer
Belief of that fpecial Overt-Aét, by thewing you
that he hath made it his Pratice, during the
War, to aid and affilt the King’s Enemies: But
if the Jury do not find him guilty of the fpecial
Overt-Acts laid in the IndiGtment, they cannot
find him guilty by the Proof of any other Overt
A not laid in the Indiétment, But if we prove
he has made this his Practice, in other Inllances,
during the War, whether that Proof fhall not be
recetved ?

Mr, Phipps. My Lord, I defire the A& may
be read. It exprefly contradicts what Mr, Cowper
fays 5 for it fays, That no Evidence fhall be gt-
ven in the Overt- A, that is not exprefly laid in
the Indi¢tment.  [The A& was read.]

L. C.J. Thatis, you may give Evidence of
an Overt-Aé, that is not in the Indi&tment, if it
conduce to prove onc thatis init.  And if con-
fulting to kill the King, or raifc a Rebellion, is
laid in the Indi€tment, you may give in Evidence
an aéting in Purluance of a Confult, that is an Ii-
vidence that they agreed to do it; though that
doing of the Thing is, of it felf, another Overts
A, but 1t tends to prove the A&t laid in the In-
dictment,
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Mr, Pbipps. The Overt-Adt Iaid in this Indi&-
ment, is his cruifing in the Clenegrty y and this
Overt-A& you would prove, 1s no Evidence of
that, nor rclates to i, butits 2 diftin& Overt-
A& of it felf.

L.C. J. You cannot give Iuvidence of a di-
{tin& Aét, that has no Relation to theQvere-A )
mentioned in the Indictment, thoush it tha!l con-
duce to prove the fame Species of L'rcafon,

Mr, Cowper. We would appiy this Proof to
the Overt-A& laid 1n the Indictiment.

L.C. J. Any thing that has a direst Tendency
to 1f, you may provc.

M, Cowper. We have Iaid the Overt-A&, that
he did voluntarily put himfelf on Beard this Vefic]
of the Freuch King, the Layal Clencaity, and ¢l
oo to Sca in her, and cruife, with a Delign ro take
the Ships of the King of Englaid) awnd his Sub-
jefts. Now Part of the Overt-Act, 15 his Inten-
tion, in the Act of Cruifing ; we do not charge
him with taking one Ship 3 {o that his Intention
is a2 Member of the Oveie-Aét: and it mul be
proved, to make his Cruifing criminal) chag he
defign’d to take the Ships of the King of Kiglas!.
Now we think it a proper Intention, to fhew,
that during this War, before and after the Time
of the Treafon Jaid in the Indi@ment, he was »
Crutfer upon, and Taker of the King's Shipe,
and this fortilies the direét Proof given of the In-
tention.

L.C. J. I cannot agree to that, becanfe you
ao not about to prove what he did in the Veiitl
call’d the Loyal Clencarty § but that he had an
Intention to commit Depredation on the King’s
Subjefts: So he might, but in another Ship.
Now, becaufe a Man has a Defien to commis

epredation on the King’s Subjects in one Ship,
does that prove he bhad an Intention to do it in
another ?

Mr, Poipps. He was cruizing in the Cloncgiy

. i
w !

that is the Overt-Act laid m theIndidtmen:; and
the Overe-AQt you would produce, is his beipe
in another Vefltl, i

L. C. J Go on, and {hew what h{: did 1N the
Clencarty.  You the Priforer) will you aik this
Man any Queltions ¢

Mr. Phipps. Cronch, you faid, that the Pri-
foner did fay he could not deny but he was an
Irifbman 3 how came you to talk about it ?

R. Crsuen. e fud, T cannot deny bue [ am
an Irifbmasn. '

L.C. J Did he ﬂ'ly he was dn ﬁ'éﬂ:}jm;; 2 What
were the Words he ufed ?

R. Crouch. He told the Lieutenant he was an
Irifbman,

Mr. Phipps. What Difcourfe was there ? [ow
came he to fay that ?

R. Crouch. I went by only, and heard the
Words {poken to the Licutenant,

L. C. J. Did he fpeak Englifis ¢

R. Crouch. Yes, my Lord.

L. C L. If he fpoke Englifh, that is fome [vi-
dence he is an Englifhman, though the contrarv
may be proved by him, |

T. Vaughan, That would no more prove me ii
Lnglifoman, than it an Englifhman were in Fraiee,
and could fREﬂk French,would prove him a Freuch-
man, becaule he could f peak French,

L. C. J. _YGLI fhall be heard b}' and b}r (o ﬁ;}r
what you will on your own Behalf,

Mr. Phipps. Were thete any Frepchmer on
board the Clencarty ?

R.



1696. O.B. for High-Treafon o the High-Seas

R. Crouch. No, Str. . .

Mr. Phipps. Mr. Paughan, will you afk him
any Queftions your felf?

Mr. Cowper, Call T. Noden.

T, Vaughan. How did you know that there were
no Frenchmen aboard? Did 1 addrels my felf to
you when 1 came ab_oard?

R. Crouch. No, Sir,

T. Vangban. Did I not addrefs my felf to the
Captain when I came aboard ? How came I to
tell you I was an Irifbman 2

R. Cronch. They were all Scotchmen, Lnglifi-
men, and Iriflmen.

Mr. Phipps. Mr. Vanghan, you need not take
up the Time of the Court about that Matter.

Mr. Cowper. You may go on.

Me. Sol. Gen. Did the Prifoner own that he
aced by the French King’s Commiffion? Did you
know any thing of his having a French Com-
miffion ?

R. Crouch. Yes, I heard he had one, but I
did not fee ity but I heard fo by the Company.
I.. C.J. Werc there any Frencomen aboard ?

R. Crouch. No, notthat I know of, They were
Dutchmer, and Englifmen, and Scotchmen, and
Irifbnen.

Mr., Cowper. Call 7. Noden. (Who appeared
and was fworn.) Do you give my Lord and the
Jury an Account of taking the Veffel, call’d the
Tevg-and-twenty-Qar Barge 2

T. Noden. Laft Year, about Frie or Fuly, to
the beft of my Remembrance, I belong’d to his
iajefty’s Ship the Coventry, and we took the
Teeo-ard-twenty-Oar Barge.

L. C. J. How many Dutckien were aboard
. Noden, 1 do not know of above one.

L. C. J. Treby. What were the reft? Were
therc any Frenchmei ?

T. Neoden. Yes, there were feveral Frenchmen
aboard. I belong’d to the Coventryy and as we
were {aling by the Nore, and the Guifleet, our
Capiain {py’d a fmall Vefle] fatling by the Sands,
and he fuppos’d her to be a French Privateer, and
he fird a Gun to make them bring to, and they
did not obeyy and at laft ird a Gun, Shot and
all, and they would not come to. Then the Cap-
tain order’d to man the Boat, and row after them
So the Barge, and Pinnace, and Long-boat were
mann’d, and they came pretty near them.  ‘This
Barge we took, was aground alfo 5 and they got
her afloat, and fhe run aground again: And as
they vere azround, molt of them out of the Boat,
our Long-boat ftruck aground, and waded after
them near half a Leaguey and when we came to
the Barge, there was this Captain Paughasn, and
two or three and twenty more 5 and there was
two Dutchineir, and, as I apprehended, fome
Ficactineir, "Fhere was in her a Blunderbufs, and
{ E]Ll“ Arats, and a confliderable Quantity of Hand-
Granadoes.

L. C.J. What Veflel was you aboard?

1. Nodeir. The Coventry.

Mr. §2. Gen. What Countryman did Captain
Fangoen fay he was?

7. Nuoden. T did not hear any thing of 1it. Our
Caprain examin’d the Dutchmen what Countryman
the Commander was, and he faid he was an Jrifh-
waiz; but I did not hear it my felf. When Cap-
tiin Vanghan was brought aboard the Coveutry, I
was put aboard the Prize we had taken.

Mr. Cowper. Had you any Difcourfe with Cap-
tun Vaughan ?

-
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. Noden. No. .

L.C.J. Did they endeavour to take your
Ship? |

7. Noden. No, but endeavoured to get away
from us. |
L. C. J. What Guns or. Ammunition had
they 2 e

T. Noden. I cannottell particularly 3 there was
fome Canvafs Bags, every Man had a.Carteridge
Bag, and there were fome Hand-Granadoes,

Mr. Wiitaker. What Iire-Arms had they ?

7. Noden. I cannot fay how many ; but they
had Mufkets, and Piftols, and two Blunder-
buffes.

M. Cowper. Did you underftand whence this
Ship, the Loyal Clencarty, came ?

T. Noden. The Dutchmen faid they came from
Calais.  As near as I can guefs, we {py’d them
about Eleven a Clock, and we weigh’d Anchor in
the Afternoon, on Sabbath-day, and they took
us to be a light Collicr, and endeavour’d to
board us, as the Dutchman {aid 3 but when they
knew what we were, they endeavour’d to efcape
from us,

Mr. Cowper. Call Sam. Oldbam. (IF7ho appeared
and was fworin.) Mr. Oldbam, was you aboard the
Coventry, when fhe took the Ship called the Clexn-
carty?

Sam. Oldbam. Yes, I was.

Mr. Cowper. Pray give an Account what you
obferved of the Prifoner 7. Faughan then ?

Sam. Oldbam. We weigh’d our Anchor frft at
the Buoy and Nore; fo we {aw a P’rize in the
Morning ; the Captain faid it was a Prize, and
we made Satl after him, and they ran on the Good-
win Saids: And the Captan feeing the Barge
run aground, we fir'd at her to bring her to;
we fir'd g fecond, and fhe would not come to, but
ran aground agais.,  When fhe was aground, by
the Captain’s Order, we mann’d our Boats, and
out we went after her,

Mr. Cozwoper. Id you take her ?

Sam. Oldbam, We went, and our Long-boat
ran aground 5 1 was in the Long-boat, and we
waded, I belicve, a Mile and halt after her.

L. C. J. What Frenchmen were aboard ?

Sam. Oldbam. 1cannot juftly fay whether there
were any.

L. C. J. Were there any?

Sam. Oldbam. 1 think one or two.

M. Cowper. Were there any Dunlirkers or
IValloons aboard ?

Sam. Oldbam. There was a Dutchman, who they
call'd @ Fleming 5 and I difcours’d him,

L. C. J. How many outlandith Men were there
aboard ¢ Was there a Dozen, or how many?

Sam. Oldbam. 1 cannot fay the Quantity.

Mr., Cowper. Was there more than two or
three?

Sam. Oldbam. Yes, more than two or three,

L. C. J. Whar, IForetgners ¢

Sam. Oldbam. Yes. And there were two
Englifbmen. |

M. Cowper. What did you obferve of the Pri-
foner at the Bar, at the taking of the Ship?

Sam. Oldbam. 1 did not come aboard along
with the Prifoner, but with his Man 3 and s
Man faid he was an Jrifhman, and that he was
Commander of the Boat.

Mr. Sol. Gen. What was their Defign 1n that
Ship Cleuncarty ?

Sam. Oldbam. I cannot tell that,

M:.
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taken? o . -

Sam, Oldbam. 1 cnnot tell thats 1 faw no
Arms, -

M. Cowper. Youwere in the Action; was there
any Refiftance made? o

Sam. Oldbam. 1faw no Refiftance ; they offered
to run, they were aground once, and got off
dgain, .

Mr. Phipps. You fay there were Forcigners;
what Countrymen did you believe thofe Forcigners
to be? _

~ Sam. Oldbam, 1 cannot juftly fay, I believe
Dutchmen.

L. C. J. How'many Dutchmen were there £

Sam. Oldham. 1 cannot fay.

Dr. Oldifh. But you faid there were fome two or
three Frenchmen, and that they fpoke French 5 do
you underftand French ¢

Sam. Oldbam, No, Sir,

Dr. Oldifb. ‘Then how do you know they were
Trenchmen, and fpoke French ¢ |

Sair. Oldbam, They faid they were 3 they did
not fpeak Englifh s feveral of the Ship’s Company
faid they were Freich.

L. C.J. If they were all Datchmen, and appear
in a hoftile Manner againtt the King of England’s
Subjeéts, they are Enemies, tho’ weare in League
with Folland, and the reft of the Scven Pro-
vinees,

Mr Phipps. The Indi@ment runs, That the
French King, quandam Naviculam wocat’” The
Loyal Clencarty, cum quamplurimis Subditis Gal-
licis, Inimicis Dom. Regis mune, ad mumerum quin-
decim Peyfonarum, replet’ preparavit,

L. C. J. Suppofe it doth ?

Mr. Phipps. 1t is Subditis Gallivis, my Lord.

L. C. ]. They will be Subjeéts in that Matter,
if they act under his Commiflion : They are
Linemies to the King of Eugland, and they have
made themfelves the Lrench King's Subjects by
that Aét,

My, Phipps, 1t appears not that they are Freich-
men, my Lord,

L. C. J. If Dutehmen turn Rebels to the State,
and take Pay of the French King, they are under
the Lrench King’s Command, and {o are his Sub-
jefts.  Will you make them Pirates, when they
€t under the Commiflion of a Sovereign Prince?
They are then Sebditi to him, and fo fuimic
1o s,

Mr. Pbipps. It does not take away their Alle-
giance to their lawful Prince,  They may go to
the French King, and ferve him 3 yet chat does not
wansfer their Allegiance from thetr lawful Prince
to the French King, and make them his Subjects.
But however, to make them Subjets within this
Indiflment, they muft be Gallici Sudditzy fo they
mult be Freichmen as well as Subjeéts,

L. C. J. Afing by Vertue of a Commiflion
from the french King, will excufe them from be-
g Pirates, tho’ not from being Traitors to their
own State 3 but to all other P’rinces and States
again(t whom they doany Ads of Hoftility, they
are Enemies : And thetr {erving under the Freuch
King’s Commiflion, makes them his Subjeés as to

all others but their own Prince or State,  And
tho’ they be not Frenchmen, yet they are Gallici
Subditi 5 for it’s the French Subjetion that makes
them to be Gallici Subditi.,

Mtr. Phipps. Pray, my Lord, fuppofe a Subje&
of Spain fhould go over to the French, and fight

Mr, Cowper, Did they reﬁ[},‘iq their“being‘

againlt England 5 1 take it, he may: be termed an
Enemy of the King of England, tho’ his Prince
bé in League with ours; but, with Submiffion,
he cannot properly be faid to be a Subjeét of the
French King : For fuppofe an IndiCtment of Trea-
fon againtt a Foreigner, fhould fay, 2bat be being
a Sibject, did commit Treafon s if it be proved he
is not a Subjet, witli Submiffion, he muft be
acquitted,

Mr. Cowper. There 1sa local Allegiance while
he is in thie Country, or Fleets, or Armies of the
French King,

L. C. J. Dutchmer may be Enemies, notwith-
ftanding their State is in Amity with us, if they
act as Enemies,

Mr, Cowper. Call K. Bub. (He was fivorn.)
Was you aboard the Cozentry, when fhe took
the Cleacarty?

R. Bub. Yes, Sir.

Mr, Cowper. Givean Account what you know
of the Prifoner, T0o. Vaughan, at e Taking of
that Ship.

R, Bub. We came aboard the Coventry, and
were at the Nore at Anchor; our Pennant was
taken down to be mended, So in the Night Cap-
tain Panghan, with lis Twe-and-twenty-Oai Baige,
rounded us two or three umes,  In the Merning
we weich’d Anchor, and fell down, in order to go
to the Downs 5 and we came vp with them, and
fir'd at Capram Farghai, and he would not bring
to.  With that, our Captain order’d to have the
Barge, and Pinnace, and Long-boat to be mann’d,
to go after hiny.  They follow’d him, and at Jaft
canic up with lum, and came up pretey near; buc
could not come fo near with the Long-boat, but
were fain to wade up to the Middle a Mile and
a hall,  We hoifted our Colours, inorder to fight
them, and bore down {tiil upon themy and they
would not fight our Men: And we took them
out 3 and when they came aboard, the Zng/ithman
that was a Pilot was to have his Freedom, to pilot
them up the River. He confefs’d to the Capran,
that Captain Vaughan intended to burn the Ships
in the Harbour : And the next Duay after the Pi-
lot had confeffed it, Captain Vanghan himfelf con-
fefled 1t on the Declks, that he came over with thae
Delign,

Mr. Cozwper. Who did he confefs it to ?

R. Bub. To the Boatfwain and Gunner, as he
was on the Deck, on the Larboard-Side 5 that he

came on purpofe to burn the Shipping in the
Harbour.

L. C, J. Did he confefs that himfef ?
R, Bub. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. . Whereabout was this, at the Broy 72
the Nore?
R. Bub. In the Dotons, my Lord.

L. C. J. Where did the Ships lic that were to be
burn’d ?

R. Bub. At Sheerncfs.

Mr. Sol. Gen. He own’d himafelf to be an Liifl-
man, did he not?

R. Bub, Yes,

Mr. Cowper. And that he came from Calais ?
R, Bub, Yes,

Mr. Cowper. Had you any Difcourfe with him
about a Commiffion ?

R. Bub. No. But our Licutenant and Captain
had, but it was not in my Hearing ; I will not
[peak further than T heard, and what [ can jutify.

Mr. §ol. Gen. Will you afk him any Queitions 2

Mr, Phipps. No, -

Mr.
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M. Sol. Gesi: Then call M., o. Crittendén, Mars
fhalof Dover-Caftle, (who was fworn.) Mr. Critten-
den, Pray what did you hear the Prifoner ar the
Bar confefs of his Defign in coming to England 2

M. Crittenden. 1 did not-hear him fay any
thing of his Delign. O

M. Sol. Ger. What did he confefs? ,

M. Crittenden. He confefs’d he was an Irifbman,

Mr. #¥bitaker. Upon what Occafion did he con-
fefs chat? - o

Mr. Crittenden. When T enter’d him 1into my
Book, I afk’d him what Countryman he was,

Mr. Crwper., What are you?

Mr. Crittenden. I am the Marfhal of Dover-

Caftle. |
Mr. Cowper, By what Name did he order you

to enter him ?
Mr. Crittenden. Thomas Vaughan, an Irifbman.
1..C.J. Upon what Accountdid you enter him ¥
Mr.Crittenden. As a Prifoner,
Mr., Cowper. Did he {peak any thing of a Com-

mifiion ? |
Mr. Crittenden. 1 did not hear him fay any

thing of that.

Mr. Phipps. Have you your Book here?

Mr. Crittenden. Yes, Sir,

Dr.Oldifb. Was he not in Drink when he faid fo?

Mr. Crittenden. | believe he was not very {ober,
indeed.

Mr. Pbipps. Did you ever after hear him fay
he was an [rifbman 2

Mr. Crittenden. The next Day he deny’d 1t

Mr. Cowper, When he had confider’d the Dan-
ger of 1t.

M. Crittenden. The nexe Day he was examin’d
by fome of the Juftices of the Peace.

Mr. 8ol Gen. Was you by when he was exa-
mined by the Juftices?

Mr. Crittenden. Yes,

Mz, Sol. Gen. What did he then fay ?

Mr. Crittenden. Then he faid he was of AMar-
lenico,

Mr, Sol. Gen, Set up Mr. Bullock (who was
fevorn.) Mr. Bullock, Do you know the Prifoner
at +he Bar ¢

Mr. Bidleck. Yes.

Mr. Sof, Gen. Pray what have you heard him
fay of his Defign that he came into England for?

Mr. Bullock. Fe came to Dover about the 1.4th
of Fuly, 1695, as | remember: I went with fe-
veral others, who were brought by the Caprain of
the Cyuentry, and the Lieatenant, and fome others :
And when we came thither, he there owned him-
felt an Irifmany but when he went the next Day
to be examin’d, he faid he was of Martenico, He
told me he had that Barge from the Duke of By/-
foigin, and came on the Coalt, and was chafed in-
to the Matts, where they took him,

[..C. J. Did you ever hear him fay he had
any Conunillion from the French King ¢

Mr. Bullock. I know nothing of that; it was
late, and we did not examine him then; but the
next Day, when he came to be examined, he
faid he was of Martenico.

Mr. 8¢, Gen. What did he fay his Defign was?

Mr, Bullock, He faid, that {ecing the Boat at
Bulloign, he bought it of the Duke of Bullsign
and the Duke afk’d him what he would do with
her? And he fud, he would fit her up, and go
and take a Ship atSea, that 1s, upon our Coafls,

Mr, Phipps. We arc in your Lordfhip’s Judg-
ment, whether we need give any Evidence ; for
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we think théy have riot proved their Indi@tnicnt ;
For the Indiftment fets forth, Zhat the French
King fitted ont the Loyal Clencarty, of which

‘Thomas Vaughan was Commander 3 and that very

many Frenchmen, Subjefts of thé French King, were
put on board, Now the firlt Witnefs fwears, there
were no Frenchmen ; and another {wears there
was one or two; another, that they were Foreign-
ers 3 but does not believe they were Frenchmen.
So there is no Proof of that Part of the Indiét-
ment ; nor is there any Proof that he was Cap-
tain of the Layal Clencarty : So that none can fay,
it is the fame Veflel mention’d in the Indiétment,
Noris any A¢t of Hoftility proved ; for all the
Witnefles fay, that Vaughan never pretended to
attack them, but run fromthem. So thatall they
depend on, to fupport the Indictment, is to prove
that he had a Defign to burn the Ships at Sheer-
nefs 3 which will not {erve their Turn; for the
Words of the Indi&tment are; ad predaidum fu-
per altum Mare. Now Sheeruefs 1s not fuper altum
Mare, but iufra Corpus Comitatus 5 and then not
within the Indi¢tment,

Mr., Cowper. The Words Ships atSheernefs, do
not imply, thatthe Ships lay within the Town of
Sheernefs, butoff of Sheernefs, whichis altum Mar-.

Mr. Phipps. Then it is not 1n your Indictment ;
for that fays, at Sheerugfs.

M, Cowper. No, ofl’ of Sbeernefs.

Mr. Sol. Genr. It 1s no Contradiction, to fay the
Sea is within Part of a County.

Mr. Phipps. TheInditment fays at Sheeruefs.,

Mr. Sol. Gen. Off of Sbeernefsis the high Sea.

Mr. Phipps. Sheernefsis not the Buoy in the Nore.
Then you muft prove he was Captainat this Time::
For the Indictment fays, Ad tune fuit Capitaneus
(5 Miles,

L.C. J. One Overt-Alt of adhering to the
King's Enemies, is, that he put himieif as a Sol-

dier on board the Ship.
Mr. Phipps. You will make one Part agree witly

another, That the French King did fet our a Ship,
and gave him a Commiflion to be Captain of her.

L. C.]. The Witneffes have prov’d he atted
as 2 Captain,

Mr. Phipps. He was taken 3 and fure, if he was
taken, he muft have his Commutlion with him.

Mr. Sof. Gen. Examine the Marfhal, he took an
Account of him: And by Direction of Mr.Vaughan
himfelf, he enter’d him as Captain 3 and he en-
te’d feveral Men in the Ship as Frenchmen, by
their own Direction. (M. Crittenden svas call’d,)
Mr. Crittenden have you got your Book in which
you made the Entry ¢

Mr. Crittenden, Yes, I have it.

Mr. Sof. Gen, By whofe Order did you enter
them ?

Mr. Critienden. By the Diretion of Captain
Vaugban, the Prifoner at the Bar,

Mr. Cowper, Flow did you know he was a Cap-
tain P

Mr. Crittenden. Becaufe he told me he was Cap-
tain, and I enter’d him as fuch in my Book.

Mt Sol. Gen. Captain of what?

Mr. Crittenden. The Loyal Clencarty.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Pray read your Eatry 1n your

Book.
M. Crittenden. Thomas Vaughan, Captan, Irifh-

man, the 14th of Fuly, 16955 and{o of all the
reft of the Ship’s Crew.
Mr. J. Turten. Did you write thefe in the Pre-

fence of Captain Vaughan?
I M,
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M. Crittenden. Yes, in the fame Room where
he was, o L
Mr. Phipps. Did you write it by his Direction ¢
M. Crittenden. For his own Part, by his Di-
reftion s and for the reft, by their Direction.
L.C. J. Take all the Circumf{tances together,
it i great Evidence, confidering what thf:y were
about, and what Veffel they had. Mr. Crittenden,
can you tell how many Frenchmen were there?
Mr. Crittenden. 1 will tell you prefently, (He
conuls them in bis Book.) There were thirteen.
Mr. Sol. Gen. Did Captain Panghan hear any
of them bid you enter them as Freachmen €
Mr. Crittenden. 1 cannot be pofitive in that, I
fuppofe he did 3 he was in the fame Room.
L. C. J. Do you cxpet Witnefles from Fraiice,
to teftify where they were born and chriften’d ?
Mr. Phipps. One Witncls fays there was not
one Frenchman there.
L.C. J. Not to his Knowledge.
M. Sol. Gen. What do you know of his having
a French Commilfion ?
Mr. Bullock. T did not fee 1t.
M. IWhitaker, Did he own his having any
Lench Commiflion ?
Mr. Bullock. T cannot tell. |
Mr. J. Turton. He own’d himfelf a Capain.
Mr. Phipps. e might bea Captain in another
Ship, but not in this Ship ; they ought to prove
he was Captain at that Time, in that Ship, by
the feuch King's Commuffion.
[..C.T. All the Witnefies fay he ated as a
Captain at that Time. |
M. Cozoper. He own’d himfelf the Captain of
the Loyal Clencarty.
Mr. Bar. Peevis. What can be plainer, than
that he own’d himfelf Captain ¢
Dr, Oldifh. This {eems to me a very trange
Proof, to be buile only upon the Sayings of thefe
Perfons, that they were Frenchuen s and thistoa
Man who had no Authority to examine them,
when it might have been cafily prov’d ma regular
Way, in Cafe they had been fo 5 they might have
been examined before a Magiftrate, and thereby
it would have appeared whether they were Firench
ot no, And’twas abfolutely neceffary in this Cale,
becaufe of the Contraricty of the Witnefles s for
the firlt Witnefs faid, there were no Ficiichmer
aboard ; the next faid there were two Freichinei
and o Dutchman s and Crittenden faid, there were
thirteen,  Now how can thefe be reconciled, un-
fofs there had been a legal Examination of the Par-
ties? But the Thing we would chielly go on1s
this 5 | think they have faiPd in the Foundation
of the Treafon ; that is, to prove the Prifoncr a
Subjet of this Crown ;3 neither 1s there the lealt
Colour of Proof thereof, At Night he came to
Mr. Critterden, and is in Drink 5 there he fays he
is an Irifbmair : 'The next Morning, when he is ex-
amin’d before the Juftices, then he comes in a kind
of Judgment, and then fuch a Confeflion would
be of Moment ; but then he confefles himfelf to
be a Frenchman of Martenico.  Now, my Lord,
what Credit is to be given to thefe Conteflions
when before the Marfhal he fhall fay, I am an
Irifhman, and the next Day, when he 1s on Ex-
amination, he declares imfelf a Freachmany n
one Confeflion heis in Drink, in the other fober?
Now, my Lord, I fay, what Proof is here? Here
then the Foundation of the Treafon fails: For the
Indi&tment is, That be being aSubjei? of the King of
Yngland, levies IWar, Now, my Lord, if this

Quality be not proved, all the reft of the Indict-
ment falls to the Ground: For it is impoffible for
him to commit Treafon, where he 1s not a Sub-
jeét 5 becaufe there can be no Violation of Allegi-
ance. So that if he be a Frenchman, as he decla-
red before the Juftices, he cannot be guilty of
Treafon. So that here they havefail’d in the Foun-
dation of all 3 that is, to prove him a Subject of
Eugland, And becaufe they affirm him to be fo,
it lies on thofe that affirm it, to prove it, Bur,
perhaps, now they will fay, that thefe little Confel-
fions of his will throw the Burden of Proof on him,
By no Meanss when here is a ftronger Prefump-
tion on the other Side, a meer extrajudicial Saying
to Seamen, that he 1s an Zrifbman, cannot ballance
his Confefiion examined before the Juftices, where-

in he fays he 1s a Freichmans and {o can never

throw the Burden of Proof on him. Therelore
it lies on them that affert cthis to prove 1c.  But,
my Lord, tho’ it doth not lie on lnm, yet we will
prove him to be a Frenchman, and born at Marte-
#ico, by thofe that were at the Chriflening of him,
and have known him from Time to Time ever
fince.  And becaufe they fay, he can fpeak
Luglifh, 1f you pleale to examine him, you fhall
hear him {peak natural French 5 fo that that can-
not prove him to be a natural Jrifbman.

Mr, Phipps. Such a Saying of a Forcigner will
be of no great Weight 3 becaufe, if a Man go 1nto
a foreign Country, he may fay he is that Country-
man to get the more Favour.

L. C. J. What, to hang himfelf ?

Mr, Phipps, No, my Lord, a Man that comes
into a {trange Country, may very well think he
fhall find better Ufage, by pretending to be of
that Country, than by owning himielf to be a
Foreigner, But we will prove Paughan to be a
Frenchman.  Call Robert Erench.  (Then Robert
I'rench was fivori,) M, Freneh, Pray give the
Court and Jury an Account, whether you know
Mr. Vanghan, the Prifoner at the Bar, and how
long you have known him, and what Country-
man you take him to be, and the Reafon why.

Rob. Freneh, 1 have known him this foureen
Years,

Mr. Phipps. Where did you fee him then?

Rob, Irench, 1 faw him i Satut Chiilotdeis.

Mur, Phipps, Pray cive an Account how you
came to know him,

Rob. French, About fixteen Years ago I was at
Mouint-Surat, and I came to 8¢, Chiiflophers, and
there I chanc’d to come mto Euglifh Ground, a-
mong the Factors 3 and {o they brougat nic to the
Lrench Ground 5 and coming there, I was in Com-
pany with feveral others that Night, and 1t hap-
pened [ was told there was one Mr, Zaughai theres
and I coming acquainted with him, he thew’d me
this Youth (he was a Youth then ;) He told e
he was bis Son, and recommended him to me, be-
caufe he look’d on me to be a Man in Truft and
Bufinefs,

Mr. Pbipps. Irom that Time what has he been
reputed ¢ :

Rab, Freneh. A Sea-faring Man,

Mr., Phbipps. But what Countryman

Rob, French., To be born in Auiteiico.

Mr. Phipps. In whofe Dominicns is that ?

Raob. French, In the French King’s Dominion.

Mr. J. Zurton, What Occaflion had you to dif-
courle of the Place of his Birth ?

Rob. Ireich, Becaufe his Father was look’d
upon to be a Lienchman,

Mr,
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Mr. J. Turton, His Father was a Frenchman 2

Rob. French. Yes, my Lord, and lived at Mai-
tenico, ce * .

Me. Cowper. How old might he be at that Time?

Rob. French. About Fifreen or Sixteen,

Mr. Cowper. How came you to be talking of his
Birth, and with whom ?

Rob. French. One that was talking with me,
told me, his Name was Vaughai, and that hie was
born there,

Mr. Cowper. What introduc’d this Difcourfe ?
How came he to tell you this, that he was born
in that Place?

Rob. French, His Father told me fo.

Mr. Cowper. Youwere talking of one Paughas
of his Name : How many were in Company when
there was this Talk?

Rob. French, There were many of them.

Mr, Cowper, Name them, _ |

Rob. French. It is fo longago I cannot remem-
ber them. .

Mr. Cowpger. Name as many as youcanof them,
as many as you do remember.

Rob. French. On~ Mr. Bodiken, a Faétor,

Mr. Cowper, Wh» elfe?

Rob. French. Several others,

Mr, Cowper. You named one Vaughay before,

Rob, French, Yes, I did.

Mr. Cowper. But you had forgot him now,

Rob. French. No, there was one Vaugban,

L. C, J. Were there any more?

Rob. French. Yes, there was 3 I remember the
Company that went along with me,

L. C. J. Who were they?

Rob. French.. There were feveral Paflengers that
went over with me.

L. C. ]J. How came you to talk of this Man’s
Narivity 2

Rob. French, Becaufe his Father faid, lie had not
been out of the Ifland i twenty Years; (A which
the People laugh'd.)

Mr. Coweper, What Place was this Difcourfe
in?

Rob. Freach. At St. Chriftophers.

Mr. Cowper. How did his Father’s faying, Le
had not been out of that Ifland in twenty Years,
prove his Son was born there?

Rob. French, Becaufe he recommended him to
mc as a Sea faring Man.

Mr. Cowwper, What 1s that a Reafon of ? What
1s that to his being born at® Martenico?

Mr. J. Tarton, What Countryman are you ?

Rob. French, 1am an Irifbman born.

L. C. J. His Father acknowlede’d himfelf to
be an Irifhman born 3 Did he not?

Rob, Fircich.No, my Lord, he did not fay where
he was born: Ido not know.

Mr. J. Zurton, Have you continu’d any Ac-
quatntance with Mr. Panghan. fince? How long
did you ftay at Sz, Chriftophers?

Rab, Irench. 1 ftay’d but fourand twenty Hours,
to take in Water.

L. C. J. How long was it after this, before you
faw this Gentleman, Captain Vaughan?

- Rdb. French, I never faw him fince, till I faw him
0 Loudsir,  (Then the People laugh'd. )

- L.C.}. Pray Gentlemen have Patience. How

do you know now that chis is the fame Man, that

you faw fourteen Years ago? For there muft be a

great Alterarion in a Man In fourteen Years Time,

from what was at that Time, being but fifteen
Years of Age,
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. Rob. French.” I believe in my Confcience this is
the Man. |

L. C. J. Can you take it upon your Oath he is
the Man? .

M. Bar. Powis,
Difcourfe? | -

L. C. J. How long were you in Comﬁan'y with
him and his Father?

Rob, Iirench. 1 believe five or fix Hours.
~ Mr. Bar. Powis. In what Language was this Dif-
courfe with his Father ?

Rob, French. My Lord, he fpoke Zuglifh. a Sort
of broken E;{gl%.y . P_ gy a Sor

L.C. J. Where do you live your felf?

Rob. French, 1 live in Ireland,

L. C. J. How long have you lived there?

Rob, French. Nine or Ten Years,

L. C. J. Whereabout in Irelend ?

Rob, French, In Connaught, .

L. C. J. Nine or Ten Years?

Rob, French, Yes, my Lord, .

Dr. Littleton. Did not Captain Panghan, nor his
Father fpeak Irifb to you in that fix Hours?

Rob. French, No, my Lord.

Mr. jultice Turton. Flow long have you been in
England?

Rob. French, Not above two Months.

Mr, Juftice Turton. Did you hear of Captain
Vaughan being to be try’d?

Rob, Freach, No, my Lord.

Mr. Juftice Turton, How did he come to hearof
you then ?

Rea. French. 1 heard he was in Town.

L. C.]J. Itisaftrange Thing ; you hive a moft
admirable Memory, and Captain Parghan has as
good a Memory asyou y that you thould never have
any Intercourfe for fourteen Years, and yet fhould
remember one another after fo long a Time, Itisa
wonderful Thing too, that when he could not
know you were in Town, yet he thould call you a
Witnels on his Behalf; {fure he muft have the
Spirit of Prophecy.

Rob. French, He did not {end to me at all,

I.. C. J. How did you come to be here then?

Rob. French, Iwill tell you. It was my Cultom
always to go and fee Prifonerss and I heard there
were Prifoners in Newgate; {o 1 went to Newgate,
and I met with one Dwall; and I afk’d him of
another Gentleman that wus therey and I went
to the other Side by Chance, and I met with Cap-
tain Yaughan, ‘

L. C. J. What wasthy Defign? Why didft thou
vifit Newpgate?

Rob., French, Becaufe it was my Cuftom, becaufe
it was an Aét of Charity., .

L. C. J. Did you go to Newgate out of Charity ?

Rob. French, I went to fec my Friend, and carri-
ed a Letter to htim.  I'wentout of Charity.

Mr. Phipps. Y ou wereinthe Z7¢ff- [ndies,upon the
French Grouna dow’t they fpeak Englifh on the
FrenchGround,and French on the Englifh Ground ?

Rob. French. Yes.

Mr. Cowper. So they do here. Did you ever
fee Captain Vaughan before that Time ¢

Reb. French. No.

Me. I7bitaker. Did you wvifit lately any other
Prifoners in Newgate, befides Captain Vaughan?

Reb. French. Yes.

Mr. Whitaker. Give their Names,

Reb. French, Lhave vifited Mr., Nvland,and ano-
ther Gentleman thae is with himy and I went into

the Houfe and drank with him there.
o2

In what Language had you the

My,
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My, Whilaker. Whatis that other Gentlemanfs
Name? _

Rob. French. 1do not temember his Name at

refent 3 but he 1s a Companion of Mr. Noland’s,

Mr. Whitaker. Do you know him if you fee
him ?

Rob. French. 1, 1 would, |

L. C. J. Treby. How long have you been in
England ¢

Rob. French. But two Months. _ _

L. C. J. Treby. Have you ufually vifited Pri-
foners in former Years ?

Rob. French. My Lord, where-ever I have been,

it was my Cuftom to do fo. _
L. C. J. Treby. But how doth 1t confift, that

you, whoare an Irifbman, fhould come hither to
vifit Prifoners in Newgate 2

Rob. French. Ican proveunder my Lord-Mayor
of Dublin’s Hand, that I came here upon Bufinefs ;
and I went to the Prifon to vifit the Prifoners for
Charity-fake, and did beftow 1t according as1 was
able.

L. C. J. You had beft {tay there, and not go
away 3 for we may have Occafionto afk you fome
Queltions. .

Mr. Cowger. Do you not ufe, outof Charity, to
be Evidence for them ? |

Rab. Fyench. No, never before in my Life.

Mz, Whitaker. W hat other Prifons have youvi-
fited, befides Newgale 2

Rob. French. 1 did vifit none.

L. C. J. Treby. Had you no Charity for other
Prifons?

Mr, Bar. Powis When you o vific Prifons, on
what Account is it? Is it to give ghoftly Advice?

Rob. French. Upon a charitable Account, my
Lord.

L. C. J. Ghoftly Advice and Charity.

Mr. Phipps. Where is Mr. Lefleny 2 ( He did not
afpear.) Call Mr. Gold, (who appear’d,)

&/, of drr. That Manisattainted, but pardon-
e

Mr. Phipps. Mr. Gold, how long have you
known Captain Vanghan ?

Mr. Gold. I never knew Mr. Vanghan, before I
faw him in the Maurflalfea.

Mr. Phipps. Is Monlieur Leflonr here? Is Mr.
Deherty here?  (Mr. Deherty appeared and was
fworn, }

Mr. Phipps. Do you know Mr. Vaughan, the
Prifoner ac che Bar?

Mr. Deberty. Yes.

Mr. Phipps. How long have you known him

Mr. Deberty, Five Years,

M. Phipps. W hat has he becn reputed allalong,
fince you have known him?

Mr. Deberty. A Frenchman,

Mr. Phipps. Did you know him in France?

M. Deberfy. Yes, and he was reputed a French-
main there, ,

Mr. Jultice Turton. What Occafion had you
to enquire into that, the Place of his Nativity ?

Mr. Deberty. Idid not enquire at all 5 but ope
that was his Servant, was my Comrade 2 great
while,

Mr. Phipps. Now we will prove where he was
chriltened, by one that wasas his Chriftening.
Mr. Dafeine.  (He appear'd and frood up, being
Jworn, and fpoke in French to the Cours, prelending
be could not fpeak Englith,)

L. C. J. If he cannoe fpeak Englifh, there myft
be an Interpreter.

Mr: Sol. Gen. They muift find an Interpreter, he
15 their Witnefs;

Then a Perfonin Conrt ffood up, and told the Coyps
be conld fpeak Englith aswell as be s that be had

been a BailifPs Follower for feveral Yeqrs,

L. C. J. You can {peak Englifh, can you not ?

M. Dafeine. 1 will fpeak as well as I can,

King’s Meflenger. 1 am a Meflenger to the King,
Do you know me?

Mr. Dafeine, Ycs.

L. C. J. Prithee {peak Englifh,

Mr. Dafcine. As wellas I can, my Lord, T will
{peak. |

Mr. Phipps. Are you {worn?

Mr. Dafecine. Yes, my Lord.

Mr. Phipps. Do you know Captain Vaughan ?

Mr. Dafcine. In 1669, I was in St Chriftopbers,
I went from Roar, and from thence I went wich
Hats and Cloth to Crebeck, and had a Letter to one
Thomas Williams, a Faltor in Martenico.  And zf.
ter I had done, as I was coming away, Mr. /#7/j-
ams deflired me to go to a Chriftening, a Mile and
half from Port-Royal, He told me, there was one
Mr. Panghan had a Plantation there, and defired
him to be Godfather. And about two Days after,
I went from Pors-Royal to §t.Chriftophers agan,and
I'came to Roan again ina Ship called . Joferb.
S0 11 1677, 1 went to St. Chriftophers agam, and
from thence to Martenico, to Mr, Williamss 1 aflced
him, what is become of that young Man we were
at the Chrittening ? and fo he fhewed me him thar
is here (sointing to the Prifoner.)

L.C. J. That was in 1677 ?

Mr, Dafeine. In 1697, So I came from Pars-
Royaly I went 1082, Chriftaphers, andfo took Sail,
and came to Fraice again.  And 13 Years ago 1
went o §t, Chriffopbers again, and to Monztferat,
and Martenico s and fo when I was ar Maricrico,
and afked Mr, 777lliams of this young Mun, that [
was at his Chriftening, and he {aid, he is at fuch
an Houfe, and I faw him there,

L. C. J. Thirteen Years ago.

Mr. Dafeine, And we wenr and drank Punch to-
gether, and I came back for Roan.

L. C. J. When did you fee him fince that?

Mt. Dafiine. Never till I faw him here a Pri-
{oner,

L. C. J. How do you know he is the Map 2

Mr. Dafcine. He has a Bruife in his Side,

Mr. Phipps. What was the Gentleman’s Name,
av the Chriftening of whofe Child yeu were ?

M. Dafeine. Thomas Vangbaj.

Mr. Phipps. What was the Child’s Name ?

Mr. Dafeine. Thomas Vaughan,

Mr. Phipps. When you went the next Time to
Marteinco, did Mr. I¥illiams, you fpeak of, thar
was the Godfather, prefent this Perfon, Captain
Vaghan, to you, as the Man who was then chrie
ftened ?

Mv. Dafiine. Yes, the next Time.

M. Phipps. Now is Captain Vanghan, that ftands
at the Bar, that very Gentleman ?

Mr. Dafeine. Tam fure it is he.

L. C. J. You fay this Meeting was about 1669 ?

Mr. Dafcine. Yes.

Mr. Sol. Gex. Pray what was the Reafon you were
fo inquilitive to know what became of that Perfon
that was chriftened when you was there?

Mr. Dafeine, Becaufe I being a the Chriftening,
Lafk’d him how the Child did ?

L.C, J.
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1,.C.T. How came you to take fuch extraor-
dinary O{)fcrvation of that Child ? Was he fuch

o remarkable Child ?
Dr. Newton. Where were you born ¢
Mr. Dafeine. In France.
Mr. Whitaket. What are you?
Mr. Dafeine. A Barber by Trade.
L.C.J. What Employment have you f
Mr. Dafecine. An Officer 1n the Marfbal’s Conrt

fometimes. |
M. Juftice Turton. What was this Man’s Fa-

ther, what Sort of Man was he ?
Mr. Dafeine. A tall Man. ,
M. Baron Powwis. What was his Father’s Name?

Mr. Dafeine. Thomas Vaughan. .
Mr. Juftice Turton. Was his Father living when

wae there the fecond Time ? |
YOIEVII‘. Dafcine. The Jaft Time I was there I did

rot {ee his Father, but I faw his Father the fecond

Time. 5
Mr. Juftice Turton. But you faw Mr. Williams,

Lis Godiather.

Mr. Dafecine. Yes.
Mr. Phipps. Call Simon Danneaun.

Tho. Vanghan. My Lord, he is fick, and not

ble to come out of his Bed.
11 Mr. Phipes. Call Francis Harvey. (Who was

WorH.
fwgﬁr.) Phipps. Do you Emow Captain Vaughan 4

Francis Harvey. Sir, in the Year 1093, I was
in France, with one Captain Bontee, who was ta-
ken Prifoner in Auguft the fame Year; and my
Captain he had the Liberty to go up to Pars
with 2 Guard, for his Pleafure, and to learn the
Speech. And, as it happened, we came to lodge
ina Street, called Dolphin Street, at the Sign of the
Crown ; and there was fome Gentlemen that were
there to learn the Speech, that were my Country-
men s and there was a young Man there, and
he was acquainted over the Way, where this Gen-
tleman, Captain anghan, lodged ; he lodged at
his Aunt’s, that fold Silks; her Name was
Madam Wotton 5 I faw this Gentleman there 5 1
am fure it is he 5 and with that I came acquainted

with him, as well as the reft.
Mr. Phipps, What was he reputed there?
Fr. Harvey. A Captain of a Ship,
Mr, Phipps. What did he go for there? A

Frenchman, or an Engliftanan, or an Irifbman?
Fr. Harvey. He went for a Irenchman, as 1

heard 3 one Time his Aunt, fhe faid, that he was
born in the Beft-Indies, at Martenico, and that he
was her Sifter’s Son, that hived in Martenico.

Mr. Sol, Gen. You fay he was a Captain of 2
Ship ; what Ship?

I'r. Harvey. That I cannot tell,

Mr. Sol. Gen. When was that?

Fr. Harvey, In 1693.

Mr. Phipps. Is Mr, Leflenr here ¢

Cl. of Arr. He is a Prifoner in the Savoy 3 he
was taken in the fame Ship with Mr. Yaughan.

Mr. Phipps. It is reafonable he fhould have
been lere, to give an Account of thie Prifoner,

L. C.J. Then they fhould have taken care to
have had him here, Have you any more Wi-
neffes ?

Mr. 8ol. Genn. T think we have given fuflicient
Evidence that he is an Jrifbman: But now we
fhall thew you, that all your Witnefies bave given
a very extravagant Evidence to prove that he
15 a Frenchiman, Al he hoped for was, that the
Profecutors for the King could not be able to

prove him an Irifbman 3 he believed there were
but three Men could prove him fo; that was Da-
vid Creagh and two mores and fo he writes to
David Creagh, and tells him, That bis Life was in
bis Power, and be hoped be and the other two would
ot difcover it, This David Creagh was his Neigh-
bour in Ireland 3 we will call him to prove that
Capt. Paughan was born at Galloway in Ireland,

-Mr. Whiltaker., And here is his Letter under
his Hand, Bring David Creagh, (Who was
[fworn.)

Mr, Cowper, 1 delire, before he give his Evi-
dence, he may look upon thofe that have given
Evidence about the Prifoner, one by one. (Thex
be look’d upon Robert French.) MF. Creagh, do
you know him,

Dav, Creagh. No. (Then be looked upon the reft.)

Mr, Cowper. Have you had any of thefe Men
come to you on a Meflage !

D. Creagh. No, Sr.

Mr, Sol. Gen. Do you know Thonzas Vaughan,
the Prifoner at the Bar ? |

D. Creagh. Yes, I do.

Mr. Sol. Gen. How long have you known him ?

D. Creagh. About two Years,

M. Sol. Gen, Was that your firlt Acquaintance
with him ?

D. Creagh. Yes.

Mr. Sol. Gen. What Place was he born at, as
you have heard ¢

D. Creagh, At Galloway in Ireland.

Mr. Sol. Gen. From whom did you hear i¢?

D. Creagh. From all Perfons thac I have heard
fpeak of him.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Did he ever own to you that he
was born there?

D.Creagh, Yes, oftentimes in my Company.

Mr. §ol. Gen. Did you ever receive a Letter
from him about your giving Evidence in this
Matter ?

D. Creagh. Yes, Sir.

Mr. Sol, Gen. Do you know this Letter ? (77hich
was fhewn bim,)

D. Creagh. Yes, Sir.

Mr, Sol. Gen, Do you know his Hand ?

D. Creagh. Yes, 1 partly know it.

Mr. Whitaker, Did you ever fee him write ?
y D. Creagh. ‘This is the Letter I received from

In.

L.C.J. Readit. Do you think it is his Hand ?

D. Creagh, 1 cannot fwear 1t but I believe it
is his Hand,

Mr. Phipps. Have you feen him write ?

D. Creagh. I have feen him write feveral Times.

L. C. J. Do you believe it is his Hand ?

D. Creagh. Yes, my Lord, but I cannot
{wear i,

L Then the Letter was read.]

To Mr. David Creagh, in Newgate, T hefe.

Mr, Creagh,
Have fome Affarance that Mr. Whitaker bas
o Witnefs lo prove me a Subjef? of England,
but you, and two more, which 1 am glad of with all
my Heart: 1 bope I may bave none againit me that
wifly me woife than you and Capt. Etherington.  If
Mr. Whitaker bas not faworn you yet, I hope you
awill not appear againft me. I declave, if I'had
more than my Life; I would lay it in your Hand.
I am like to be fent 10 Newgate this Day, and it
is fike you and fame more will be fent bere, that we
may
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may not talk dogether,  The Dutech Dogs took fron:
ine Eleven bundred Dollars in Money, which certatnly
troubles me more than the Thoughts of Death, which I
value not 6 Straw 5 but I hope in four or five Days
to be fupplied. 1 fear they will keep me clofe. 1
have all the Liberty imaginable bere to write, and my
Friends fuffered to fee me. I can fay nothing that
is comfortable, but that I am wery well in Health,
and nothing concerned, if my Money come in lime.

Friday Moruing. T, Vaughan.

Mr. Phipps. Is that Letter proved? That 1s
not to the Purpofes; nor of any Weight, con-
fidering who proves it.

L. C. J. No, that none could prove him 2
Subject, but he and two more ? _

Mr, 8ol. Gen. We will produce only one Wit-
nefs more, Call Mr, Fo. Rivet. The Court being
informed by fome Gentlemen then on the Bench,
that there was a Gentleman then in Court, one
Mr. Kivet, who being of Gallsway, could proba-
bly gtve fome Account of the Prifoner ; he was
immediately called, and required to depofe what
he knew,

7+ Rivet. My Lord, Iam forry 1 am called,
where Life is concerned, when I came hither only
out of Curiofity ; but the Service I owe to this
Government, obliges me to fpeak what I know,
now I am called to it.  (Then he was fworn.)

Mr. dol. Gen. Do you know the Prifoner at
the Bar? What Countryman is he ?

Jo. Kivet, T have known him a great many
Years; we were Children together in the fame
Town 3 we iv’d in Galloway in Ireland. 1 knew
his Father, and Mother, and Brothers, and Si-
flers 5 and I remember him a Child, as long as 1
can remember any thing, I cannot determine to
a certain Number of Years 3 and I remember him
not only a School-boy, butalfo an Apprentice to
one Mr., Coleman.  And I wonder very much at
what Mr., French fays, for by the Name and Place
of hix Birth, he muft have {fworn what he knows
to be otherwiles for the Frenches are a Family in
Gallszeay 5 his Father was an honeft Gentleman,
and went over nto Jreland in the Rebellion, n
1041, and he there married a Woman, a Native
of Galloway, and had feveral Children, one of
which, n the latter Eind of King Charles’s Reign,
turned Papift, and I believe the Grief for it
haften’d his I'ather’s Death, I own Part of the
Evidence may be true, about his being in the
ef-Indies 3 but his Mother, I believe, was ne-
ver out of Trefand in hey Life,

Dr. Oldifh, What was his Father’s Name?

Yo. Rizet, Yo,

L.CoJ. You fay, you knew this very Gen-
tleman an Apprentice to one Tho, Coleman at Gal-
lo:way.

Jo. Rivet, Tdid fo, my Lord.

L. C. J. How long is it fince you faw him ?

Fo. Rivet, 1 cannot be pofitive, I think at the
Redullion of Galloway in 1691, 1 cannot fay
whether at or after 5 but I faw him about that
Time, and knew him, and have known him
from a Child; I knew him a School-boy, and
knew his Brothers,

M. Juttice Turton, What Year did you know
him firtt ¢

7o. Rivet. 1dare not be pofitive; I remember
fum particularly well,

L., C. J. Are you furc this is the Man ?

Fo. Rivei. 1know him as well 45 any Face |
ever faw. I came accidentally into Court out
of Curiofity ; and one that knew me, that wad
of Galloway, gave Account to the King’s Counfel;
and fo I am called to give Evidence,

L. C. J. Do you know this Rebert French?

Yo. Rivet, I cannot fay I know him, for 1 fee
him but in the Dark 3 if I faw him in a better
Light, it may be I may. (Then Robert French
was fet up for Mr, Rivet 1o foe bim.) 1 think I
recolleft the Face, 1 am not certain.

L. C. J. Do you know this Gentleman ?

Reb. French, No, my Lord.

L. C. J. Where did you live ?

Rob, French, In Connanght. ,

L. C. J. Ihd you know Jobi Vaughan of Gal.
loway ¢

Rob. French. I have heard of him, my Lord.

Mr. Baron Powis. What Trade was the Pri:
foner’s Father ?

7o. Rivet, He had the Market feveral Years s
he lived very well, and kept a Publick Houfe in
the Town.

Mr. Phipps, Iid you know any other Tho.
Vaughan but this 2

Rob. French. No, not in Gallewoay.

Fo. Rivet. This may be a Confirmation of what
I fay; 1f 1t be the fame Gentleman, his Fair 15
reddifh.

L. C, J. Pull oft his Peruke, (77hich <vas doue.)

T, Vaughan. My Hair 1s not red.

L. C. J. How are his Iiye-brows?

T. Vaugban. A dark brown, my Lord, the
fame as my Wig.

Mr. Baron Pewis.  Let Some-bedy look on it
more particularly, (Their ain Officer took a Candle,
and look’d on bis Head, but it <vas fhaved fo clofe, the
Colour conld ot be difecrned,)

Mr. Pbipps. We can give an Anfwer to this,
my Lord ; we fhall prove that there was one
Jobu Vanghan at Gallozoay, and he had a Son The-
mas, that died ten Years ago.  As lor Mr, Rivet,
he 15 a mere Stranger to us, we know rothing of
him ; and, by what I can perccive, he comes in
as @ Volunteer, not fubpeena’d by ecither Side,
And tor Mr, Creagh, we fhall fhew he Is not to
be credited n any thing ; for we fhall prove him
auilty of Felony, and that he fwore, that if his
Brother would not fupply him with Money, he
would fwear Treafon againft him, and fhop him
in Newgate, and that he thould not come out till
he came upon a Sledge 3 and if fo, there is No-
body furcly can believe he will flick at Perjury or
Forgery, or any thing cife which may be for his
Advantage.  Call Mr, Chidlopberr Creagh, (3ho
was fworn, )

Mr. Phipps. Pray do you know David Creagh?

C. Creagh, Yes.

Mr. Phipps. Is he any Relation to you ?

C. Creagh, Yes, he 1s my Brother,

Mr. Phipps. Give the Court and the Jury an
Account what you know of your Brother.

C. Creagh. Tt is an unnatural Thing to come on
this Oceafion, and I am forry I am called upon
this Account,

D. Creagh, Speak what you have to fay?

Mr. Phipps. What do you know of your Bro-
ther, whether you have not found him guilty of
{tealing any thing ?

C. Greagh, My Lord, Iam upon my Qath, I
have known fomething of it, hie has ftolen fome
Gold from me.

L.C J.
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L. C. J. You pretend to be fo very nice; you
are to anfwer to what you know of his Reputa-
tion in general, and of his Way of Living.

C. Creagh. His Reputation has been but very
flender, 1 am very forry for it ; feveral in the
Court can give Account of it, as well as . Fe
{erved a Relation .of his in Newcaftle 5 he'ferved
there fome Time, and came to Town, and came
to me, and depended upon me, and I {ubfifted
him 3 and he took an Opportunity one Day, when
I and my Wife were gone abroad, and No-body
at home but the Maid, and went up Stairs,
where my Wife’s Room is, and there being a
Sath-window, he opens it, and took out of my
Wife’s Clofet feveral Pieces of Gold,

I..C. J. How did you know that he did it ?

C. Creagh. I found it out afterwards 3 he was
my Brother, and therefore I did not profecute
himy. I did not know he had 1t, till afterwards,
that I found to whom he had difpofed of the
Gold, I inquired who was in the Houlfe, and
thought the Maid had 1t 5 and fhe faid none had
been there but my Brother 3 and he at laft owned
the Fact, and I had 1t again,

L. C. J. Have you any more to {ay of your
Drother?

Mr, Phipps. Did he ever threaten to fwear
againft you!:

. Vanghan, Or me?

C. Cicagh. He has been confined in Newgale
cighteen Months, and 1 fubfifted him in Charity 3
I allowed him all along; and he has been
{fending to me by feveral Meflages, that if I {ub-
fitted him not with more Money than [ did allow
Lim, he would fwear me into a Plo,

L. C]J. Did he tell you fo?

C. Creagh. No, but he has fent me Word fo,

L, C. J. Is the Man here that he fent this Word
by ?

yC, Creagh. Yes, the Man 1s here,

Mr, Phipps. Let him ftand up.

1.C. J. Where do you live ¢

C. Creagh. In Watling-fircet; I am a Merchant
I declare 1t 1s not in Favour or Aftetion, but
only in Conicience, that I declare this.

D. Creagh. This is only to hinder me from
giving my Evidence againft a Merchant that I
have taken up.

7. Vanghan, What Character had he 1n Spaii ¢

[ Zheir David Creagh fpoke, but <was not beard,]

L. C.]J. What do you fay of the Gold ?

C. Creagh. He had it, my Lord.

D, Creagh, Why did you not profecute me
then, if I had it?

L. C. J. You are not fure he took the Gold.

C, Creagh. 1 was {o {ure he had ir, becaufe I
had it from him again by another Hand.

L. C, J. Did he tell you fo, that he had 1t 2

C. Cieagh. No, but I had a Letter about it.

L. C. J. Where is that Letter ?

C. Creagh. I have it not here,

L. C. J. Give not an Evidence of a Letter,
without the Letter were here s 1t ought to have
been produced.

Mr. Phipps, Call Chrifiopherr Heyden.  (He was
fwarn.) Do you give the Court an Account what
David Creagl has faid to you of {wearing againtt
any Body.

C. Heyden, Several Times, when my Mafter
has fent me to him, to pay him Live Shillings

31
a Week, or Five and Six-pence'a Weéek, to fub-
fift him, " 1

Dr, Oldifh, Who are you Servant to ?

C. Créeagh. He.1s my Servant, " L

C. Heyden. This David Creagh has often told
me, that I fhould tell his Brother, that if he
would not fupply him with more Money, he
would fwear againft him., When T came 10 the
Seffions-Houfe, when the Piratesi were tried the
firft Time, I was going thro’ the Bail-dock, where
this David Creagh called to me ; and I afked him
what he did there? He faid he was to be Evidence
againft Captain Paughan, No certainly, iaid I,
you do not know him, ‘do you? Siyshe, Here’s
the Thing, it had been better for me that I had
been an Evidence againft him before this 5 and I
am forced to be an Evidence againft him, to fave
my felf: And he bid me tell his Brother, God
damn his Soul to all Kternity, if he did not {end
him Supply that Day, he would have him in New-
gate, and that he fhould not come out again, till
he came out upon a Sledge?

L. C. J. Did he fay fo?

C. Heyden, Yes, my Lord.

C. Creagh. Flow long is it agon, Mr. Heyden ?

C. Heyden. It was the Day the Pirates were
tried 5 more than that, here was Mr. Wroh's
Man was with me at.the fame Time s and be-
caufe he thould not hear what you faid, you took
me to the Door., |

Mr. Phbipps. Is Daiuel Bryan here ? (He appear-
ed and was fworn.) ~

Daiiel Bryen. I wasfubpeena’d here for I know
not what ; for I know not Captain Paughan,

Mr. Phipps. Give me Leave to afk you a Que-
fion : Do you know, or have heard of David
Creaph ? o

Daiiel Bryan, Yes, Sir,

Mr. Phipps, Will yougivean Account of what
he has faid of fwearing againft any Body?

Daiiel Bryan. He has threaten’d his Brother
feveral Times, that if he would not fend him Re-
licf, he would bring him in for fomething, and
would inform againtt him.

’ Mpr. Phipps. Did he fay he would fivear againft
1m

Daunicl Bryan. He did fay he would inform
againft him,

Mr. Phipps. What did you hear him fay of
{fwearing againft any one ?

Daniel Bryan, He faid, he had rather others
fhould perith, than himfelf.

Mr. WWhitaker. This Man was condemned for
the fame Crime.

Mr. Phipps. Mr. Vanghau, have you any other
Witnefles ¢ Call Creighton,  (IWho was fworn,)
What Countryman are you ?

Crerglton. A Coimanght Man, I was born in
Galloway 5 1 believe Mr. Rivet knows me.

Mr. Phipps. Did you know one Fobn Vanghan,
that lived at Gallozway ? ;

Creighton. I know him very well, |

Mr, Phipps. Do you know the Prifoner at the
Bar? |

Creighton, No.

Mr. Phipps. Do you remember, that that Fobs
Vaughan had a Son Thomas, and what became of
hin ?

Creighton. Yes, he had a Son Thomas 4 but I
underftood that he went {omewhere into che
Country, and there died; and it was fpread all
about the Town, '

Mr,
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\f; Prisss. Do you know what hie died of ?
Creizizer. 1 caanot tell,

L.C.]. How long ago did he die?

Creizhion, About ten Years 2go. I knew all
the Brothers, 1 )

Mr, Phisps. Did you know that Thsinas
Taughan 2

Creighton. 1 knew him very well. _

Mr. Pkiss. Is thar Gentleman, the Prifoner,
he :

reigtion. No. _

Mr. Péinps. Do you believe that 1s not the
Man ¢

Creiglisi, 1 believe not.

Mr. Phisps. Did you ever know any other
Thsmas Faugbai ¢

Creightsn. No.

Mr. Juftice Tzrion. Had not Febu Vaugban a
Son Apprentice at Gallswiy to one Thomas
Coleman ?
 Creighton. No, 23 1 know of.

Mr. Juftice Twrson. How old was that Son,
Trsmas Vaugban, when you knew him

Creizhizn. 1 was born at the next Door to that

&

Tismas Vaughan that was reputed 1o be dead.

Mr. Juftice Turson. Was not that Toomas
V:uzhar Apprentice 10 Mr. Crleman ¢

reisbton. 1 cannot certainly ell.

Mr. Juftice Turton. How old was that Toomas
Vzuzban when he went away from Gallszsy ¢

Cieizhisn. 1 cannot tell.

Mr. Juftice Turton. What is your OWn AGe !

Creghton. My Age is abour Five and T wenty.

1..C.]. Youhave not feen him in ten Years?

Creizbisa. No, my Lord.

L.C.J. Canyon rake 1t upon your Oath, this
is not the Man you faw ten Years ago, that Toomas
Vaughsn you knew ?

Creizhton. Yes, my Lord.

L.C.J. How old was he when you were ac-
quzinted with him? '

" Greighton. 1 cannot tell certainly 5 I believe he
might be abous Gfteen.

1.. C. ]. How long 1s that fince ?

Creighton. Ten Years.

L.C. 1. What is your Name?

Creighton. Creighton.

Mr. Cozoper. You {2y you knew him ten Years
ago; pray what fort of Perfon was he, and how
2id he differ from this Man:

Creightsn. He was better fer, and not quite o
=1l 15 this Man, and full of the Small-Pox ; he
was the quarrelfomeft boy in the whole Town.

M. Sof. Gen. You fay he was not quite {o zall
1s this Man. .

Creighion. No, he was not quie fo rall.

\r. §9l. Gz, Do you think he might not grow
snce? This was ten Years ago, when he wasbut
fifieen Years old.

. Mr. Crmper. You knew him at Fifteen 5 how
long had you known him ¢ _

Creighton. From my Infancy, *ull he departed
the Town.

Mr. Cozper. During all that Time, what Em-
ployment was he in? Tell fome Circumftances.

Creighton. 1 think this Vazghan went 1o one
Mr. Ruffel’s School.

Mr. Cooper. Whattodo?

Creigbton. To learn to write and read.

Mr. Croper. And was he not an Apprentice in

that Time?
Creighton, 1 cannot tell.
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Mr. Crwper. Were you acquainted with him ?

Creighton, Yes.

L. C. J. You lived next Door to him ; fure you
muft be acquainted with him?

Creighton. He was 2 hghting Boy, for I remem-
ber he did once thrafh my Coat foundly.

L. C. J. Where do you live now ?

Creighton. At the Calle and Falcon in Aldzif-

g:zfa-ﬁrff!.

L. C.J. What Trade are you?
Creighton. A Shoemaker,

h M;‘. Baron Powis. How long have you lived
ere

Creighton. ‘This ten Years.

Mr. Baron Powis. What did that Thomas
Vaugban die of, _that you fay was dead before you
came awaiy, as it was reported up and down ?

Creighton. I cannot tell. )

Mr. Cowper. Jult now you faid ke went awa
from Gallzway, and it was reported there that he
was dead ten Years ago ; now you fay you have

een in England ten Years.

Creighton. 1came into England about ten Years
ago.

M. Cswoper. Did you hear it at Gallowway be-
fore you came away ¢

Creighton. I heard it at Galleway before [ came
to London; and there are many can teftify that
there was a Report that he was dead.

Vir. Juftice Turion. How long was he gone
from Gallszoay before you came away ?

Creighton. 1 cannot fay to an Hour; T heard he
was dead.

L. C.J. Well, well, he went away from Gal-
lvvay.

Mr. Tuftice Turzon. Have you not been here
twelve Years?

Creighton. I think not 3 I came a little before
the Revolution.

Mr. Juftice Turton. That is eight Years ago

Juft now you faid you had been here tenYears,

Mr. Poipps. Call Fobn Kine. (Who cvas frworn. )
Fobir Kine, did you know one Jobun Vaughan in
Galloway ?

Fobn Kine. Yes, 1 lived with hum.

Mr. Phipps. What Children had he ?

Fobn Rine. Four Sons.

Mr. Pbipps. Had he any one of thofe Sons that

was named Thomas 2

Fobn Kine. Not of thole four.

Mr. Phipps. Had he a Son Thomas ? ,

Fobir Kine. Yes, he had 3 he d:ed about ren
or eleven Years old of the Small-Pox.

Mr. Phipps. You fay you hved with this Feb
Vaugbau look upon the Prifoner at the Bar, is
he any of thofe Sons: '

Yobn Kine, No, Sir, I never faw this Man il
NOW,

Mr. Pbipps. How long did you live with him?

Fobn Kine. About eight or nine Years.

Mr. Pbipps. But how long have you been come
away from him?2

Fobn Kine, About ten Years,

Mr. Tuftice Turion. How well do thele Two
Witnefles agree together? The other faid he
died at Fifteen, and was pitted with the Small-
Pox s this Man fays he died at Ten, and of the
Small-Pox.

L. C. J. Where do you live now?

Fobn Kine. 1 live in the City.

L.C. J. How long have you lived there ?

Jobn Kire. Twelve Years.

L.C.JT.
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L. C. J. How Jong was this Tbomds Vaupha
dead before you came ‘hither ¢

Yobu Kine. Really I cannot be pofitive, I be-
lieve about eight or nine Years,

L. C. J. Did Thomas Vaughan die of the Small-

Pox?
Fobn Kine. Yes.

L. C. J. That you are fure of ?

Yobn Kine. I am fure that was the Difeafe he

died of ¢

L. C. J. You knew him well, I believe,

Yobn Kine. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. J. How old was he when he died ?

Fobin Kine. About ten Years,

L. C. J. Where was he buried ?

Jobu Kine, At Galloway. |

Mr, Jultice Zurton. 'Why does not the Officer
take Care? There 1s one talking with the Wit-
nefs.  Can you now reconcile your Evidence?
{To the Prifoner’s Counfel.)

L. C. ]J. Have you any more Witnefles ?

M, Phbipps. No, my Lord.

Mr, Juftice Turton, What were the Names of
sl the Sons ¢

Fobn Kine. The eldeft was Fobn Vanghan, the
other William Vanghan, another Edward Vaughan,
and another Fames Vaughan 3 that was all that he
had alive.

Mr. /#bitaker, "There 1s never a Thomas Vaughan
apiong, thele,

M. Cowper, Thomas died up and down in fe-
veral Places.

Mr, Phipps. Mr. Rivet, do you know the Sons
of that Feln Vaughan ?

Mr.Rivet, Hehad all chefe Sons, Fobn, William,
Thomas, and James. Fle {peaks of a Son Edwvard
I cannot exactly remember whether there was fuch
a Son or no 3 tho’ I have a rude Idea of it, but
am not certain, I knew this Thomas, I went to
School with him, and I faw him in the Year 1691.
about the Surrender of Gallevay.

Juryman. Is that Man at the Bar the fame
Thomas Vaughau ¢

Mr, Rivet, 1am pofitive of that,

L.C. J. You faw him at the Surrender of
Gullozway ?

Mr., River. [ didy 1t was about that Time,

Thomas Vaughan. 1 am a Subjedt of the moft
Chriftian King 3 and I defire, though I fpeak
Lnglifh, that 1 may be examined in Freuch, in a
Matter that touches me {o near,  And you may
fee by my Commifiion, my Lord, that I ama
Frenchmany which I defire may be read.

L. C. J. Weihall not trouble you with that,

Thomas Vanghan. Ican fhew you myCommiffion,
wherein the King, my Mafter, declares me to be
a Subjet of France.

Dr. Oldifb. Mr. Vaughan, 1 think,you need not
trouble the Court to read the Commiflion ; the
Commuflion is the fame as for all other Subjeéts
of the French King, wherein he is look’d upon as
a nmatural-born Subjet of Framce; and fo he
owns himlelf upon his Examination before the
Judge of the Admiralty.
~ L.C. J. Have you any morcto fay? As to the
Lxamination, who can prove that?

Mr, Cawley, 1 can prove that, my Lord.
(Mr. Cawley was fworn. )

L. C.]. Isthat Thomas Vaughan's Examinotion ¢

Mr. Cawley. Yes, my Lord, it is figned by

him, and taken before Sir Charles Hedges the 2 5th
of July, 169z,

Vou. V.
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L.C.]J. Read it. (Then Mr. Cawley read thé
Examination of Thomas Vaughan.) -

4

Thie 27th of Fuly, i695.
Officium Domin: contra Thomas Vaughan;
Capuent’ Navicule, The Loyal Clencarty.

The Examination of Tlomas Vaughan, late
Commander of the Ship, the Loyal
Clencarty, aged Twenty-fix Years, ta-
ken before the Right Worfhipful Sir
Charles Hedges, Kt. Judge of the High
Court of Admiralty of England,

HIS Examinate faith, That be was born at

Martenico within the Dominions of the French
King, and is bis Subjett 5 but refufes to anfuwer of what
Parents be was born: That be came laft from thence
about four ears ago as Commander of a Ship called
the Hare, wbich bad been before taken from the
Englith, and came in ber to Nantz in France, and
hath ever fince been in France, or cruifing in French
Ships: That be bath been a Commander ever fince
be was fixteen Years of Ape, and bath commanded

feveral Y¥rench Privateers, and was Commander of

@ Privateer of St. Malo, called the Granada, of
36 Guus, which about two Years ago took the Dia-
mond 5 and the Examinate was never tll now la-
ken. Being afked, whether be ever lived in Eng-
land, or in Ireland ? be refufes to anfwer.  Being
afked, Whether be knew any thing of the taking and
carrying off a Cuftom-houfe Boat from the Downs fo
Bulloigne ¢ Or, Whether be was then in London,
or did give Diredlions to any Perfrs, or knew of
ber being carvied off 2 he anfwered nothing, but

faid, That if any Perfon would prove it againft bim,

he wwas prefent to anfwer it : But faith, That in France
he beard of her being brought toBulloigne 5 and he the
Examinate bought ber at Bulloigne of the Men that
carried ber away, and that fhe coft bim oo and odd
Livres, and <was theit called the Elizabeth and Anne,
or Michael and Anne, but which doth not remenber :
That be the Examinate flll bath the faid Veflel at
Bulloigne 5 That he canuot tell the Names of the
Perfins be bought ber of, and that teok ber away,
but believes they bad a Commiffion : That fomething
above three Weeks ago the Examinate went with &
Commiffion from the French King on board a Two-
and-twenty-Oar-Barge, called the Loyal Clencarty,
then at Bulloigne, as Commander thereof 5 and on
Monday laft was a Fortnight was taken by the Co-
ventry Man of War at the Buoy in the Gunfleet ;
and that the Commander of the Coventry took away
this Examinate’s Commiffioin,  Being afked, Upon
what Defign he came out with the Barge ¢ replied,
That it was not to take the Air 3 That the Barge

formerly belonged to the Lord Danby, and was 1aken

by a ¥rench Privateer about a Xear ago 5 That before
be came onty be met with two Englith Seamen upon
the Court of Guards at Bulloigne, who told the Exa-
minate, that they bad been taken Prifoners, and the
Examinate took them in upon Charity 5 and after«
wards met another Englifhman, <who told the Exa-
minate, that be bad been taken in Land-Service,
and believes it was before Fort Kenoque 5 and the

Jaid Perfon fitting upon a Stove at Bulloigne, and

not knowing what to do <with bimfelf, the Examinate
took bim on board for Charity, and defigned to put the

faid three Perfons afbore in England, ~ Being afked,

Whetber be did not put 1n a Claim for the faid Cu-
K ftom-houfe
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ttom-Houfe Boat, by Reafon of ber Captaiy? Or,
Whether the Perfous that took her bad any Commilfion
from bim ? be the Examinate anfwerea, That they
that ook ber, muft anfwer for what they did, and

be muft anfwer for bis Adions only.

Eodem die Capt’
coram me, Thomas Vaughan.
C. Hedges.
L. C, J. Mr. Vaughan, have you any more to
fay ¢

Tho. Vaughan. It 1s very hard Circumftances
I am unders if an Euglifman was in France,
under the Straights that I am here, it would
be very hard for him to prove himfelf an
Engliflunair,

L. C. J. You have had a very fair Trial, and
you fhall have Juftice, be it for you, or againft

you.
Thomas Vanghan. 1 hope your Lordfhip will do

me Right,

L. C. J. Gentlemen of the Jury, The Prifoner
at the Bar, Thomas Vaughan, ftands indi¢ted for
High-T'reafon, for adhering to the King’s Ene-
mics, wiz. That he put himfelf as a Soldier in
the Service of the French King, in a Veffel called
the Loyal Clencarty, with divers other Perfons on
board her, that were Subjedts to the Freuc) King,
and Enemices to the King of Bngland, with a De-
[ign 1o burn the King’s, and his Subjects Ships ;
and for that Purpofe went in that Ship. That
the Priloner was on board the Ship, and with
fuch a Defign, is proved, without all Contra-
diction, by feveral Witnefles that have been pro-
duced; that s, that the Two-and-Twenty-Oar
Barge, which is the fame called the Lsyal-Clen-
carly, lay hovering about the Buoy i the Nore
thofe Men in the Coventry imagined they had
lome Defign of Mifchicf to the Ships, and they
made after him wich the Coventry. It was ap-
prehended by Caprain Parghau, and bis Crew,
that the Coventry would be too hard for them, and
fo they did fubmir, and were taken. And be-
ing examtned on what Account he came on
our Coalts, it is confels’d by him, That he
came with a Defign to burn our Ships. You
may obferve what Sort of Men were aboard.
You- have heard it proved to you, that Crir
fenden, the Marfhal of Dever, entered thofe Per.
fpns taken aboard the French Veffel, of what Na-
tion, and what Quality they weres and there
were about a Dozen of thefe Freunchmen, for they
were entesed as fuch. Now, for a Subje@® of
Figland to join with the King’s Linemies, in
purlute of a Defign to burn or take any of the
Ning’s, or his Subjects Ships, that is an Adhe.
rence to the King’s Fnemies, But it appears,
not only that Captain Panghan was in their Com.
pany, but that he was thetr Commander 3 which
commanding the Vefltl, on board which were
french Subjects, Enemics of the King and the
lxlngalum of Eupland, is High-Trealon, and the
partcular Fa& of Treafon for which he is indj&-
cde - And it appears that he had a Commiffion
trom the French King to command this Veffi) ; the
Loyal Clencarty,

Now the Prifoner having this CommifTion to
be Commander of this Veffel, though they who
ferved under him were not native Frenchmen, but

cther Foreigners, yet their fubjeting themfelves

.t

L

to him, acting by Virtue or Colour of that Com-
miffion, makes them to be the French King’s
Subjeéts, during their Continuance in that Ser-
vice ; for otherwife all Prizes, which they fhould
take, would make them to be Pirates ; whick
none will pretend to maintain, when they acted
by a Commiffion from a Sovereign Prince, that
was an Enemy. And if chey [hall cruize upon
our Coafts with a Defign to take, or deftroy any
of the King’s, or his Subjects Ships, they are
Enemies, tho’ they were the Subjects of a Prince
or State in Amity with the King of England, But
at this time there is no Neceflity of entring upon
this Queftion, becaufe it 1s proved thar divers,
who were on board this Vellel, were Frenchimeir s
the joining with whom, in Profecution of fuch a
Defign, is that Kind of Iigh-Treafon, of ad-
hering to the King’s Fnemies,  So that if Cap-
tain Vaughan was a Subjelt ot Enrland, heis pro-
ved guilty of ITigh~Trealon, 1f you belicve the
Fvidence.

But now it 1s mfifted on by Mr. 7aughai and his
Counfel, that though he was exerciling Hollility
againft the King of Kuplaind,and defigning Mifchicf
to his Subjeltsy yet, fays he, I was not a Subject
of England, 1 was born a Subject to the Fresch
King, If that be true, then he is not euilty of
High-Treafon 5 he 1s an Enemy, butnora Trai-
tor : And that s the Point you are now to con-
fider of, whether he be 1 Subjedt of Liglaid or
Fraice ¢

Now as to that, he betog taken under fuch Cir-
cumftances, and fpeaking Euglifh, it is reafonable
to be prefumed that he is a Subject of Eigluid,
unlefs he proves the contrary,  But then you have
heard by feveral of the Winefles, that when he
was at firft taken, he ackinowledged himiclf to be
an Lrifhman 3 and he did not only acknowledge it
to them that affifted tn apprehiending him, but be-
mg carried 10 Daver, when the Marthal entered
him in his Book asa Prifoner, he entered him ror
as a Frenchman, but he declared ar that Time he
was an Irifbman, It may be, he did not confider
the Confequence of it 5 for the next Day he was
carried before the Mayor of Dover, and then ha-
ving confidered better of 1t, that it was not for
his Intereft to acknowledge himfc!f an Fiifbman,
he faid he was born a Subjet to the Freud K ing,
and at Martenico. There were Seatchmen and Irifh-
men taken at the fame Time, and they were enger-
ed as of the Nation they belonged to, and fo were
cdivers entered as Frenchinei,  So that wHels he
hath given fufiicient Evidence to the contrary,
this is fufficient w0 induce you to believe him an
lrifhman born.

But he has endeavourcd to take off this Jvi-
dence that hath been given,  Firlt, he fays, ic
was when he was in Drink, that he did confefs i
fe!f to be an Trfbman 5 but when he was fober, ha
faid he was a Freichinain,  And befides that, he
c:_tlls a Witnels, whofe Name 15 Reboyr Fiech, to
give an Account of him,  Anpd £ fays, thar
about fourteen Years ago he was ar S Chrijls-
phers, on French Ground, and he did then {ce this
T homas Vaughai 5 hedid take him then to be about
the Age of Fifieen, Fle lays he ftay’d there about
four and twenty Hours, and that he was in the
COF'lpany of this Paughay and his F ather about five
i el e
hiftcen Years of Aze t:wa ﬂE’ Mg thf:_n bout

S% Was Dorn at Martesiics. He
fays farther, that his Fagher did rccommend this |

Son
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Son to him to bea Sea-faring Man, being the Em-
ployment he intended him for; and he s {ure this
1o the Man,  This Rebert French was afk’d, whe-
ther he ever faw this Yangban from the Time he
Gieft faw himacSe. Chriflophers unuil this Time: He
fays he never faw him fince that Time, till about
two Months ago. He gives you this Account how
he came to meet with him @ He fays he came to
Town s and being a charitable Man, he ufed to
vifit the Prilons; and he came to Newgate to one
Nolaud + and theve he faw Caprain Vayghan 3 and
though he had not feen him for fourteen Years be-
fore, vet he knew hini again, and is pofitive that
i2 is the fume Perfon,

Another [wears he knew the Prifoner about five
Years, and he was reputed a Frenchmai,

T'herehasbeenanother Witnefs produced, which
is that Dafeine, who cameup as a Frenchman, and
calked Freach, pretending he could not fpeak Exng-
(i but on Examinaton 1t was difcovered that
he had an Employment in Eigland,and was a Bai-
hid%s Follower 5 and it appears he can fpeak Ewg-
iifh very welly and notwithftanding his Pretence,
ias oiven his Kvidence in Eaglifh, And he tells you,
That he, aboutthe Year 1669, did goto 8¢, Chri-
Johers, and afterwards to Martenico; and there
he went o one f#73tams, who had a Friend whofe
wame was Paughan, at whofe Houft there was a
Chiittening to be of his Son, to whom 77illiams was
to be Godiather 5 and this Witnels was carried thi-
ther, and the Child was chriften®d Thomas. He
tells you he went over again to St. Chriffophers, and
to Adurtciico, i the Year 1677, and that then he
cnquired for this Child, and didfee him, Then he
{ays, after that he went over again to §t. Chrifto-
phers, and to Adarteitico, about thirteen Years aco,
and then faw him again y and, I think, never E:.w
him fince until very lately 5 and this Prifoner, he
undertakesto tell you, is the very Perfon.

But then one farvey tells you he faw him in
Fiance, in the Year 1693, and there he was taken
to be a fieichman, and he lived with a2 Woman
that {old Siik, that faid he was her Nephew, her
Sifter’s Sons and that he was born at Martenico.
Thisis the Lvidence he gives you to induce you
to believe he is a Freachman,

Now in the fitlt Place, before I open the Fyi-
dence i Anfwer to it, I defire you to obferve the
Weightand Import of thisEvidence that hath been
produced by the Prifoner.  Firft, for this French,
that fays he faw Caprain Faughan fourteen Years
420, when he wasabout fifteen Years of Ages he
had no former Acquaintance with him s flay’d in
s Company but fix Hours; and came away with-
in four and twenty Hours after his Arrival and
never faw him again in fourtcen Years: It is a
{trange Thing that he fhould know him again fo
well as to be pofitive that he is the fame Perfon;
for in fourteen Years there is a great Alveration in
a Man: ForaMan that has known one at the Age
ol hitcen, and not feen him in fourteen Years after :
though before he was very well acquainted with
him, cannot fo cafily know himagain, But how-
ever he is pofitive, upon his Oath, that he is the
fame Perfon that he faw at Martenico.

Thenas for Dafeine,'you may confider him, that
he fhould take Notice of a fittle Child thar he faw
chriften’d feveral Yearsbefore 3 and that he fhould

i}?‘;“ftalrf:?l\izli:r I}E]I:; Erélﬁzdh: 1};ad not i:t;t:} him i'n
urteen Years g ad a great Liking to this
%rluld, Ehar. when he went to Martenico, many
< ¢ars atter, he fhould be {o inquifitive after him :
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I muft leave thefe Things to you to confider of':
That he might have an Aunt in Frasnce, that is ve-
ry poffible too. -

But now confider how this Evidence hath been
endeavoured to be anfwered: Two Witneffes have
been preduced to contradiét that which they have
fworn. The firflt is David Creagh, who tells you
he has known the Prifoner for two Years; and fays
he was always reputed to bean Irifhman, and born
in Galloway : He has often difcourfed with him
about his Country, and he told him that he was an
Irifbmain, and born at Galloway. 'Then you hear
whar a Letter 1s produced, writ to Creagh, when
he was to come upon his Trial; he mentions what
his Defence was, and that it was impoffible that
any could do him any harm but he and two more.
Creagh {wears 1t is his Hand; that he hath feen
him write, and he believes it is his Hand.

Then there 1s a Gentleman, Mr. Rivet, that
came here by chance, whois a Galloway Man 5 he
faith he knew the Prifoner’s Father, who was re-
puted to come thither about the Time of the Re-
beltion in Ireland, in 1641. and lived at Galloway 3
and that this Prifoner, Mr. Yaughan, was his Son,
and he knew him of a Child 3 was well acquainted
with himy liv’d hard by him; remembers him an
Apprentice in Galloway, and tells you to whom;
and fays he is {ure this 1s the very Man; and that
he faw the Prifoner in 1691, about the Time and
the Reduction of Galloway; and he is confident
that the Prifoner is the Son of Fobu Vaughan, at
Galloway 5 and he gives youa particular Account
of himand his Family, viz. of the Reputationand
Manner of living of his Iather ; and what other
Brothers he had: So that there is no Objeltion
againft his Credit; and 1t is hard to believe, fince
he is fo pofitive and circumftantial, that he can
be miftaken,

But the Prifoner and his Counfel have endea-
vour’d to anfwer all this Lvidence  and firlt they
have called Creagh’s Brother to prove that he s an
il Man 3 for that he came into this Town where
his Brother lives, who fubfifted bim and took him
into his Houfe ; and one Day, when he and his
Wife went abroad, he made bold with fomeof his
Money; but they thought the Maid had it, and
he charg’d her wich ity but to his Satisfaction, it
did afterwards appear that David had it.

Then there isanother, Chriftopher Heyden, Chri-
fopber Creagh’s Servant, who fays, he heard D.
Creagh fay he was forc’d to bean Lividence againit
Vanghan to fave himiclf; and that he ufed to
threaten his Brother, that if he would not give
him more Money he would f{wear againft him.
Bryan faith much to the fame purpofe. Thefeare
produced to take off the Credit of D. Creagh’s
Teftimony.

But then, Gentlemen, as to the Place of the Pri-
foner’s Birthy two other Witnefles are produc’d
to give you Satisfaction thatthis Caprain Vanghan
was not the Son of that Mr. Vaughau of Galloway
whofe Evidence I will open to you, and then you
will {fee how coherentthey are in their Teltimony.
The firlt 1s Creighton, a Shoemaker; he fays he
koew Thomas Vanghain, the Son of Fobu Vanghan ot
Gallsway, about ten Years fince 5 he wasa Gallo-
way Man bred, and lived the nexe Door to fobiu
Vaughan that had a Son Thomas, He fays he has
been here about ten Years in England, He fays he
thinks that Zbomas Vaughan, the Son of Fobi
Vaughan, was about the Age of fifteen Ycars; but
that this Prifoner is not he s for that Thomas

F2 Faghan
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Vaughan was disfigured with the Small-pox 5 he
remembered him well, he had Reafon for it, for
he once bafted him foundly ; and that he went
away from Galloway when he was about fifteen
Years of Age, and was reported to be dead 3 and
if it were fo, this Prifoner cannot be the Perfon.

The other Witnefs 15 as pofitive as Greighton 5
for he faith, he knew this Yobu Vaughan of Gal-
lsway, and his Son Thomas 3 and that Thomas
Vaughan, Son of Fobn Vaughan, died about ten
Years fince of the Small-pox, So that they have
found two Themas Vanghans : One tells you of onc
that was fiftcen Yearsold, and was disfigur’d with
the Small-pox s and the other tells you of Thomas
Vanghan, who died of theSmall-pox when he was
ten Ycars of Age.

You are thercfore to confider the Evidence on
both Sides, The Queftion principally is, W he-
ther the Prifoner be a Subjeét of theKing of Exg-
Jand. 1f you are fatisfied that he is not an Euglifh
Subjeé&, but a Frenchman, then he is not guilty
of this High-Treafon ; but if you arc fatisfied, by
the Series of the whole Evidence, that he is an
Irifbman, and that he had a Commiffion from the
FreuchKing, and that he cruized upon our Englifh
Coafts, in Company with the King’s Enemies,
with a Defign to take, burn, or deftroy any of
the King’s or his Subjects Ships, you are to find
him guilty of the High-Treafon whereof he ftands
indicted 5 otherwife you are to acquit him,

Cl. of Ariv. Swear an Othicer to keep the Jury.
(TP bich was done.)

After a flort Stay, the Jury returned into Couit,
and gave i thetr Verdidl,

Cl.of Arr. Gentlemen, anfwer to your Names.
It Leeds.

M. Leeds. Flere,

Cryer. Vous Avez, and {o of the reft,

L. of Arr. Gentlemen, are you all agreed of
your Verdict ?

fury. Yes.

Clof drr. Who fhall fay for you ?

Sury. Our Foreman,

Cl. of A, Thomas Vaughan, hold up thy Hand.
(IFhich be did.)  Look upon the Prifoner. How
fay you, 1s he gutlty of the High-T'reafon where-
of he {tands indicted, or not guiley ?

Lareman, Guilty,

Cl. of Arr. What Goods or Chattels, Lands or
Tenements had he at the Time of the Treafon
committed ¢

Foreman. None to our Knowledge,

Cloof sbrir. Then hearken to your Verdit as the
Court hath recorded it: You fay that Thomas
Vaughan s guilty of the High-Treafon whereof
he ftands indicted 5 bue that he had no Goods or
Chatrels, Landsor Tenements at the Time of the
LTigh-Treafon committed, or at any Time (ince,
to your Knowledge 5 and fo you fay all.

Jury. Yes,

Tho Fanghan, My Lord, let me beg one Fa-
vour, that 1 may be ufed like 1 Gentleman s that
[ may be fent to a Chamber, and not to a Dun-
aeon 3 and that my Friends may come to me.

[.. C. J. Gaprain Paughan, they fay you once
made an Efcape, and therefore the Keeper muft
keep you with Flumanity, but with all Secy-
y.

Tho. Vaughap, 1 defire T may be kepe like a
Chriftian,

I

L.C.J. The Keeper muft do his Duty,

Cl. of Av. Thomas Vaughan, hold up thy Hand.
(Which be did.) Thou ftandeflt conviéted of Fligh-
Treafon againft our Sovereign Lord the King s
What haft thou to fay for thy felf why Judgment
fhall not pafs againft thee to die according to the
Law?

The. Vaughan, 1 am altogether a Strangsr to
the Law, my Lord; I refer my felf to my Coun-
fel,

L. C. J. Well, then you refer your felf to your
Counfel.  You have had a fair Trial, and have
no Reafon to complain of it: If your Counicl
have any thing to fay in arrelt of Judgment, they
{hall be heard.

Mr. Phipps. My Lord, the Indictment has two
Sortsof Treafon laid in it3 the one tor adhering
to the King’s Encmies, the other levying of War ;
and with Submiflion, 1 ke it, that the firlt 1s
not well laid 5 for it fays that the Prifoner did ad-
here to the King's Enemies, but fays not again{t
the King, Now every Body knows that the
French Xing is in War, not only with Englaud,
but Hollaid, and Spain, and the Emperor: But if
a Man join with the French againft any of them,
he adheres to the King’s Iinemies 3 and yet ic
cannot be faid to be againft the King 3 therefore
they ought to have Luid ity that he did adhere to
the King’s Enemies coitra Dominum Regem 5 it
muft be aiding and comfortine them acaindt the
Kinz that makes the Treafon,

L. C. J. It docs fay fo.

Mr. Phipps. No, my Lord, it only favs that
Captam Vanghan did. adhere to the King's Ene-
mies, and does not fay it was again(t the Kmg ;
and if that be T'realon, 15 what we defire to kinow.,

L.C.J. If he adhere to the King’s Enemies, it
muft be againit the King, though he aflift them
only againft the King's Allies 3 for thereby the
King’s Enemies may, be more encouraged and en-
abled to do Mifchief or Damage to the King,
Suppofe you affilt the Freach King againft the
King of Spaiir, that 1s now in Alliance and League
with the King of Eugland, and the Freuch in acty-
al Enmity 5 that 15 to adhere to the King’s Ene-
mies again{t the King.

Mr. Phipps. Would that be T=eafon, my Lord?

L.C. J. Yes, certainly 5 though that is not a
Point in this Cale, and fo not neceflary to be de-
termined now 5 for the A¢ of Parliament of 25
of E, 111, defines Treafon in adhering to the King’s
Enemies, and exprefles the Overt-A& in civing
them Aid or Comfort; it is fufficicnt to alledge
the Treafon in the Words of the Statute, adherin g
to the King’s Enemies.  An Overt-A& alledged,
fhews 1t to be againit theKing ; and in puriuance
of that Adherence, he did fo and fo: He wasa
Captain and Soldier in the Ship; did join with
the King’s Enemies, &7, with a Defign to deftroy
the King's and his Subjects Ships ; furely that 1s
imoft manifeftly an Adherence to the King’s Ene-
mies againlt the King,

Mr. Phipps. The Overt-A&, if it were alledged
[ufficiently, would not help it; for if there can
be an adhering to the King’s Enemies, that is not
Trealon ; they ought to alledge fuch adhering as
is Treafon; and if the Treafon it felf is not well
alledged, the Overt-A& will not help iz.

L.C.J. There is an Overt-A& to fhew it to
}Je aganft the King, It is faid all along, he bea-
ing i chis Veflel Clencarty, cuim diverfis Subditis.

M.



1690. *10. B. for High-T'reafon oz the f[{éﬁ-Seéz&i ST

Mr. Phipps. But then that Overt-At is not well
alledaed ; for ’tis faid only he went a crmﬁng:;
whereas they ought to have alledged that he did
commit fome Aéts of Hoftility, and attempted to
eake fome of the King’s Ships ; for cruifing alone
cannot bz an Overt-Aét ; for he might be croifing
ro {ecure the French Mcrchant-Ships from being
raken, or for many other Purpofes, which will
not be an Overt-Aﬂ: DF Tl‘E:lfUﬂ.

L.C.J. I beg your Pardon. Suppofethe French
King, with Forces, fhould come to Dunkirk with
a Delign to invade Zuglaird 5 1f any one fhould
fend him Victuals, or give him Intelligence, or
by any other Way contribute to their Affift-
ance, it would be Hligh-Treafon in adhering to
the King’s Enemies.

Mr. Phipps. If the French King had defign’d
an Tnvafion upon England, and Captain Vaughar
had affifted in his Veffel in forwarding the Inva-
fion, it would have been Treafon; but here is
nothing mentioned but Cruifing.

L. C. J. Cruifing about the Coafts of England
with a Dezfign to dettroy the King's Ships.

Mr. Phipps. That Defign ought to be made
appear by fome Act of Hottility 3 for in the Cafe
of Burton and Bradfbaw, and others, which my
Lord Coke cites, the agrecing to rife and pull
down Inclofures, and meeting and providing Arms
for that Purpofe, is agreed not to be levying of
War; and they were indicted for confpiring to
levy War, upon the Statute of Queen Elizabeth.
And in this Cafe, here being only a Confpiring,
and nothing attempted, 1t can be no more Trea-
fon than it was in that Cafe,

L. C.J. When Men form themfelves into a
Body, and march Rank and File with Weapons
Offenfive and Defenfive, this is Jevying of War
with open Force, if the Defign be publick. Do
you think when a Ship is armed with Guns, &,
doth appear on the Coaft, watching an Opportu-
nity to burn the King’s Ships in the Harbour ;
and their Defign be known, and one goes to them,
and aids and aflits them, that this is not an ad-
hering to the King’s Enemies ? Here are two In-
ditments, one for levying War, and the othet
for adhering to the King’s Enemies ; but the ad-
hering to the King’s Enemies is principally infift-
ed on 5 and there mult be an adtual War proved
upon tae Perfon indited 1n the one, yet need not
be proved 1n the other Cafe,

Mr. Phipps. The fame certainly is neceffary in
onc as well as the other ;5 for barely adhering to
the King’s Jinemies is not Treafons but there
muft be an actual aiding and comforting them ;
and a meer Intention to aflift the King’s Enemies, is
not an Adherence within the Statute of 25 £4. 111,

L. C. J. If there be not High-Treafon in the
Act alledged 5 that is; if it do not make out an
Adherence to the King's Enemics, then your Ob-
jection would hold good,

Mr. Phipps. The going to cruize, my Lord,
does not make out an Adherenceto the King's Ene-
mies 5 for his Cruizing might be for other Pur-
pofes as well as to take the King’s Ships 5 and your
Lordthip will intend the belt in favour of Life,

Mr [Vbitaker. To burn the King’s Ships,

L.C. J. Trely. The Indictment is laid for ad-
hering to, and comforting and aiding the King’s
Lnemics. You would take that to bz capable to be
conltrued adhering to the King’s Enemies in other
Refpa@ts: bur I take it to be a reafonable Conftru-
Ction of the Indi@tment, to be adhering to the

King’s Enemies in their Enmity.  'What is the
Duty of every Subjet? It is to fight with, fub-"
due, and weaken the King’s Enemies: And con- -
traty to this, if he confederate with, and ftrengthen
the King’s Enemies, he exprefly contradiétsthis Du-
ty of his Allegiance, and is guilty of this Trreafon of
adhering to them. But then you fay here isno aid-
ing, unlefs there were fomething done, fome Aé:
of Hoftility. Now here is going aboard with an
Intention to do fuch Aéts; and is not that com-
forting and aiding ? Certainly it is, Is not the
French King comforted and aided, when he has got
fo many Englifh Subjeéts to go a Cruifing upon
our Ships? Suppofe they man his whole Fleet, or
a confiderable Part of it ; is not that aiding ? If
they go and enter themfelves into a Regiment, Lift
themfelves and march, though they do not come
toa Battel; this ishelping and encouraging 3 fuch
Things give the Enemy Heart and Courage to go
on with the War ; or elfe, it may be, the French
King would cote to good Terms of Peace. It is
certainly aiding and comforting of them, to go
and accept a2 Commiffion, and enter into their
Ships of War, and lift themfelves, and go out in
order to deftroy their Fellow-Subjeéts, and ruin
the King’s Ships 3 thefe are Actings of an hoftile
Nature, And if this be not adhering, £, itmay as
well be faid, That if the fame Perfons had made
an Attack upon our Ships, and mifcarried in it,
that had not been {o neither 3 becaufe that in an
unprofperous Attempt there i3 nothing done that
aives Ald or Comnfort to the Enemy. And after
this kind of Reafoning, they will not be guilty,
'till they have Succefs ; and if they have Succefs
enough, 1t will be too late to queftion them.,

Mr. Phipps. Intending to levy War is not Trea-
{on, unlefs a War be actually levied.

L.C. J.Treby. Is it notactually levying of War,
if they attually provide Arms, and levy Men, and
in a warlike manner fet out and cruize, and come
with a Defign to deftroy our Ships?

Mr. Phipps. It would not be an altual levying
of War,unlefs they commit fome At of Hoftility.

L.C.]J. Yes, indeed, the going on board, and
being in aPofture to attack the King’s Ships. As
to the Fault you find with the Indi€tment, there
is a Fault, but not in Point of Law; they might
have laid 1t more generally, fo as to have given
more Evidence, -

Mr. Baron Powis. However, it is well enough,
But for you to fay, becaufe they did not actu-
ally fight, it 1s not a levying War; 1s it not
plin what they did intend 7 That they came with
that Intention, that they came in that Pofture,
that they came armed, and had Guns, and Blun-
derbuffes, and furrounded the Ship twice 5 they
came with an armed Force ; that is a ftrong Evi-
dence of the Defign.

L. C. J. You would make no A& to be aiding
and affifting, but fighting,

Mr. Phipps. Then next'I am in your Lordfhip’s
Judgment, whether the Statute of 28 of Hen. VIII.
by which Captain Vaughan is tried, is in Force, and
be not repealed by the firftand fecond of Philip and
Mary, which faith, That all Trials, in Cafes of
T'reafon, fhall be at the CommonLaw. Now by
the Common Law beforethe Statute 28 Hen. VIII,
Treafon done upon the Sea, was tried before
the Admiral, or his Lieutenant; and my Lord
Coke, in the 12 Rep. in the Cafe of the Admiral-
ty, faith the Jurifdiction of the Admiralty is by
the Common Law, By the Statute 33 Hea VIIL.

Trea-
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L.C. J. Two Witnefles there muft b2 ; but
then confider it is not neceflary to have two to
every individual Overt-A&: For fuppofe there
be two Overt-Adéts Jaid in the Indiétments, for
one Species of Treafon, compafling and imagining
the Death of the King 3 if there be one Wiines
that he bought a Dagger, and faid he would kil
the King, and he is feen, it may be, going to the
King’s Bed-Chamber with the Dagoer s another
Witnefs fays, he faid he would kill the King with
a Piftol, and bought a Pittol, and he flood wait-

Treafon confeffed before three of the Privy-Coun-
cil might be tried in a foreign-County, but that
Statute is repealed by the Statute xand 2 of Philip
and Mary; for by the Statute 33 Hen. 8. c. 4.
Treafon committed in #ales, might be tried in
what County the King would affign 5 but fince
the Statute of Philip and Mary, it mult be in the
proper County 3 fo that we are in your Lord{hip’s
Judgment, whether the Statute of 28 Hen. §. be
in Force; and whether, fince the Statute of 1

and 2 Philip and Mary, Treafons done upon the
Sea, oughtnot to be tried before the Admirals, or

anctently at the Common Law?

L. C. J. This is Treafon by the Common
Law, and the Trialis by the Method of the Com-
mon Law,

Mr. Phipps. Tis true that my Lord Coke, and
other Authorities fay, that the Statute g5 H. 8.
for trying Treafons committed beyond Sea, is
not repealed by the Statute of 1 and 2 Philip and
Mary 5 but they do not fay that this Statute 1 not
repealed by the Statute of Philip and Mary s and
the Books being filent in this, s the Realon why
I propofe this Queftion for your Lordihip’s Judg-
ment,

L. C. J. It1s no more a Queftion than the Tri-
als of foreign Treafon, and then the Determina-
tion of the T'rials upon the 35th determines the
Queftion upon this,

Dr. Oldifb. We muft have two Witnefies by the
Rules of the Civil Lawy an extrajudicial Saying
ofa Party may be retradted by them at any Time,
that 1s the Civil Law, and fo there can be bug one
Witnels,

L. C. J. That is not the Law of Eigland,

Dr. Oldiflr. 1do humbly conceive that the Civil
Law is not taken away in this Cafe ; for though
the Statute preferibes the Form of Proceedings
according to the Rules of the Common Law, yet
as to the Crimesand Proofs, the Civil Law is fLill
in Force; and then the Party may retrad his Con-
teflion i Judgment, much more any cxerajudicial
Saying. |

Mr. Whitaker, You are arraigning the Verdict.

L. C. J. Thatyou thould have taken Notice of
before the Verdict was given, But we think there
is no Danger in hearing this Objetion, becaufe it
1s o cafily anfwered, How many Witnefles were
to the Confeffion ?

- St Gharles Hedges, Weare not in a Court that

proceeds according to the ftriét Rules of the Civil
Law; but if we were, that Law is not fo ab-
furd as to allow that a Party may retra his
Confeflion at any Time, {o as to make it have no
iitedt. o

Dr. Oldifp. There muft be two Witneflesat any
Time, '

Sir Charles Hedges. So there are here to the Con-
{eflion; but you miftake if you think that every
Particular is to be proved ftrictly as the Civil Law
requires; for the Jind of the Statute which direéts
the Proceedings of this Court, was to fasilitate the
Method of making Proofs, that being found dif-
ficult by the Courfe of the: Civil Law 3 and there-
fore was that Statute made, as plainly appears by
the Preamble thereof, |

Dr. Oldyfh. There is a new Statute that revives
that Statute again, and that requires two Wit-
nefles 5 whereby it is reduced to the Rules of the
Civil Law again, -

ing to kill the King as he came by 5 thatis another
Overt-Act of the fame Treafon, I one Wimels
prove one, and another Witnels prove the other,
this is fufficient Proof with us.

Dr. O%difh, Tt 1sanother Quettion, Whether he
be a Subjet ?

L.C. J, Thatis not an Overs-Act 5 if there be
one Witnefs to that, 1t is enougzh, there needs not
two Witneffes to prove him a Subjelt; but upon
the Trial there were above wwo Wimnefles o
prove ity that was Critteiiden, the Marthal of
Lover, Creaghy and River, 1 muft tell you, as to
the Doftrine of the Civil Law, it 1s noc univer-
fally received in all Countrics; it s received in fe-
veral Countries as they lind it convenient, and not
as obligatory 1n 1tfclf,

Dr. Oldifh. Yes, inali Places, a5 to Preol’; for
us the Law of God and Nauons, o oe dio-
ram, vel tripm, &c. and one Witnels s no Wit-
neis.

Sir Charles Hedges. Two Witnefles may be ne-
ceflary to conviét a Man of any capital Crime,
but then 1t doth follow that there muft be two
Witnefes to prove every particular Fact and Cir-
cumftance. In this Poinr, touching the Place of
the Nativity of Thomas Faughair, was there not
fufficient in Ius own Confeflion, togethor with the
other Proofs on the King’s behait, to throw the
Burden of Proof upon the Prifoner? You your
felves feem to have been of that Opinion 5 you
undertook to prove it, and ’ts vou that have fail-
ed in that Particular,

L. C. J. Our Trials by Jurtes are of fuch Con.
fideration in our Law, that we allow their Derer.
mination to be the beft, and moit advaniagious
to the Subject; and therefore lefs Evidence is re-
quired than by the Civil Law.  So faid Fursei
in his Commendation of the Lazws of England.

Dr. Odifb. Becaufe the Jury are the Witnefies in
Reality, according to the Laws of Kizlaid, being:
prelumed to be ex <icdieto 3 but when it is on the
high and open Seas, they are not then prefumed
to be ex vicineto, and fo mult be inflrucied ac-
cording to the Rules of the Civil Law by Wit.
nefles.

Mr. Baron Pozois, This is not a Trial by the Ci-
vil Law ; for that Statute was made to avoid ihe
Niceties of your Lavr,
 Mr. J. Eyre. He is tried with like Evidence, s
in other Cafes of High-Treafon,

Dr. Oldifh. No, the lae A& FCQUIres [wo W it-
neifes,

CL. of Arr. Make Proclamation of Silence.

Cryer. Al manner of Perfons are commanded
(o %(et:p Silence, while Judgment is giving, UpoIL
Pain of Imprifonment,

And then Judement woas given, asccording as Ihe
Law direfts in Cafes of High - Treafon

& The
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The Commiffinn of Capt. Thomas Faughan,
which he had by Order of the French

..,'?"II"II'T
LAy, B

Ewis Alexander of Bourbon, Earl of Tou-
Jouie, Duke of Amville, Commander of the
King's Orders, Geverior aid Lfcf'ffwmﬁt-Gﬁ:eml
for bis Majefly i the Proviice of Briany, Peer and
Admiral of YTrancey To all thofe who fhall fee thefe
prefent Laiters, Greeting, The King baving declared

39

others, of what fball bave bappened during bis Voyage,
and give us Advice thereof, and fend bis faid Report
to the Secretary-General of the Marine, with the
Papers juftifying the fame, that we may pive fuch
Orders therenpon as may be neceffary, -~
And we pray and require all Kings, Princes, Po-
tentates, Sovereigns, Eftates, Republicks, Friends and
Allies of this Crown, and all others, 10 whom it fhalf
appertain, (o gruedo the faid Vaughan all Favour, 4id,
Afftance and Sueconr in their Ports, with bis faid
Veflel, Company and Prizes, which be fhall take du~
ring his Voyage, without doing, or fufferiug to be done

War agaliff bis Catholick NMajefly, the Favourers of 0 bim any Trovble or Hindrance 3 offering to do the

1o of the Crowns of England
aitd Scotland, aud 1he Eltates of the United Pro-
vinces, for the Reafons contaiied in the Declaraijons
publifhed by bis Mayelty throughout the Extent of bis
Kizpdon, Countrics, Landsy, and Lordfbips under
bis Qdediciree 5 aid Lis Majefty baving commanded
15 13 Late Care that the foid Declaration be obferved, in
wwhal o 10 depeiid upon the Povser and Authority swhich
By Aejefly bath beciv pleafed to commit to our faid
Charge of Admival 5 We bave, according to the ex-
trefs Qiders of bis faid Majefty, given Leave, Power
aiid Periitffion to Thomas Vaughan, living at Bul-
loane, fo aim aid for forth tn warlike Manner a
Baik, cailed The Loyal Clencarty, of the Burthen
ef Teir Tens, or thereabouts, which is at prefent in the
Peit of Bubicigne, with fuch Nember of Mei, Cai-
aits, £adlctsy, Powdery Shoty and other Admmunitions
of éur, aid Precifions which are neceffary to fet ber
vl 1 Seay 1 a Condition to fail and cruize upon the
Puratesy and otbers withont Commiffion, as alfo upon
the Sutielts of bis Catholick Majefty, the Eftatcs
of the United Provinces, the " Favonrers of the

of 10: Crowus of England and
Scotland, aid eiber Enemics of this Eftate, in what
Places focver be cair meet them, wwhether it be 103
102 Cogiis of theti C ouityyy 11 thetr Poits, or Rivers
alfe wpon thir Shoies, or Places <obere the Jatd Cap-
tati L homas Vaughan fiall think fit to land to an.
Loy L3¢ fasd foneintes o aid there to make nfe of all the

like when we fball be by them thereunto required.

And we do command and require all Marine Offi-
cers, aud others, to whom it fhall appertain, to let
bim fafely and freely pafs with bis faid Velfel, Arms
and Company, and the Prizes which be [ball take,
wilbout doing, ar fuffering to be done to bhim any Trou -
ble or Hindrance y but on the contrary, to give bim
all Succour and Afiftance that fhall be ncceffary.
Thefe Prefents to be of w0 Force after one 1ear, from
the Day of the Date bereof.

Lt Witnefs whereof We bave figned thefe Prefents,
and caufed them to be fealed with the Seal of our
Arms, and counter-figned by the Secretary-General of
the Marine, at Verfailles, the tenth Day of the Moni#
of July, One Thoufand Six Hundred Ninety Five.,

L. A. de Bourbon,
LS

By my Lord dz Pailenconr,

The prefert Commiffion was regiftred in the
Regiltry of the Admiralty of Bulloigue, after ha-
ving been feen by us Fames Abbot de la Cocherine,
the King’s Counfellor, deputed to the Intendency
of Bulloigne, exercifing the Charge of Lieutenant-
(eneral of the Admiralty, in the Prefence of the

sdeaas and At [L’}'ﬁfﬂft’d aid f{rf;d Zf}‘ the Laws bf King’s Pr{)&ﬂf, at the Requcft of the {aid Cap..

liaiy 1o take toem gind bring them Prifiters, wwith
ff'm:.‘:'.r Skipsy Arms, and other Things in thetr Pof-
%o

Provided the faid Vaughan fhall keepy and canfe
tinoke of bis Crew 1o keop the Maritime Orders, and
toal be foall carry, during Dis Vovage, the Flag and
Lufigit of the King's- drams, and of Qurs, and canfe
the prefent Commiffion 1o be regytred i 1he Regiftry
cf o iearell Admiralty wobere be foall be equipped,
aird feave there @ Roll figned and cerlijied by him,
coitazitig the Names and Siviames, the Births and
Kefeacicce of bis Crewo s aid make Fis Return to the
fad itices or fome other Furt of France, and mage
Lis Repert before the Officers of the Laniralty, and wo

tin Zaughan, being prefent, whom we have per-
mitted to fail and cruize upon the Enemies of the
Lftate. - Done at Bulloigne the fourteenth of Fuiy,
One Thoufand Six Hundred Ninety Five,

_, Mﬁgf}w.

Perfuonem hane Anglicanam in omusbus, cum
Juwo Originali Gallio convenire teftor,

Wilhelmus Rocke, Notar, Pull.

He was afterwards executed according to his Sen-
lence, '

CLXIIL
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CLXIIL. Proceedings in Parliament againft Sir John Fenwick,
Bar. upon a Bill of Attainder for High-Treafon, November,

e, 1696. 8 Will. 11

Proceedings in the Houfe of Commons,

Veneris 6 die Novembris, 1090.

‘“‘ﬂ%ﬁ" [ Dmiral Ruffelacquainted theHoufe

=
o \W] ;-\r of Commons, that his Majefty

f’%‘}) ) ‘}‘ had given Leave to lay before the
245 333 Houfe feveral Papers in the Na-
E‘-@#“"{‘?} '*‘?*"n ture of Informattons of Sir Fobu
2y me @5‘ Fenwick, in which he and feveral
other Perfons of Quality were named 3 and defired
that they might be brought up to the Table and
read 5 and that he might have an Opportunity
to Juftify himfelf, or if he did not, that he might
fall under the Cenfure of the Houfe. And Mr.
Sccretary Trambal being prefent, did fay, That
he had his Majefty’s Leave to lay thofe Papers
before the Houfe 3 and 1f the Houfe pleafed he
would bring them up to the Table.

And accordingly (the Houfe thewing a general
Inclination for it) they were brought up to the
Table and read (being the Account he gave of
the Jaft Plot under his own Hand ; and his Exa-
mination taken by Mr. Vernon, afterwards upon
his Trial produced) 5 and after the fame was read,
the Houfe ordered, That Sir Fobn Fenwick thould
be brought immecdiately before them 3 and that
no Perfon {hould in the mean Time fpeak with
him, or give or receive any Paper from him.
And the Houfe further order’d, That the Lord
Cutts, Sir Henry Hobart, and Mr, Norris, three
of their Members, fhould fee their Order exe-
cuted,

And in the mean Time adjourned to the After-
noon,

About Five a Clock in the Afternoon Sir Yo
fenzvick was brought with a ftrong Guard (which
the Lord Cutts had taken Care for) to the Houfe
and being brought to the Bar, Mr. Speaker fpake
to him thus : |

M. Speaker. Siv Fobn Fenwick, the Houfe un-
derftand that you have thew’d fome Inclinations
to make a Difcovery of the Defigns and Practices
of the Enemics of the Government ; you have
now an Opportunity to do it; and the Houfe
require 3t from you, that you make a full and
ample Difcovery of all you know of that Matter.

Siw fobi Fenwick. M. Speaker, I fuppofe the
Houfe is not ignorant of my Circumftances, I
am indiéted of High-Treafon, and have been ar-
aigned: What T have done to ferve the King
and Nation his Majefly knows, it hath been com.
municated to him by his Privy-Council, 1 do
not know but what I'fay may hurt my felf; and
therefore [ defire that T may have fome Security

for my felf, and Tam willing to tell the full of
all T know.

Mr Speaker. Sir, if you pleafe to withdraw for
the prefent, the Houfe will fend you their Plea-
{ure,

Sir John Fenwick withdrews, Was call d in again.

* Mr. Speaker, Siv Fobn Fensvick,
fince you withdrew, the Houfe have
confider’d of what you faid at the Bar.
They do not think what you faid is an Anfwer to
what they require 5 they doexpeét a full and can-
did Confeflion from you of what you know; and
they think that the beft Way for you to obtain
the Favour of the Houfe is t deal ingenuoully
with them,

Sir Fobu Fensick. Sir, Tam in the Hands of the
Law, and I would not do any Thing that his Ma-

"Pﬁ'n'l.’f Fﬂfr;f,
Liq;

jelty might be angry with me; for { do sot know

it 1s with his Majefty's Confent : 1 have acquaint-
ed him fully with all I know of the Matter ; this
1s all the Account T can give you at this Time,
*T'is a dangerous Point that I am under 5 1'know
not but I may come to my Trial in a few Days;
and what I may fay may rife up againft me in a
Court of Judicature: I humbly propofe it to the
Houlfe, if they do not think it a hard Cafe for me
to make any Confeflion here, when his Majelty
hath all that I know. I fhali be very ready to do
what this honcurable Houfe pleafes to command
me; but I defire this Houfe will confider my
Circumftances ; I would not offend the King, nor
offend this Houfe,

Thereupon Mr. Speaker again fpake to him to
withdraw, And being withdrawn, the Houfe de-
bated, whether they fhould acquaint him with
their having thofe Papers of Information. Bue
they did not think fit to do it for this Reafon, be-
caufe they thought thofe Papers were a Contri-
vance, and made by others for him 5 and that the
beft Way to get the Truth out of him, would be
for him o tell his own otory.  Belides, if the
Houfe fhould let him know they had thofe Papers,
he would only refer to thofe Papers, as he had
lately done, when he was examined by the King
and Council.

"Twas alfo debated, whether there fhould be
any threatning Words uled towards hm; bur
they thought that not proper; for his Confeflicn
ought to be free and narural, It was alio de-
bated, whether they fhould take Notice of hs
Majelty’s Confent 5 but that was no thought
fit, bﬂing thought dcrﬂg.ttor)' i the Privi-
leges of the Houfe,  So the Houfs ordered him
to be called in agamn ; and My, Speaker deli-

vered the Senfe of the Houfe to tnm in thele
Words,

1 Sir
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M. Speaker. Sir Fobn Fenwick, the Houfe has
confidered of what you have faid, to excufe your
making a Difcovery of your Knowledge of the
Defigns and Practices of the Enemues of the Go-
vernment 3 and they think what you f{tand upon
is only an Excufe 5 they think you have no Rea-
fon to apprchend the King thould be angry with
you for making any Difcovery to this Houle, this
being the proper Place to enquire of all Things
that do relate to the King and Government, efpe-
cially his Majefty’s Safety ; and you ought to
difcover to them what you know. As to what
you ftand upon, that you fhould not be preju-
diced by what you difcover here, 'I am command-
ed to tell you, they do take Notice by what you
have faid here, that you have already, notwith-
ftanding what you fay, difcovered it to the King
and Council : And they command me to tell you,
that you hive no Reafon at all toapprehend, that
you fhall fufier any thing if you make a full and
free Difcovery here; no Man that ever did fo,
and deale candidly with this Houfe, ever did :
> I'is in your Power to deferve the Favour of the
Houte; ’ts requir’d by the Houfe, that you make
a Difcovery 3 and this is the Jaft Time that you
are like to be atked to doit.

Sir Jobu Ienzvick. Mr. Speaker, I know not
what Anfver to make to this Houfe 5 I would not
willingly offend it 5 what I have informed the
King of, is a great deal ; and a Man would have
fome little Time to recollect himfelf 5 and I have

een kept a very clofe Prifoner, and had no Con-
veniency of Pen, Ink, and Paper; ’tis hard to
remember juft of a fudden 3 and Iwould willing-
Iy be fecure his Majely will not be angry with
me, [ was in hopes that lus Majefty would have
mformed the Houfe himielf; he hath all thae I
xnow 3 my Ciwecumftances are hard, I am indan-
aer every Day to be tried, and I defire to be fe-
cured, that what [ fay fhall not rife up n Judg.
ment azaunit me; 'ns hard to make me accufe
my {elf under thefe Crrcumftances, and very hard
to put me on it now.

Nr, Speaker, As to whatyou fay l‘clnting to the
Fear of his Majefty’s Dulpleafure, and the other
Lxcufe, you have had your Anfwer already. As
ro what you fay relating to Time, if you will now
declare what you know and remember, the Houfe
will take it into Confideration, whether they will
give you farther Time to make up the reft,

Sie Fobn Fenwoick, Siry his Majefty hach ail ex-
actly 3 *as impoffible for me to inform you of it
without accufing my felf : I do not really know
wh:u_: to ‘:Iﬂx' but a little Time, if they would pleate
to give It .

My, Speakzr. Sir, you know already what the
Houle requires of you,

S ol Ienwick. 1 do: But *tis no Excufe that
I have made: What I have told is Truth, to the
beft of my Knowledge: I am not very good ac
Speaking 5 and if I might have a little Time, I
fhall do what they pleafe to command me.

Mr, Speaker. If that be all you have to fay, if
vou pleafe to withdraw, you thall know the Plea-
lure of the Houfe.

Sir John Fenwick withdrazes, Is called in again,

Mr. Speaker. Sir Fobn Ferzvick, this Houfe have
Vor.V,
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confidered what -you ftood upon when you were
here laft, that your Memory was bad, and that
you defired Times; but the Houfe think 1t a
Matter of great Moment to the King and whole
Nation, that thofe that are their Enemies fhould
be difcover’d as foon as poflible; and this being
a Matter within your Knowledge, the Houfe do
not think fit to give you Time; butif they find
by your Difcovery, that you deal candidly and
ingenuoully with them, and have told them as
much as you know upon your Memory, they will
confider of your Requeft of giving you Time for
the reft.

Sir fobn Fenwick, When firft T {pake to the
Privy-Counfellor, I propos’d it to him, whether
I might have a Pardon without being an Evidence
again{t any Man; and in that Cafe I would ferve
the King fo as to tell him all that I knew, It
was upon Honour that I did it to him, and he
took the Words in Writing from me, and fent
them to the King in Flanders, The King’s An-
{wer was, That he made no Objection as to my
being an Evidence, nor his giving me a Pardon;
but that I could expect no Pardon *till he knew
what I could fay: Upon that, I was encouraged
to do what I did for his Muajefty’s Service ; and I
have found in all my Bufinefs fince, whatever I
do or fay, the Anfwer 1s, *Tis not fatisfactory,
and I am where I was. When this was done,
there was a Meffage fent to me from the Lords
Juftices, Thatthis was not fatisfactory, and I muft
tell all I know: Now when a Man hath told all
e knows, and this muft {till be the Anfwer, ’tis
very hard. The King’s Anfwer was, That I
fhould more fully make good what I had faid.
Sir, I did afterwards explain what I had inform-
ed that honourable Perfon, and il it was not
fausfactory. I hope I fhall not find this from this
honourable Houfe: I am upon my Life, and I
hope this Houfe will confider of it: I know this
Houfe 15 good Security if I had it3 but ull I
have 1t, I am under thefe Circumftances, and I
may at laft be told all is not fatisfactory : Idefire
the Houlfe will pleafe to confider of i,

Mr. Speaker. Siv, you know the Pleafure of the
Houfe, you know what they require of you.

Sir Yobn Fenwick. T am very unwilling to offend
the Houle; but thefe are very hard Circumitan-
ces, to be told, when I have done all I can, ’tis
not fatisfactory.,

Mr. Speaker, Sir, you know what the Houfe
does expect; you mult cither give them Satisfa-
&ion in it, or withdraw. '

Accordingly be withdrezw.

And a Motion was made for Leave to bring in
a Bill to attaint Sir Fobn Fenwoick of HHigh-Trea-
fon; and after a Debate thereupon, the Houfe

divided.

Yeas —— 179, Noeg —~— 01,

So it pafled in the Affirmative.

Lune 9 Die Novembris, 1690.

"The Bill for attainting Sir Fobu Fenzvick of High-
Treafon was prefented to the Houfe 5 and aftera
long Debate of feveral Hours, the Queftion was
put for the fecond Reading of 1t; whereupon the

Houfe divided,
G Yeas
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might have the Solicitor he defired, though it was
{aid, his Solicitor was a very great Jacobites and
it was Infinuated, that he was fufpected to be con-
cern’d 1n the Efcape of Goodman 5 but it was allo
faid, that he had been madeufe of as his Solicitor
to prepare for his Trial, and before that, in other
Matters 5 and {o that it might not be thought that
there wasany Hard(hip upon him, 1n that Refpett,
the Houle thought fit to allow Mr. Dighton to be
his Solicitor.

Yeas—1g6.

So it paffed in the Affirmauve, and Friday
Morning was appoimnted for 1t _
The {fame Dzy the Houle order’d, That Sir Fsbis
tirmick thould have aCopy of the Order for read-
ing the Bill the fecond Time, and a Copy of the
Pill ; and thar he thould b= allow’d Pen, Ink, and
Paper. -
And further orderd, That Mr. Attorney-Ge-
zerzl, and Mr. Solicitor-General, (hould prepare Fouis 12 die Novembiis, 1666,
ard produce the Evidence againit him on- Friday B - ‘
Morning,. A Pertition was prefented from Sir Fabn Fei-
And Mr. Speaker this Day acquainted the wick, as follows :
Houfe, that he had received a Lerter from Mr. - N
Fuller, which he thouche fit- to acquaint the 96 the Honsurable the Knights, Citizzens, and
Houfe with; bot upon a Queftion for reading of Burgeffes Perlament olfeabl:d,
it, it paffed by a very grear Majority in the Ne-
cative ; fo that there was no Divifion upon that
Mazter, bur the Lerter was writ in the Words

The humble Petition of Sir Fobr Fenwick, Bar.,

following : Sheweth,
\HAT toere being a Bill of Attaiader brought iito
SI1R, 1bts Houfe for the Altatnting of your Pelilioner

R Prelume that ia Perfon whatever, in the Titereft  of High-Treafon, and your Petilionei is acvifed, Thbat
_§_ of the prefert Goernment, bath beenmore aftuclly  thereare many weighty Reafois tohe oifered againfl ihe
sipaged <oith Sir John Venwick than my felf, it be-  faid Bill;

fvg my Fortane (cveral Times to bring Letiers to bim Your Petitioner therefore moft bunbly prays, That
irom the lazz Aing and Queen at St. Germains, aid vour Hononrs woill be pleajed to bear bim by bis

Counfel againft the Paffing of the faid Bill at the

15 carry bBis Asfwers: Ibave alfo been <oith bim at
Bar of this Honsurable Honfes and ta appoiiit

grizaze Confiitsof the Inte King’s Adberents, s my In-
formations affert 5 fo that if Imay bz ferviceabls 1o the Juch Time for the fame, as to your Henours fhall
] Jeem meet.  Aud your Petitioner fhall ever

deizlHng Bis Treapns, Ifpall be wers ready ts forve the

by ¥

Gyzerzinent, and 19 cemorfirate my Integrity. 77ay, &C.
Iam, S, J. FEnNWICK,

Your Honour's moft humble Which Prayer of his Petition was granted.

and devoted Servant - . ]
? Veweris 13 die Novembris, 1690.
V. Fuller.

Sir Fobn Fenwick was brought ro the Houfe (by

Sizriis 10 61z Novembris, 1690,
Sir Joba Fewzick {ent the Speaker a Letzer in
th=fe Words,

, Newgate, Nov. 10.
Y Fcadd bavz gddreffed my fEIF i the bumblef Mon-
& ser Tessld 10 the Homonrable Houf? of Commons,
‘e wwham d received a Copy of a Bill againft e <cith
their Oider 5 but my Keeper will ot cariy any Paper
Froan e pud 19 zour foIf, to<vhom Idurft ot prefume to
iend a Petitisin 19 delizer for mz.  Therefore 1 bag the
Fuvser e il gleafe to acquarnt the Houfz, that it is
wiz baslic Pelition 10 them, That they wwould give
Leazz for wry Cornfzl Sir Francis Pemberton, Sir
‘i homzs Powis, aud Sir Bartholomew Shower, #o
csine ta 2y corth my Solicitor, Chriftopher Dighton,
io advifz <cith alone.  Tbz Kecper «ill not fo much as
fet :z yeird ti2 Copy of the Bill and Order to my Solici-
i, 222 sof o Ufe tomz: 1 bunbly beg they <ill
#lezie to eive Order, that 1 may bave all Affitance
122! 15 pecelfary for me, and that you il pardon this

- -—*r--‘ri .-_ - Y
}-‘r #r-:plﬂj, {}r}:: Slr:

-

Y our moft humble Servant,

Joux Fexwick,

Uvon thns Letter they did readily order that he
thould e allowed two Counfel to make his De.
ience, and that they might be alone with him ;
and after fome Debatz, did give Leave that he

1

Order) from the Prifon of Newgate; and there
being a very great Company of Strangers, both
In the Labby and Sreaker’s Chamber; and the
Houfe being full of Members, to prevent the
Inconvenience thar fuch a Number of People
crowding in might occafion, the Lsbly was or-
dered to be cleared of all Perfons that were not
concerned, and alfo the Speaker’s Chamber, and
that the Back-door of the fame fhould be lock’d,
ard the Key laid upon the Table: But it having
been faid, that the Lords did admit the Members
of this Ha_ufe to hear their Debates ; there was
private Iniimation given the Serjeant to let them
rematn in the Speaker’s Chamber, when others were
remov’d.

‘Then Sir FobiFenzwick was order’d to be broy cht
to the Bar: But it being a Proceeding of that Na-
ture, that none of the ancienteft Members could
give a Prccadent, 1T Was receflury to fettle fome
Prehminaries; and the fifft Queltion that was
moved, was, Whether the Mace cught to lie up-
on the Table when Sir Fobu Fenwick was in the
Houfe, or whether the Serjeant cuzhit nort to fland
by him with it at the Bar? ”

Mr. Smith, Sir Fobr Fenswick bein o 3 Prifoner,
the Mace ovght to be ar the Bar, and then no
Member can fpzak.

Mr. Bgyle. This Hearing. of any Thing I can
tamk of, is moft like the Hearing of an EI:&inn :
and then the Mace is upon th2 Table, and every

one has Liberty to fpeak and afk Queftions,
' . M.,
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* Mr., Chanc. of Excheq. The Mace
* M. Charles ought not to be upon the Table, be-
Montegt¢- aufe he is a Prifoner: The Sheriffs

of London can’t have him in Cuftody here, and
fo they deliver him into Cuftody of the Set-
jeant. .
Mr, 7. Iowe. That Argument would be good,
€ he could not be in Cuftody of the Serjeant un-
lefs he had the Mace in hts Hand.

Wic. Brotherton. The Mace ought to be upon the
Table, becaufe the Bill is to be read.

Mr. Chr. MMufgrave. The Mace ought tobe up-
on the Table. Never any Bill was read but the
Mace was upon the Table.

Col. Granville. If the Mace be not upon the T-
ble, it would be a great Hardfhip to the Men}-
bers that they cannot {peak, and a great Hard_ﬂup
upon the Prifoner that he can’tafk any Queftions,
My Lord Torrington was brought Fr;fonef from
the Tower, and upon Account of his Quality the
Houfe did not let him go to the Bar: But while
he was in the Houfe, the Mace was upon the Ta-
ble, and he gave an Account of_ the whole Cam-
paign; and every Body was at Liberty to afk what
Quettions they pleafed. o

* Mr. Ait. Gen. The Matter 1s very
new; and I think ’us neceflary you re-
folve upon the Method before you call
in the Counfel, that you may acquamt the Coun-
{ol with 102 I think it not proper that the Mace
jhould be upon the Table, becaufe he 15 a Pri-
juner s though 1t may not be neceflury that the
Serjeant thould have 1t upon his Shoulders all the
Time, but he may eafe himfelf. I believe you
will afke Sir Fobu Fenwick what he has to {ay, but
no Queltions to make him accufe himfelf: And I
humbly propofe 1t to you, that after the Counfel
15 called 1, they may open the Naturcof the Evi-
deice againft Sir Febi Fenwick 3 and then, whe-
ther you will permit them to go an, er they fhall
withdraw, and the Houfe will confider what Que-
tons thall be afked. -

Col. Alsidanat. 1 hope the Queftions will be ta-
kenaown upona Paper by the Speaker, and then
reaci to us, that we may fee if they be nghe, and
fo atked by the Spraker,

Si 718 I illizms, 11 the Mice is not upon the
‘Table our Mouths are muzzled : We are in the
Nature of Judges 3 and fhall we pals a Vote that
ihie Judges fhali not aflc any Quettions?

Sir T, Dyxe I can’t be informed withour afk-
:ng of Queftions: 1 know not wiicther vou are a
tfoufe without 1t, without haviny the Mace upon
the Table,  And will youadt in vour highett Ca-
pacity without being a Houfe 7 | do not know
how 1t was when the Y.ord Taivingion was here s
but when the Duke of Levds was here, the Mace
was upoi the Table,

My, Bavle, 1 with you had appointed a Com-
mittee w have fetiled the Preliminarics, and that
tiue bl had not been brought i at all 5 what they
labour, as 4 Matter to avoid Delay, may occafion
moie.  For though when you carry the Mace to
the Table, no Member thould have the Liberty
to fpeak, yer any Member hath Liberty to defire
thac the Counfel may withdraw, and then they
mull withdraw, and the Mace muft be bronghe
upon the Table.

My, Chanc. of Excheg. That Gentleman is cer-
tainly 1 the righe : Bur Ithink the Mace muft not
be upon the Table till when the Prifoner is here
and ] E{} ink the Queftions muft beafk’d by the Chair.

oL, V.

+ 20 Tho.

Toover

. The longeft Examinations that I remember wag
of the Admiralty, and then the Queftions were
alked by the Chair. For the Inftance of my Lord
Torrington, *tis true, he had not the Mace with
him, but he came at his own Requeft, he came to
give you an Account of his Proccedings ; and in
that Cafe not a Queftion was afked by any Mem-
ber; any Member hath Liberty to propofe any
Queftion, but it mutt be afk’d by the Chair.

Afterwards the Queftion was put, and it pafled,
That Sir Fobn Fenwick fhould ftand with thé Mace
at the Bar,

Then a Queltion arofe about reading of the Bill:
Some Gentlemen faid, it could not be read when
the Counfe] was prefent, for the Mace would be
off the Table; (and they feemed to be under 2
Difficulty by having pafled the latt Queftion ;)
others faid, it was not neceffary to read it whilft
Sir Fobn Fenwick was prefent, he having had a Co-
py of it; but at laft it was thought reafonable, it
being in the Nature of a Charge upon him, that
1t fhould be read to him when prefent with his
Counfel; and 'twas faid, it was done {o in the
Cafe of Indiftments, tho’ Copies were delivered
to them : But it fhould be read only as a Matter
of Form, as a Charge to which he was to anfwer ;
butit could not be reclkoned a fecond Reading, ac-
cording to the Rules of the Houfe, the Mace being
off the Table ; and thereforeit thould beread again
when the Counfel and he was withdrawn,

And it was faid, that the Journals did take no-
tice, that in fome Calfes, as in the Cafe of an ad-

journed Decbate, fome Bills had been read four

times; and fo it was agreed, and that Difficulty
was folved.

And the Serjeant took the Mace, and brought
Sir Fobu Fenwick o the Bar; and Counlel was adl-
mitted for him, and for the Bill, @iz,

M. Serjeant Gould, King's Serjeant, and M. Re-
corderr Lovel, likewife King’s Serjeant.  And Sir
Thomas owis, and §ir Bartholomew Shower,
for Sir John Fenwick.

And Mr, Speaker opened the Matter thus.

Mr. Speaker. Sir Jobu Ivnwick, the Houfe have
received Information that you have been in a hor-
rid Con{piracy againftthe Life of his Majefty, and
for bringing ma French Force toinvade this King-
dom, that you have been indicted thereof ; and
they haveconfidered the Nature of the Crime with
which you ftand charged, and how deftructive it
would have been (if it had fucceeded) to the very
Being of this Kingdom 3 and therefore, that you
may not go unpunifhed, if you are guilty, have
ordered a Bill to be brought into this Foufe to at-
taint you for Iigh-Treafon, which hath beenonce
read, and will be now read to you at che Bar; and
then you will hear the Evidence againft you, and
have Liberty to make your Defence: And though
youcannotclaimany Right thereto, thisHoufe (1o
fhew how ready they are to tavour you, in giving
you any reafonable [elp to make your Defence)
do allow you Counfel to affitt you therein; and
having granted you this their Favour, they do
expelt that you will make a good Ule of tr, lam
likewife to acquaint thofe that are your Counfel,
that this Houfedo reckon their own Prudence will
{o guide them, as not to give any juft Offence to
this Houle 3 and that they will not be allowed to
queftion the Power of Parliaments to pafs Bills

G 2 of
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of Attainder, when they jadge it requifice 5 of
which this Houfe is more proper to judge than
any private Perfon, and therefore they will not

allow you to debate that Point.

Let the Bill be read.
[Clerk of the Honfe of Commons reads.]

144 eveas Div John Fenwick, Bavt, Wag,
4 upon the Daths of George Porter, Elg;

WO ny Cordel Goodman,Gent., at the 2el:
tiong of Oyer and Terminer Yelb fo2 the City ot
London,on the 28th Day of May, 1696, inditted
of Hinh:Trealon, (ncompaliing and imagining the
mMeath any Defeugionwf Hig Bajelty, anv adbhering
to higEnemics, by confulting andagrecing wit) {e-
veal Peclong (whercof lome habe been alveady At

taintel, ahd others not pet brought to their ‘Crial-

£01 the faip Teealon) at feberal Weetings, to lend
Robert Charnock, (ince attainted and execured (o
Digh-Crealon, in confpiving to alalinate hig M-
jelty’s Sacred Perlon (whom GSod Tong prelerbed to
if¢ lare Ring James in France, t0 {hdite anb encou:
rage the French Ring toinbade thigBingvom with
an atmedFoce, by promiing o join with anvaftill
Bitm with Hen anv Armg upon fneh Intalion. dno
whereag the faid Bit John Fenwick div obtain Gig
MWajeky’s Favour to habve his Teial delaped from
Time to Tiwe, upon Hig vepeatcd Poniles of ma:
king an ingenuous and full Confeffion of HigTnoto:
Teoge of any Defign o) Conlpivacy againkt is Ga-
jefty’s Perfon o2 GGobernment, and of the Perlong
thereinconcerned. dnvwjerveas he fag fo fav abuled
higWajety’s sreatE lemency andFndulgence there:
in, thar, inftead of making {uch Tonfellion, he hath
contribevanvfoamentalle anvleanvalous Papergag
big Fnfopmationg,velleging on the Fivelity of lehe-
ral §2obic Peers, dibers Bembers of the Woule of
Eonunong, anv nthers, only by Bearlav; and con:
tribing thevein to undermine tiiec Gobermment,and
create Jealoufies between theRingand hisSubjens,
andto tiflc the veal Conlpivacy, Andiohereas Cor-
del Goodman,oneof the A itne[es axaintt the faid
5ir JohnFenwick, to probe the laip Trealon,lately
and nce the Teberal@uneg appointed for the Teial
of the (aid SicJohn Fenwick,atoneof which Times
the faiv Bir  John Fenwick bab been accopvingly
trich, Jad it not been foy the Crpectationof the Caib
Dilcovcrics o often promiled,is withdatwn; fothae
the (ain CordelGoodman tannot be Bad to giteEyi-
dence uponany Ceial. Beir Cnaced by the Bing's
Mol € rectlentSHajely, by and with the Aabice any
Confene of the Lowbs Spititual and Tempogal,
and Tominong in thig Pacliament aflomblcy, and
by the uthoity of the fame, Thar rhe (aly Siv
John Fenwick ig fevehy Tonbiced and Qetainted
of Digh-Teealon, any Mall (ulfer the Paing of
WDeath, and fncue all Foxltituceg ag a Pevlan at:
tainted of High-"Trealon.

Mr. Speaker, Mr, Serjeant Gonld, the Houfe
cxpects from you, and Mr, Serjeant Lovel, thar
you open the Evidence you have to prove the Suo-
acftions of the Bill,

Mr. Serjeant Gonld, Mr, Speaker,we arc here in
Obedience to your Commands, to give an Account
of the Charge, and likewife of the Evidence of
the Fadt, that is againt this Gentleman, Sir Yobu
Fenwick.  'The Charge againlt Sir Fobn Fenwickis
for High-Trealon, and High-Trealon of the high-
cft Degree ; uis no lefs thana Delign of depoling

the King, and fubverting the Government, and
{ubjecting it to a French, arbitrary, and flavifh
Power, It further charges, that in Profecution
of this Confpiracy, he hath met, together, with
{everal others, who have confulted, confented,
and agreed together, to bring ina French Army
upon us 3 and in order to that, as a particular
Overt-Act, it 1s charged, that they contrived to
{end one to the late King Fames to bring in a
French Power upon us. It 1s charged likewife,
that he confpired to levy War upon us, and for
that Purpofe did provide Piftols, and other war-
fike Arms. This I take to be the Subftance of the
Charge, as laid in the Indictment.

Now, may it pleafe you, Mr. Speaker, as for
the Evidence of the Fut charged and aliedged in
this Indi€tment : It is no Sccret certainly to any
at this Time of Day (afier fo many Trials, fo
many Convictions, fo many Attainders) that for
fome Years laft paft there hath been a wicked Con-
{piracy to bring in a Fyench Power upon us, to
{ubvert this good Government, and to depole the
King 3 but God Almighty, by fpecial Providence,
hath always prevented and dilappointed them.
We know ever fince the Bulinefs of Ja Hgpre (1n
which, even by a Miracle, God difappointed them)
they have been {till reticfs, and have been indu-
ftrious to fec up again this Delign; and for this
have plotted to bring 1n & French Fower, and have
not had any Regard to the King’s Mercy fhewed
to them, and that in palling feveral Aéts of Par-
liament, but have {till perfiited in the fame De-
figns.

As to the Charge upon this Gentleman at the
Bar, we fhall thew you that in Time : Inthe Year
1094. for feveral Months there was a Confpiracy
carried on, bur did not take Effect 5 afterwards,
in Time, I think the Beginning of Fuze, or lateer
End of May, there were {cveral Confults, or
Meetings, at the King’s Head Tavern at the Up-
per End of Leadeizball-flrect, where this Gentle-
man that now ftands charged at the Bar was pre-
fent 5 there were feveral Gentlemen, and among
the reft (as ithathand will appear upon Evidence)
there was Sir fobn Fenwick, my Lord Maistgomery,
and feveral others, whercof Captain Purter and
Geodman were there likewife prefent: It was then
propofed, that one Chariack ({ince executed, and
agreed upon by all to be prefent) thould go over
into France to the late King Fames, to communi-
cate to him their Refolution and Sincerity in being
ferviceable to him in Jevying War here to depofe
the King, and fubvert the Government 5 who was
to intercede with the French King, fo thar there
might be Forces fent from Fignee. Burafter this,
Charnock (prefent ftill this Gentleman) comes and
propofes this thing again, and tried whether they
were fincere and read in their former Refolutions.
To which they all replied, and did aoree and af-
fent, that it fhould be done, and they were very
ze:fdons in the Matter, and the Forces were at that
Time propoled. And what was that? Why truly,
no lefs th‘an 8000 Foot, and 2co0 Dracoons of
French,withan Affurance of 2000 Horf: from this
Country,  Gharnock did go into Framee, and did
communicate this Mateer 5 and after he had com-
municated this Matter he came back, and brought -
A“ﬁ"ﬁra_th:lt King Fames had endeavoured to an-
{wer thu]_r Lixpectations, but at that Time the
French King could not fpare his F orces, but how-
cver returned his Thanks o them,

This
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This pafled on till towards Chriffmas latts then
comes over Sir George Barclay upon this Expedi-
tion, and there was a Commiffion prepared for
that Purpofe : And as to one Part, he -brought
along with him a Detachment of fome of King
Fames's Guards, who was to aflaffinate ic King.
The next Part was for raifing a Rebelliony now
chat fell to Sir Fobu Fenmwick’s Part.  As to the
affaflinating Puart, you have had i_'everal Examples
made already. This we have Fvidence to prove ;
and if we prove this Matter as we have opened it
then I think there is no Perfon whatfoever, but
will agree that this is High-Treafon in the higheft
Dearce. Now, Sir, here &ands_our Matter: Here
was an Indi¢tment found according to the Law you
made Iaft Seflions of Parliament, by two Wit-
neiles to one Species.of Treafon againft Sir Fobu
Foinwick 5 we have one of thefe Witnefles here viva
woce: But Sir Febun Fenwick hath protra&f:d* his
Trial by frequent Affurances of making a Difco-
very, which hath terminated in what you have
already mentioned in your Bill ; by Means of
which, Sir Fobu Fenwick hath not been try’d s
whereas he had been try’d in courfe, without thefe
Applications, and found guilty : But now he hath
had all this Time, that Gosdman 1s withdrawn is
plain, and we think (but that we muft leave to
the Judgment of this honourable Houfe) may be
reafonably fuppofed, by Contrivance, to take off
this Profecution of Sir Fobu Fenwick., Ior why ¢
The Inference is from a Faét that we fhall prove
to this honourable Houfe : There hath been the
Jike Artempt upon Captain Porter, but Captam
Purter hath been more Gedfatt 5 he hath been fo
refolved, that he ftood his Ground 5 and, to fpeak
the Truth, notwithftanding he hath been highly
atiempted @ For we fhall prove to you, that one
Cluiicy comes to Captain Perter, and tempts him to
withdraw into France, with Affurance of a Par-
don, and he hath Three Iundred Pounds paid
him in [and, and Three Hundred more he was to
bz paid when he theuld come o France, to be re-
mitted by Bills of Exchange : Befides, he was to
have 700/ w Yeary 100/, from my Lord dyle/-
buiry, 1001 from my Lord Mentgomery, and the
other 100 L o Year from Sir Jobn Fenwick, and
this t be an Anpuity during his Life: And thus
far we Julpect Sir fobn Fencoick may be concerned
for his Ly came) he did not come parfonaily,
but his Lady did; and gave her Honour and Af-
furance, that it fhould be all performed, and
much more, i he would withdraw himielf.

Captain Lestei pielently made a Dilcovery of
tinis, and takes the 300 /. which was paid down
apon s 1ohath been fo far proceeded, that
Clanc: hath been indicted for it, and convifted,
and hath received Judgment, and 1 fuppofe there
hath tean Erecution: We have the Record of all
Liele ieceedings,

Wi have this Circumftance farther 1n the Cale,
awlich i s my Duty to open to this Houfe) to
fhew what Labour there hath been to ftifle the
Lruth ot the Fact, upon raking of Sir Fobu Feir-

o . Phere was one IPebber taken with him, and
he flid o deceer into one Fowed’s Hand, and this was
t be teor to my Lady Fenwick: And what s the
Lisport of this Letter 2 The Import of it is (they
couldd uet prevail with Porter, as T opened jult now,
therclore” you muft influence the Jury, get two or
three flout Jurymen to ftarve the reft, for we
have nothing cife to depend upon : Thefe Things
we {hall humbly ofter to prove, according to our

U N
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Duty, and according to the Order of this Houfe;
:;nd then leave Sir fobn Fenwick to make his De=
ence.

Mr. Recorder, Sit, in what I fay; I fhall endea-
vour, as Iought to do, to purfue the Method of
this Bill: And firft, 1 will take Notice, that it is
the Pleafure and Direction of this Houfe, that we
fhould attend this Houfe this Day, to produce
the Evidence againft Sir Fobu Fenwick.

The Crime for which he ftands indiéted is High-
‘Treafon: I prefume the learned Gentlemen on the
other Side will not deny, but that the compaffing
and con{piring the Death and Deftru&ion of the
King, 1s High-Treafon ; and that to endeavour
ity or fhew it by an Overt-Act, to caufe a foreign
Power to invade the Realm, or to hold Corref-
pondence, or adhere to the King’s Enemies, is
likewife High-Treafon; and therefore I fhall
not trouble the Houfe to fay any thing to it one

way or another, becaufe I believe they will not
deny it S

In the next Place the Bill does take Notice,
that Sir Fobn Fenwick hath been indicted at the,
Old-Baily in May, 1696. Sir, by the Law of
this Houfe of Parliament made laft Seflions, no
Man ought to be indicted of High-Treafon with-
out two Witnefles ; purfuant to that Law, Sir
Jobu Fenwick hath been indited upon the Oaths
of two Witnefles, Captain Porter (whom we have
here) and Gosdman (whom we then had, and he
did {wear) and upon the Evidence of thefe two
Witnefles the Jury found the Bill, |

We have this farther Matter : For before the
Time the Bill was prefented to the Grand-Jury,
there wasan Examination taken both of Porfer and
Goodman in Writing, and I think it was before a
worthy Member of this Houfe, to whom I ap-
peal in this Cafe, and in thofe Informations (if [
miftake not) the fame Informations they gave a-
gainft Sir Fobn Feirwick as they gave againft Mr,
Cook 3 and upon the T'rial of Cook they were fworn,
and did juftify and verify the Informations they
gave before : And then, if you pleafe, we fhail
call Witneffes to prove, that upon the Trial of
Cook, Porter and Goodman gave that Evidence that
did equally aftect Sir Fobu Fenwick(for he was then
withdrawn, and could not be taken); and the Evi-
dence was, That Cook, Sir Fobn Fenwick, with my
Lord Aylefbury, my Lord Mantgomery, Sir Hil-
ltam Perkins, Stv Fobu Friend, Charnock, Goodman
and Porter, were all together at a Confult efpeci-
ally appointed for the carrying on thefe traiterous
Purpofes ; they gave the Court a great deal of
Trouble, whether Goodmar was there at that
Time, and they did call fome Servants of the
[Houfe that did prevaricate, but the Court was
thoroughly fatisfied, and it hath appeared more
plainly fince, that they did abufe the Juftice of
the Court, for that Gosdman was undoubtedly
there. Sir, Cosk upon the Trial was conviéted,
and had Judgment of Death. And, Sir, he is
attainted ; but it does not become me to fay,
why he 1s not executed @ His Majelty, no doubt,
hath great Reafon for it, But this I may fay,
being prefent at the Trial, nothing was made
more plain; and Sir Jobu Fenvick appeared to
be equally concerned.

To thew Sir Fobu Feuwick is guilty, I crave
leave to add this, he did withdraw himfelf, and
fled, and was enquired after with Diligence ; and
at Jaft he was found,

We
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We fhall make good all we have  with,
by Evidence (we hope) to the Satisfaction of this
Houfe,

Mr. Speaker. If you pleafe, My, Baker, that
is Solicitor for the King in this Cafe, does attend
at the Door with all the Papers; we defire that

he may be let 1n. | |
Mr. Speaker. Serjeant, callin Mr, Baker, (Which

was done.)

Mr. Speaker, What do you call Mr. Baker for'?

Mr. Serjeant Gorld, To give an Account of this
Indicment, for we have a true Copy from the Re-
cord,
Sir Thomas Powis. Mr. §peaker, fince I am here
alligned Counfel for the Prifoner, by the Allow-
ance of this Honourable Houife, upon his Appli-
cation, without my Privity, 1 crave Leave hum-
bly to acquaint you, in Bebalf of my Client: I
take it for granted, that heis, I am fure we that
are Counfel for him are, a little furprifed in what
the King’s Counfel are going about 3 forin Truth,
we were not aware, nor do we find that any No-
tice was given to the Gentleman at the Bar, that
there would be any Proceeding again(t him by ex-
amining of Witnefles, or giving of Evidence 3 he
had (it feems) the Vote of the Floufe {ent to him,
and likewife a Copy of the Bill 5 but I could not
underftand that the Houfe had given Notice that
he fhould be prepared by Witneffes, if he had
any, or be at Liberty to produce them. Nor was
there the lealt Notice to him, that there would be
a Proceeding againdt him by Way of giving Evi-
dence. e did, as1 find, humbly apply himfelf,
by Peution, that he might be heard by Counfel,
againft the palling of the Bill, and I thall very
carcfully obferve thofe Direétions you gave us,
which I hope we fhould not have ftood in need of,
but have behaved our felves as becomes us, and
not have drawn in quefltion the Power of Parlia-
ments: [ never had a Thought to do fuch a
thing ; but this [ humbly fay before you for your
Confideration, whether, without any f{or: of No-
tice, that I percerve, he had from this Foufe to
make his Defence to any Evidence, and confe-
quently there could be no need of Witneffes on
his Behall 3 whether you will {o proceed, unlefs
he had had Forewarning to provide himfelf other-
wife than by the printed Vores, which (I fippofe)
he had no Opportunity of feeing 3 and, whether,
within the Words you are pleafed to acquaint us
with, we may be heard as to the Reafonablenefs
of this Procceding, that by and by we muft crave
Feave to fpeak unto,

Mr, Speaker. Sir fobn Femwick did petition, it is
iue, that he nighe be heard by Counfel at the
Bar againit pafling the Bill 3 but he likewife pe-
tttened for Counlel and a Solicitor 5 and the An.
fwer from the Houofe was, That he thould be al-
lowed Counfel to make his Defence,

Sir 0o, Powis. Yes, Sir, Lhave feen the Order
of the Houles and truly there did not any Thing
occur from 1t to me, that it (hould be expected
tat he hould produce Witnefles ; for he praying
that he might be heard againtt paffing of the Bill,
and the Order of the Houle being that he might
have Counfel for making his Defence, 1 did not
apprehiend that it impower'd s fo to be prepar’d
as to bring Witneffes, efpecially there being no
Notice given to him to bring Witnefles, nor no
Way for him to compel them to come here.

St Bart, Shower, M. Speaker, we do acknow-
Jedge that we are fo far ready as o offer fome

Confiderations againft the Reafonablenefs of the
Bill, not againft fuch Bill in general, but againft
Sir Fobn Fenwick in particular, and upon thofe
Suggeftions in the Bill; but in refpedt of his
making his Defence againt Matter of Fat, and
to anfwer the Charge of the Bar, we are not

ready, The firlt Time we ‘
had Notice that Sir Jobw Fen.  Nute. This Opler
was iz foe Pay be-

wick fhould attend, or be
brovght to the Bar, was laft
NightatNine or'T'en a-Clock
at Night; “tis true, the Order faid the King's
Counfel fhould produce Evidence for the Bill
upon this Day 5 but it was not order’d that there
fhould be Evidence produced for Sir Fobi Feiroich,
or at that Time that he fhould be perfonally pre-
fent: We are ready, with Submiffion, to offer
what we have to fay again(t the paffing of this
Bill, upon the Svggeftions made in the Bill, as
Sir Fobn Fenawick's Cale is there reprefented 5 bue
to anfwer them m refpe of Truth or Falfhood,
that we are not prepared to do: Whether you
will hear them to that, before you have heard
us, m the other Particular, that we {ubmit to
you.

Mr. Speafer. Sir, you had Natice on 7V ednefdav
faft, that Sir Fohir Fenwick thould have Liberry (o
make his Defence by Countels and il you had
doubted whether he fhould be admitted o do it
by Witnefles, you might have applied to have
known the Pleafure of the Houfe: But if thar be
what you {tand upon, if you will withdraw, you
(hall know the Pleafure of the FHoufe,

Mr, Ser). Gorld. Tmuft confefs wedepended on
it, and expected no other Thing than the Bar
Evidence.  'This was our Order, and T appre-
hended that the Petition meant the fame Thing
For, as I remember, it wasan Order likewife thar
the King’s Counfel fhould produce the King’s
“vidence : 'What Realon was there for thar vy
dence, unlels Sir Fobr was to apply himielf o
anfwer it ?

Mr., Recorder, 1 beg your I .eave to oblerve with
what Reafon the Countel on the other Side male
this Objection 5 when ’tis the Import of this Bill,
that Sie Fubir Fenwick is guilty of High-Treafon -
And your Order fays, They are to be heard againft
the Bill, that is w fay, they are to be heard
againtt the High-Treafon charg’d spon him by
this Bill.  Therefore the Floufe did dire& us o
produce the Evidence againdt Sir Yo Foicict, o
venfy the Suggeltions of this Bill: And fo 1 can-
not apprehend what can be more proper at this
Time, but w prove the Fa& agandt Sir Foli
Fenteick 5 and "us their Bufinefs to defend i as
well as they can,

oir Tho. Lozis. \What was fiid by the learned
Gentleman on the other Side, T hope, wall be
fome Realon why we mighe be of Opinion, thas
we fhould not have Occafion 10 produce Witne!-
les: And the Trath s, this Bill docs ne where fo
much as fay, Sir Pubn Fiuzpick is gutlty of Higl-
Treafon; and therefore Mr. Kecorder was under
fome Miflake, when he faid rhe Bill chi roed that
he was guilty. “T'he Bill does not any where make
fuch an Allegation 5 there is nothirg but a Reci-
tal Ih:_lt he was indi@ed for fuch a Treafon s and
then it recites, That whereas he had protracted
his Trial by fuch Means, and Gecnes had wich.
dJr.'_n'.’.n himfelf s (but 1t dots nor fay with his
Ir::my;) and then follows the enacting Pare ;
Be it enacted, &c, So that there is no fiich Thing
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ss any- Allegation that he 1s guilty, whereby
we couid imagine that that was the Falt or Que-
fton between us.  We now offer thefe Things
humbly fo you, and fhall readily fubmit to what
you think ht to do mnit. |

Mir., Recorder, Siv Th. Powis fays, That Sir Fobn
Foncick is not charged with his doing any Act, or
being guilty of High-Treafon ; but the Bi!l‘talies
Noiice that he flands indiéted for ic: Then 1t will

» enough for usto prove, that he ftands indicted,
anlets the Houfe think fir to let us go nto the
Fvidence of his being guilty.

Sir B, Shswoer. We do not oppofe the produ-
cing Lividdence to prove the Suggeltions of the Bill;
andd the Recitals of the Bill fpecified ¢ But if they
artempt 1o prove him adtually guiley, by hving
Witnefies, us they have opened it here, that we
humbly beg Leaveto oppofe.  But if they think
fit to prove the Suggeftions of the Bill, that tltere
was an Indi@kment, that there were Witnefles
fworn, and one is withdrawn, and the Promifes
of making Confeflion, and his prevaricating in
chat Matter, we are ready to make our Defence
to that.

iir. Speaker, Gentlemen, you muft withdraw

cfore you have the Directions of the Houle,

Aveordingly Sir John Fenwick, and the Conufpl
of Oath Sides, withdrazo.

Aud betng withdrawa,

Nr. Sgeaker, Gentlemen, you have heard what is
flocd upon by the Counfel tor Sir Fobn Feawick :
Vhey fay, 1f you call only Evidence to prove the
Suzgeltions of the Bill, they are ready to anfwer
them s bat if you call any Evidence to prove Sir
fabi Fewzwick guilty of a Confpiracy, by living
Wirnciles, they pretend they are not ready, and
fov, They did not know they fhould be allow’d
Laherty to produce any Witnefles,

Sir dho. Livdigon, Mr, Speaker, the Counful
could not thini thar the Bill hould fer forth that
Sir Fobir Fenweick wasindicted, but thar the Houle
would know by what Means 5 and that Goodian
was gone awly, and we fhould not enquire by
what Means,  What are the Obje@tions by the
Counfel againft the Bill? Say they, We are ready
to give Reafons aguinft the Bill they do not fay
down-right againft your juriffiction: But, fay
they, we are ready to {hew ’tis not reafonable in
this Cafe, as ftand Circumftances, to pafs this
Bili: Sir Febirs Petition was to be heard down-
rgheagamivthe Bill.  If that was your Intention
to bear kim to thar, and to that only, I concejve
you would not have worded your Anfwer as you
did s You order’’d him Counfel to make his De.
fenees and at che fame Time order’d the Kine’s
Counfel 10 produce the Evidence: How could
they unceritand it, but to meke Defence to the

wicence? It may be they have a Mind to have
uE-::thcr Fee: Whether you will think fit, in the
Ctreumftances you ftand, to give them further
JI ine, 1do not know : Bur the Circumftances of
tae hnedom, and the King’s Life, muft be con-
hulered as weil as Sir Yobn Femwick,  What is the
Weaning that they are not prepared ? I fuppofe it
15 L0 !}‘t}'v turther Time s but I think your Order
15 fo plainly worded, that they could not ignorantly
ke 1

Lord Norryes, I rife up to the Matter of Fa&
That Gentleman tells you your Order is plainly

‘ ]
-

worded ; ’tis fo, if théy had timely Natice of it:
But the Counfel at the Bar tell you; théy had no
Notice of this Ordeér till Tén a:Clock latt Niglit:

Mr. Spéaker, That noble Lord does miftake
for that which they fay they had no Notice of till
laft Niglit, was, that Sir Fobn' Fenwick fhould be
brought hither ; but the Notice that he thould be
heard by his Counfel for his Defence was fent him
the Day before, - S

Lord Norryes. Thisvery Order, for his Majelty’s
Counfel to produce the Evidence, was made but
upon Thitrfday, o

Mr. Speaker. Then I miftake. Butthe Order
that was'made upon his Petition, I fent away 1m-
mediately : But the Order they mean, I fuppofe,
is that for bringing him hither,

Mr. Cowper. Say the Counfel for Sit Fobn Fen-
wick, We come prepared to make Defence to
every Thing charged 1n the Preamble of the Bill,
but what is not charged, we do not come pre-
pared to make Defence to. Now- they concelve
the Fa&t of High-Treafon is not charged upon
him by the Bill ; and if true, it is of great weight ;
but as it is, ’tis none: For firft, ’tis plain, the
Preamble recites that he was indicted for High-
Treafon by the Grand-Jury 5 that is a Charge of
High-Trealon within the Bill ; for it fays, hewas
charged by the Qaths of his Country upon the
Oaths of two Witnefles 3 and there 1s the very
Overt-A¢t recited in the Preamble of the Bill.
Now, allowing this its due Weight, Can any one
think, that fits here as a private Judge, that the
Hich-Treafon thus recited, as found by theGrand-
Jury, was no Part of his Charge? The very Na-
ture of the Bill fpeaks; for could any one think,
that you would ground a Bill of Attamder upon
a Suggeftion, that be being indiéted of High-
Treafon, had fpirited away one of the King’s

Evidence, or for giving falfe Information? So

that this is erifling with the Foufe, with Sub-
nuffion,

Sir Rich, Temple. Canany Body fay any Thing
of the Intention of the Houfe, when ’tis reduced
into a Bill? Is it not the Bill that he is to make
his Defence to? And the Gentleman that {pake,
fays, that no Body could think otherwife : Why,
Sir, no Body is to think otherwife than the Bill
(tares it.

Now the thing before you 15, Whether up-
on the Suggeftions of this Bill ’tis fir for you
to pafs it ? The Cafe of Mortimer was, That he
had made his Efcape, being under an Indict-
ment of High-Treafon ; and it came before the
IHoufe, Whether upon the Stawue of 25 E. 3.
it was High-Treafon : But they did not debate
the Fadt,

Now you have broughta Biil here, and all the
Ground 1s, that he was indifted for High-"Trea-
fon, had thus and thus prevaricated and delay’d
his T'rial, upon Promifes of Confefiion, and in
Conclufion, one of the Witnefles 1s withdrawn ¢
Sir, no Man is to make his Defence but to what
is in che Bill 5 nor can you examine to any Thing
but what 1s fuggefted in the Bill. If you had
put the Iffue upon the Guilt of Sir Fobu Fenvicr,
he muft have a fair Trial in fome Place, and
that he cannot have here upon Qath 5 for upon
all Bills of Attainders they have had a fair Trial
above.

Mr., Smith, 1 always thought when a Biil of At-
tainder was to pafs through this Houfe, that eve-

ry Man was concerned to hear what Evidence he
could,
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